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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®ME

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board”) of Universe Entertainment and Culture Group
Company Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the 2020/2021 annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30th
June 2021 (the “Year").

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in the first quarter of 2020
has indeed brought unprecedented challenges to worldwide
economy. Many businesses have been forced to shut down
permanently amidst swift fundamental changes in consumer
behavior and supply chain disruptions.

Under such difficult situation, our Group recorded a profit for
the Year of approximately HK$152.5 million against a loss for
the year of approximately HK$27.6 million for the year ended
30th June 2020 (“Last Year"”) which were mainly contributed
by the segmental profit from the films distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights segment.
The significantly improved in Group’s results show the success
of the Group’s continuing effort in providing original production
of quality movies during the Year. However, the continuing
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic still negatively affected the
Group other operating segment in trade, wholesales and retail
of optical and watches products.

Looking forward, we expect that the spread of COVID-19
pandemic in the world will be under control by the vaccines
and the Group's operations will gradually recover in coming
years. The Group will closely monitor the external business
environment and promptly react to market changes, and take
appropriate measures to improve our overall profitability.
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APPRECIATION

Finally, | would also like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere thanks and gratitude to my fellow directors and our
staff for their dedicated efforts and contributions to the Group
in the past year. | would also like to thank all our customers and
Shareholders for their trust and support.

By Order of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DM

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Overall Group results

The Group recorded a profit for the year ended 30th June
2021 (the “Year”) of approximately HK$152.5 million against
a loss for the year of approximately HK$27.6 million for the
year ended 30th June 2020 (“Last Year”). The turnaround
in profit is mainly attributable to (i) the substantially increase
of the Group's segment revenue from video distribution,
film distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights segment from approximately HK$154.9 million
Last Year to approximately HK$524.8 million during the Year.
The increase in segment revenue was mainly due to the
satisfactory performance of the films released by the Group
during the Year and the increase of the Group's interest in the
films released during the Year as compared to Last Year; and (ii)
the improvement of the profitability of the films released by the
Group during the Year as compared to Last Year.

Films distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights

During the Year, the COVID-19 pandemic was largely brought
under control in the People's Republic of China (which
excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan for the purpose of
this report (the “PRC")) and Hong Kong and the film market
continues recovering since reopening of cinemas in July
2020. In response to the recovery of the film market in PRC
and Hong Kong, we released 8 films during the Year and
recorded revenue of approximately HK$524.8 million during
the Year, representing an increase of approximately 238.8%
as compared to approximately HK$154.9 million in the same
period last year. It accounted for approximately 87.1% (2020:
approximately 68.3%) of the Group’s revenue during the
Year. The Group recorded a segmental profit of approximately
HK$193.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
1,012.1% as compared to approximately HK$17.4 million Last
Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The significantly increase of the revenue and profit from
this business segment is mainly due to (i) the satisfactory
performance of the films released by the Group during the
Year and the increase of the Group's interest in the films
released during the Year as compared to Last Year; and (ii) the
improvement of the profitability of the films released by the
Group during the Year as compared to Last Year.

The Group recorded an impairment loss of films rights, films
in progress and film related deposits of approximately HK$3.0
million (2020: approximately HK$16.0 million). The recoverable
amount of film rights, films in progress and film related
deposits as at 30th June 2021 was assessed with reference
to a value-in-use calculation at the end of the reporting period,
which was derived from discounting the projected cash flow
using a discount rate of 11% (2020: 11%).

During the Year, the Group released a new film called “Shock
Wave2" (“#F58 5 22") in December 2020 and performed well
in terms of box office and reputation. The Group will continue
to invest in original production of quality movies in PRC and
Hong Kong. During the year ending 30th June 2022, the Group
is going to release several new films including “Flashover”
("EXFIE") directed by Oxide Pang (#/E) and starring Du
Jiang (f£)T), Wang Qianyuan (£ FJ&) and Tong Liya (XE%:),

“The Stolen Tomorrow” (“## i EKIAF-K ") directed by Barbara
Wong (2HH) and starring Gulnazar (& H1#B#L), Jasper Liu
(BILAZR) and Zhang Xinyi (3R&kE) and “Atonement” (“FiI5E")
a film wrote, directed and performed with breakthrough by
Ronald Cheng (E8FF ) and starring Chrissie Chau (B #) and
Philip Keung (Z# X)

In addition, there will be a series of quality movies that we
will invest and produce in coming two years including “White
Storm 3" ("#F&3 : KAMKA") directed by Herman Yau (B2
%) and starring Louis Koo (dA%%), Aaron Kwok (28&¥%) and
Sean Lau (BIF &), “Shock Wave 3" ("#FEHZK3") directed
by Herman Yau (E81&%) and starring Andy Lau (Z]{22E), “High
Forces"” ("fE#fi4R") directed by Oxide Pang (¥]I8) and
starring Andy Lau (2{£2£) and Wendy Zhang Zi-feng (38 1)
and “The Trading Floor” ("B ZE/MA") directed by Herman
Yau (EB#87E).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWmR DN

Besides cinema movies, we were also producing other types of
contents to expand our business in the online movies in PRC.
We currently have about 5 online movies under production and
plan to producing another 5 online movies in coming years.

The cinema operations in PRC and Hong Kong have not yet
returned to normal due to ongoing anti-epidemic preventive
measures such as restrictions on the seating capacity and
food consumption within the cinema houses imposed by the
regulatory bodies in PRC and Hong Kong. It is anticipated that
the anti-epidemic preventive measures may continue in the
near term and the film industry’s operating environment in PRC
and Hong Kong will remain challenging in the coming years.
The Group will continue to closely monitor the challenging
operating environment and review its business plan and
strategy from time to time to seek for new opportunities to
further expand our business of this segment.

Trade, wholesale and retail of optical and
watches products

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$55.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately 9.6% as compared to approximately HK$51.0
million in the Last Year. Revenue from this business segment
included the revenue of approximately HK$37.9 million (2020:
approximately HK$41.1 million) mainly from the trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products in Hong Kong (“HK
Optical Business”) and the revenue of approximately HK$18.0
million (2020: approximately HK$9.9 million) from the trading,
wholesaling and retailing of watches and optical products in
the PRC (“PRC Watches & Optical Business”). It accounted
for approximately 9.3% (2020: approximately 22.5%) of the
Group's revenue during the Year. Segmental loss from this
business during the Year was approximately HK$14.7 million,
representing an increase of approximately 21.5% as compared
to approximately HK$12.1 million in the Last Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The increase in segmental loss is mainly due to the revenue
and profit margin of the Group’'s watches and optical retail
shops in Hong Kong and the PRC was negatively affected
by the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and the control
measures imposed by the PRC and Hong Kong government
during the Year. To mitigate the negative financial impact
under the unprecedented challenging operational environment,
we have imposed cost saving measures during the Year
including the reduction the number of retail shops, seeking
rental reduction/relief from landlords and reduction of the
shop’s operation hours to cope with the decrease in business
activities as a result of social distancing measures imposed by
the government. Staff costs were reduced through reduction
of headcount, no pay leave arrangement and the clearance of
the annual leave of the staff. However, the savings from our
cost control works could not completely offset the negative
impact of COVID-19 pandemic during the Year. As a result,
the segmental loss of the Group's optical and watch business
increased during the Year as compared to the same period Last
Year.

The Group will continue to adopt cost control measures,
closely monitoring the market situation and timely adjusting
the business strategies in view of the development of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Trading Securities

As at 30th June 2021, the Group's trading securities amounted
to approximately HK$76.9 million (2020: approximately HK$3.3
million) which accounted for approximately 7.3% (2020:
approximately 0.5%) of the Group's audited consolidated total
assets as at 30th June 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENwmE DN

Below is a table setting out the list of trading securities held by

the Group as at 30th June 2021:

Name of investee
company

RRELDEE

China Mobile Ltd
HERBERAR

China Construction Bank
Corporation
HERRRORAER

P

Meituan

B3

AIA Group Ltd
RARRERERAR

Kuaishou Technology

RFHE

Agricultural Bank Of China
Limited
HREEEIRAER

A

QOther investments
EfrRE

Notes

o

Number of
Place of shares held
incorporation by the Group
AEEfE
Ratwet3 RH#A
Hong Kong 400,000
g
PRC 2,895,000
B
Cayman Islands 32410
R2ES
Hong Kong 96,000
Eik
Cayman Islands 40,000
R2ES
PRC 2,000,000
"

Percentage of
total issued
share capital
of the investee
company as at
30th June
2021

HHRELR
RZBz-%
AB=TH
BETRAE
BgzAEMM
(approximately
%

(B4%)

Less than 0.1%
HH0.1%

Less than 0.1%
DH0.1%
Less than 0.1%
HR0.1%

Less than 0.1%
HR0.1%

Less than 0.1%
HR0.1%

Less than 0.1%

PR01%

TRER - ZE-_ X NA=THAKEHMHF

X R FFIIE

Percentage to

Percentageto Percentageto  the Group's

the Group's  the Group’s total trading

Fairvalue total assets net assets securities
as at asat as at asat Change in Dividend
30th June 30th June 30th June 30th June fair value income
2021 2021 2021 2021 forthe Year  for the Year

e ]

ha%E fha%E  HoB=-F

K=B=-% RZBz-§  #AZ1H

R=%z-f  RXA=tR  RA=tH 2585
RAAZtEZ BEEr FEEZ 3 FEE EE
AV BAl BAl BAl ATERE REBA
(approximately  (approximately  (approximately ~ (approximately  (approximately  (approximately
HK$'000) %) %) %) HK§'000) HK$'000)
(EaTED) (BE4%) (B49%) (fa%)  BoTED  BHTED
19,420 1.8% 3.8% 26.3% (534.0) -
17,689 1.7% 3.5% 23.1% 1300 -
10,384 1.0% 2.1% 13.5% (2,991.0 -
9,264 0.9% 1.8% 12.0% (148.0) -
7,192 0.7% 1.5% 10.1% (7,588.0) -
5,400 0.5% 1.1% 7.0% (796.0) -
6,922 0.7% 1.4% 9.0% (2,459.0) 70
76,871 7.3% 15.2% 100.0% 14,386.0) 70
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Note 1:

China Mobile Limited (“China Mobile”) is an investment holding
company principally engaged in telecommunication and related
businesses. The shares of China Mobile (stock code: 941) are listed on
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its main businesses include Mobile businesses, Wireline
Broadband businesses and Internet of Things (loT) businesses. Mobile
businesses include two categories of services. Voice services include
local calls, domestic and international long distance calls, roaming
services and voice value-added services. Data services include short
message services and multimedia message services, wireless data
traffic services and application and information services, such as
Mobile Music, Mobile Reading and Mobile Video, among others.
Wireline Broadband businesses include the provision of wireline
broadband and related services. China Mobile Limited also provides
customer services, including phone bill enquiry, among others. China
Mobile mainly operates businesses in Mainland China. As disclosed
in the latest annual report of China Mobile, the revenue of the China
Mobile was approximately RMB768,070 million for the year ended
31st December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB745,917 million). China
Mobile recorded a profit of approximately RMB108,140 million for the
year ended 31st December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB106,791
million).

Note 2:

China Construction Bank Corporation (“CBC") is a commercial bank.
The shares of CBC (stock code: 939) are listed on Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. CBC operates its businesses through corporate
banking businesses, including corporate deposit, corporate credit
loan, asset custody, enterprise annuity, trade financing, international
settlement, international financing and value-added services, among
others, personal banking businesses, including personal deposit,
loan, bank card services, private bank services, foreign exchange
trading and gold trading services, among others, and capital business.
CBC operates its businesses in domestic and overseas markets. As
disclosed in the latest annual report of CBC, the net interest and fee
and commission income of the CBC was approximately RMB690,491
million for the year ended 31st December 2020 (2019: approximately
RMB647,964 million). CBC recorded a profit of approximately
RMB273,579 million for the year ended 31st December 2020 (2019:
approximately RMB269,222 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWmR DN

Note 3:

Meituan, is a China-based e-commerce platform providing life services.
The shares of Meituan (stock code: 3690) are listed on Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Meituan connects consumers and businesses
to provide services satisfying people’s daily eating needs. Meituan
owns an instant food ordering and delivery brand, Meituan, as well
as provides services through its mobile application, Meituan. Meituan
is also engaged in the operation of a bike-sharing brand, Mobike. As
disclosed in the latest annual report of Meituan, the revenue of the,
Meituan was approximately RMB114,795 million for the year ended
31st December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB97,529 million).
Meituan recorded a profit of approximately RMB4,708 million for the
year ended 31st December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB2,236
million).

Note 4:

AlA Group Limited ("AIA”) is an investment holding company
principally engaged in the provision of life insurance. The shares of AIA
(stock code: 1299) are listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The
products and services of AIA mainly include life insurance, accident
and health insurance and savings plans, as well as employee benefits,
credit insurance and pension services to corporate clients. AlA operates
through eight business segments: Hong Kong, Thailand, Singapore,
Malaysia, China, Korea, Other Markets and Group Corporate Centre.
Other Markets segment includes the operations in Australia, Indonesia,
New Zealand, the Philippines, Sri Lanka, Taiwan, Vietnam and India. As
disclosed in the latest annual report of AlA, the revenue of the AIA was
approximately US$50,359 million for the year ended 31st December
2020 (2019: approximately US$47,242 million). AlA recorded a profit
of approximately US$5,779 million for the year ended 31st December
2020 (2019: approximately US$6,018 million).

Note 5:

Kuaishou Technology (“Kuaishou”) is a China-based investment holding
company mainly engaged in the operation of content communities and
social platforms. The shares of Kuaishou (stock code: 1024) are listed
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Kuaishou mainly provides live
streaming services, online marketing services and other services. The
online marketing solutions include advertising services, Kuaishou fans
headline services and other marketing services. Other services include
e-commerce, online games and other value-added services. Kuaishou
mainly conducts business within the domestic market. As disclosed in
the latest annual report of Kuaishou, the revenue of the Kuaishou was
approximately RMB58,776 million for the year ended 31st December
2020 (2019: approximately RMB39,120 million). Kuaishou recorded
a loss of approximately RMB116,635 million for the year ended 31st
December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB19,651 million).
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Note 6:

Agricultural Bank of China Limited (“Agricultural Bank”) is a China-
based commercial bank. The shares of Agricultural Bank (stock code:
1288) are listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Agricultural
Bank mainly operates through four business segments. The Corporate
Finance segment is engaged in the deposit and loan business, small
and micro business finance, settlement and cash management, trade
financing and investment banking, among others. The Personal Finance
segment is engaged in personal deposit and loan, credit card business
and private banking business. The Treasury segment is engaged in
money market business and investment portfolio management. The
Asset Management segment is engaged in the provision of financial
services, asset custody business, pension business and precious metal
business. As disclosed in the latest annual report of Agricultural Bank,
the net interest and fee and commission income of the Agricultural
Bank was approximately RMB619,624 million for the year ended 31st
December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB573,797 million). Agricultural
Bank recorded a profit of approximately RMB216,400 million for the
year ended 31st December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB212,924
million).

Note 7:

The other investments comprised 6 equity securities listed in Hong
Kong and engaged in insurance, banking, money lending, mineral
resources, consumer personal cares and information technology
industries.

The Group recorded a fair value loss arising from the change
in fair value of trading securities of approximately HK$12.4
million (2020: approximately HK$5.4 million) for the Year. Such
loss was mainly attributable to the poor performance of certain
investments during the Year. As a result, the overall segment
loss of the securities investment segment was approximately
HK$12.3 million (2020: approximately HK$5.8 million) during
the Year.

The Group will continue to review and adjust its investment
portfolios and invest in equity securities listed in Hong Kong
with the aim to reduce the risk and achieve a stable return to
the Group under the current volatile market circumstance.
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EEENwmE DN

Other financial assets Hih o pE=E
Below is a table setting out the list of the other financial assets TXRAWN T - —FXA=+HKEBEFEH
held by the Group as at 30th June 2021: ZEMSREEDE
Percentage of
total issued
share capital Percentage to
of the Percentage to Percentageto  the Group's
investee the Group's  the Group’s total other
company Fairvalue  total assets net assets financial
Number of as at asat asat asat assetsasat  Changein Return of Dividend
Name of investee Place of shares held 30th June 30th June 30th June 30th June 30th June fair value invested income
company Notes incorporation by the Group 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021  for the Year capital  for the Year
HRRERE HEER
RZBz-% s L) kAEE R-3--F
AAZTH RZEZ-§ HW-B--F  #A=1H
BRIRRY W-B--F  AAZTR  ~A=tR  Eft¢REE
B EEBfE g7 K~A=tHZ BEEY FEEL gy REE gRE REE
HREQAEE  ME AUNE hHEE Al ATE Al BAl BAlt  ATESD ERER REHWA
(approximately  (approximately  (approximately  (approximately  (approximately (approximately (approximately — (approximately
%) HK$'000) %) %) %) HK$'000) HK$'000) HK$'000)
(B4 (#4 (B4 (B4

(B81%) TET) (549%) (E8%) (B4%) T TR TET)

Cassia Investment 1 Cayman Islands N/A N/A 1,107.6 0.1 02 6.6 57.0 299.0 -
Limited REHE NER AR
Partnership Il
Promising Social 2 Caymanlslands ~ 1,982.215 21.08 346.0  less than 0.1 0.1 21 240 - -
Media Private HEks 201
Equity Fund
Derivative financial 2 N/A N/A N/A 14,499.0 14 29 86.5 632.0 - -
instruments ER TR TR
ITEEHIA
Other investments N/A N/A N/A 818.8 01 0.1 48 - - -
MRE ER NER AR
16,7714 16 33 100.0 7130 2990 -
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Notes:

Cassia Investment Limited Partnership Il (“Cassia I1”) is an
exempted limited partnership established in accordance with the
Exempted Limited Partnership Law of Cayman Islands offering
limited partnership interests for the purpose of obtaining capital
appreciation through making private equity investments mainly
in the consumer sector across Greater China and South East
Asia, as well as in non-Asian enterprises that have a strong
exposure to Asian consumers market. Cassia Il intends to
target companies that it believes will benefit from the growing
disposable income of the Asian middle class and can capture
the behavioural consumer trends that follow such growing
household wealth and structured equity transactions primarily in
Greater China, Thailand, Indonesia, Vietnam and the Philippines.
Up to 30th June 2021, the Group has subscribed for the limited
partnership interest of Cassia Il of approximately US$7.9 million
(approximately HK$61.2 million) (2020: same).

Promising Social Media Private Equity Fund (the “PSM Fund”)
is a close-ended investment fund incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 5th February 2014 under the laws of the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability. The
PSM Fund is not a regulated mutual fund for the purposes of
the Mutual Funds Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
principal investment objective of the PSM Fund is to maximize
capital growth through investing businesses which are engaged
in or derive a significant proportion of their income from the field
of social media. The PSM Fund commenced operation on 29th
April 2015. Weluck Development Limited (“Weluck”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company first invested in the PSM Fund
in April 2015 and subscribed a total of 1,982.215 class A shares
of the PSM Fund (the “"PSM Shares”) with a total investment
cost of approximately HK$19.5 million. The manager of the Fund
(the "Fund Manager”) had been delegated authority to manage
the Fund.

Since the subscription of the PSM Shares by Weluck, the fair
value of the PSM Fund significantly decreased because of the
under performance of the PSM Fund. As informed by the Fund
Manager in December 2018, in view of the real litigation risks
and regulatory risks surrounding the Fund Manager's holding
company and the fact that the underlying investment was loss
making, the Fund Manager decided to divest the underlying
investment held by the PSM Fund at a price significantly below
the its investment cost. In addition, a fellow subsidiary of the
Fund Manager (the “Purchaser” and is an independent third
party of the Group) agreed to provide conditional offer (“Offer"”)
to buy-back the PSM Shares held by Weluck at a consideration of
approximately HK$17.8 million by reference to Weluck's sharing
of latest available audited net asset of the PSM Fund as at 31st
December 2017.
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BEEBNWmR DN

On 1st March 2019, Weluck accepted the Offer to dispose the
PSM Shares at a consideration of approximately HK$17.8 million
(the "Disposal”). The Purchaser shall settle the consideration
of the Disposal to Weluck in cash by 34 monthly instalments,
whereby (i) approximately HK$1,483,000 shall be paid on or
before 29th March 2019 and (i) approximately HK$494,000 on
or before the last business day of each consecutive month from
April 2019 to December 2021. Completion of the Disposal is
conditional upon the Purchaser having paid the consideration of
the Disposal to Weluck in full in accordance with the schedule
described above. The PSM Shares will be transferred to the
Purchaser on receipt of the consideration of the Disposal in full
by Weluck. In the opinion of the Directors, the arrangement
constitute a derivatives contract to dispose the PSM Shares at
a fixed consideration in the future and should be recognized as
a derivative financial instrument (“DFI"”). Based on the business
valuation report issued by an independent professional valuer
which was not connected with the Group, the fair value of
the DFI was approximately HK$15.5 million in March 2019.
The fair value of the DFI would be recognised as a gain in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group
and recognized as the other financial assets on the consolidated
balance sheet of the Group over the time proportionally from
March 2019 to December 2021.

Taking into account (i) the fair value of the DFI of approximately
HK$15.5 million would be recognised as a gain of the Group over
the time proportionally from March 2019 to December 2021; (ii)
the unsatisfactory performance of the investment of the PSM
Fund; and (iii) the constant cash inflow that will be brought by
the Disposal, the Directors consider it is appropriate and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole to
accept the Offer made by the Purchaser to effect the Disposal.

Looking forward, the financial and investment markets are
continually affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. The Group will
take a cautious approach in managing the investment portfolio
with the aim to reduce the risk and achieve a stable return to
the Group.
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Money lending business

The Group engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong
during the Year. As at 30th June 2021, the Group had loans
receivable of approximately HK$1.1 million (2020: approximately
HK$1.5 million), under the money lending business and
recognized interest income (excluded inter-segment
sales) of approximately HK$967,000 (2020: approximately
HK$7.9 million). It accounted for approximately 0.2% (2020:
approximately 3.5%) of the Group's revenue during the Year.
Loans receivable are interest bearing at rates ranging from
8.5% to 12% per annum (2020: 8.5% to 10% per annum). The
segment loss of this business segment was approximately
HK$970,000 during the Year (2020: approximately HK$13.4
million).

The decrease in segmental loss was mainly due to the net
effect of the decrease of the expected credit loss for loans
receivable by approximately HK$19.0 million during the Year
and the decrease in revenue by approximately HK$6.9 million
during the Year.

Due to the unstable financial and investment market and the
highly competitive business environment, the Group resolved
to cease granting new loans to clients and will not renew its
money lending license in coming year.

Leasing of investment properties

The rental income from leasing of investment properties
remained stable during the Year. The Group recorded rental
income of approximately HK$1.2 million (2020: approximately
HK$1.1 million) during the Year from its properties at Woodland
House 1-5, Woodlands Villa, 121 Tong Fuk Village, Tong Fuk,
Lantau Island, New Territories, Hong Kong. It accounted for
approximately 0.2% (2020: approximately 0.5%) of the Group’s
revenue during the Year.

The segment profit of this business segment was
approximately HK$0.9 million (2020: approximately HK$0.9
million) during the Year. There were no additions or disposals
of the investment properties during the Year.
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BEEENWE DM

Entertainment business

This segment primarily relates to artiste and model
management and organisation of concerts. Due to the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group’s artiste and
model management business dropped a lot and the Group
did not organize or invest in any concert during the Year.
Therefore, revenue from this business segment during the
Year was approximately HK$254,000 (2020: approximately
HK$2.0 million). It accounted for approximately 0.04%
(2020: approximately 0.9%) of the Group's revenue during
the Year. Segmental loss of approximately of HK$1.2 million
was recorded during the Year (2020: approximately HK$0.9
million). The increase in loss from this segment was due to the
decrease in revenue during the Year.

Financial Printing

The Group engaged in the business of financial printing
services to provide the services of type-setting, translation,
printing, design, distribution of financial print products and other
related services to the financial sectors in Hong Kong through
Formex Financial Press Limited (“Formex"), a subsidiary of the
Company.

Benefiting from the quality and cost effective services
provided to our clients, Formex experienced a fast growing in
clientele and substantially increase in revenue during the Year.
Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$19.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 100.0% as compared to approximately HK$9.8
million Last Year. It accounts for approximately 3.2% (2020:
approximately 4.3%) of the Group's revenue during the Year.
Due to the substantially increase in revenue, the segmental
loss of financial printing segment decreased to approximately
HK$4.5 million during the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 59.5% as compared to approximately HK$11.1
million Last Year.
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With the launch of various COVID-19 vaccination programs in
many countries, signs of hope are starting to emerge, which
will help support a solid economic recovery. An economic
turnaround will definitely help bolster a rebound in Hong Kong
stock market and increase the fund raising activities in Hong
Kong. Therefore, we believe that there will be a sustainable
growth in demand for financial printing services in Hong Kong
in coming years. Taking advantage of the lower rent due
to COVID-19 pandemic, the Group leased additional office
spaces in the core area of Central, Hong Kong to provide more
conference rooms, spacious and comfortable leisure areas and
top facilities to our customers. With a team of talented people
with extensive experience and professional knowledge and
excellent facilities, Formex is positioned to serve the premium
clientele and capture the growing demands of the financial
printing services in Hong Kong in coming years.

Discontinued operation — Securities Brokerage Business

The Company engaged in securities brokerage and margin
financing business through its wholly-owned subsidiary China
Jianxin Financial Services Limited (“China Jianxin”). China
Jianxin is a company licensed under the SFO to carry out Type
1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activities, the principal activities of which are
provision of brokerage services and securities margin financing
to clients (the “Securities Brokerage Business”) during the
years ended 30th June 2016, 30th June 2017 and 30th June
2018. The Group ceased the Securities Brokerage Business on
30th June 2018 and the details of the cessation are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 17th May 2018.

The Group recorded the loss before tax from the discontinued
Securities and Brokerage Business of approximately HK$0.3
million (2020: profit before tax of approximately HK$0.8 million)
during the Year.
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BEEENWE DM

Geographical contribution

In terms of geographical contribution, overseas markets
accounted for approximately 87.7% (2020: approximately
63.2%) of the Group’s revenue during the Year.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the Year is approximately HK$15.6 million
(2020: approximately HK$16.9 million). The selling expenses
was stable during the Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year decreased by
approximately 24.2% to approximately HK$61.4 million as
compared to approximately HK$81.0 million in the same
period last year. The decrease in administrative expenses was
mainly due the decrease of the directors and staff bonus of
approximately HK$19.0 million during the Year.

Update on the adjustment to the consideration of
AP Group Investment Holdings Limited

On 12th October 2015, Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited (“Fragrant River”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“AP Acquisition Agreement”) with two
independent third party vendors, namely Very Easy Limited
(“Very Easy”) and City Link Consultancy Limited (“City Link"),
and their respective ultimate beneficial owners, namely Chan
Sze Long (“Chan”) and Lim Wah Elsa (“Lim"), as guarantors to
acquire 51% equity interest of AP Group Investment Holdings
Limited (“AP Group”) at a consideration of HK$20,400,000
(subject to downward adjustment in respect of the guaranteed
profit as described in the AP Acquisition Agreement) (the “AP
Acquisition”). AP Group and its subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the provision of education and training programs
in relation to self-improvement and self-enhancement in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The AP Acquisition was completed on 14th
December 2015.
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On 13th June 2016, (i) Fragrant River as the vendor and the
Company as the guarantor of Fragrant River; and (ii) Lucky
Famous, an independent third party, entered into a disposal
agreement (the “AP Disposal Agreement”), pursuant to which
Fragrant River sold to Lucky Famous the 51% of the equity
interest of AP Group at the consideration of HK$20,400,000
(the “Consideration”) subject to downward adjustments as
described below (the “AP Disposal”). The amount of the
Consideration was the same as the consideration for the AP
Acquisition. Completion of the AP Disposal took place on 1st
July 2016.

Under the AP Disposal Agreement, in the event that the audited
consolidated profit after tax of the AP Group attributable to
owners of the AP Group for the period from 1st January 2016
to 31st December 2017 (“FY 2016 & 2017") (which would only
include income or gain generated by activities in the ordinary
and usual course of business of AP Group and its subsidiaries)
(the "FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit”) is less than HK$16,000,000,
the Group should pay to Lucky Famous (or to its order) the
Adjustment Amount (as defined below) in cash within 14 days
after the audited consolidated financial statements of AP Group
for the period of FY 2016 & 2017 (“FY 2016 & 2017 Audited
Accounts”) are available.

The adjustment amount under the AP Disposal Agreement (the
“Adjustment Amount”) will be determined in accordance with
the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000.00 = (NP/2) x 5 x 51%

Where:

“A" means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HKS$; and
“NP” means the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit. Where the FY
2016 & 2017 Net Profit is a negative figure, “NP"” shall be
deemed to be zero.
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The FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts will be prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and audited, at the cost of AP Group, by an accounting firm
as approved by Lucky Famous, adjusted for any non-recurring
Items.

Such downward adjustment mechanism for the Consideration
under the AP Disposal Agreement depending on the actual
performance of the AP Group for the FY 2016 & 2017 is virtually
of the same terms as the downward adjustment mechanism
of the consideration in respect of the AP Acquisition from Very
Easy and City Link under the AP Acquisition Agreement. Details
of such acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 12th October 2015.

In the event there is a shortfall between the FY 2016 & 2017
Net Profit and the target profit of the AP Group for FY 2016 &
2017 of HK$16,000,000 under the AP Acquisition Agreement,
an adjustment amount under such agreement (the “Contingent
Consideration Receivable”) is payable by Very Easy and City
Link, being the vendors under the AP Acquisition, to the Group
within 7 days after the FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts for
the purpose of the AP Acquisition Agreement are available. The
obligations of Very Easy and City Link to pay such adjustment
amount to the Group are guaranteed by their respective
beneficial owners.

As mentioned above, in the event there is a shortfall between
the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit and the target profit of the
AP Group for FY 2016 & 2017 of HK$16,000,000 under the
AP Disposal Agreement, an adjustment amount under such
agreement (the “Contingent Consideration Payable”) is payable
by the Group to Lucky Famous within 14 days after the FY
2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts for the purpose of the AP
Disposal Agreement are available.
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On 12th June 2018, the Group received a demand letter (the
“Demand Letter”) from Lucky Famous whereby it was alleged
that the AP Group recorded a net loss of HK$189,799 based
on the alleged FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts dated 11th
June 2018. As set out in the Demand Letter, Lucky Famous
demanded Fragrant River or the Company to fully pay the
amount of HK$20,400,000 (the “Alleged Claim”), being
the alleged Adjustment Amount pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the AP Disposal Agreement, to Lucky Famous
on or before 26th June 2018, and upon default, steps would
be taken by Lucky Famous to enforce its rights under the AP
Disposal Agreement without further notice.

In response to the Lucky Famous Demand Letter, Fragrant
River and the Company have through the letter from their legal
advisers dated 22nd June 2018 stated that they would defend
the purported claim of Lucky Famous for the payment of the
Adjustment Amount under the AP Disposal Agreement as
alleged by it.

In light of the Lucky Famous Demand Letter and the alleged
net loss of the AP Group for FY 2016 & 2017, and in order to
protect the interest of the Group, but without admitting any
liability to Lucky Famous under the AP Disposal Agreement,
Fragrant River issued corresponding demand letters all dated
22nd June 2018 (collectively, the “Fragrant River Demand
Letters”) to Very Easy, City Link, Chan and Lim, respectively
demanding the payment of an amount of HK$20,400,000 (the
“Fragrant River Claim”) to Fragrant River within 7 days from
the date of the Fragrant River Demand Letters pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the AP Acquisition Agreement, and if
default, Fragrant River would take further action to protect its
interest without further notice.
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On 16th July 2018, Lucky Famous as the plaintiff commenced
court action (HCA No. 1646 of 2018) at the Court of First
Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong against Fragrant River
as the 1st defendant and the Company as the 2nd defendant
(the “Lucky Famous Action”). Lucky Famous claimed against
Fragrant River and the Company for (a) the Adjustment Amount
of HK$20,400,000; (b) interests; (c) costs; and (d) further and/or
other relief.

Notwithstanding the Fragrant River Demand Letters, no
payment under the AP Acquisition Agreement was received
from any of Very Easy, City Link, Chan or Lim.

Lucky Famous applied to amend the writ and statement of
claim to join Chan and Lim as defendants in the Lucky Famous
Actions for certain claims against them. The Court allowed the
application of Lucky Famous on 24th September 2019.

On 1st February 2021, Lucky Famous, Fragrant River, the
Company, Very Easy, City Link, Chan and Lim, without
admission of any liability in relation to the Lucky Famous
Action, entered into a settlement agreement (the “Settlement
Agreement”) to settle all claims and complaint against each
other arising out of the Lucky Famous Action, Fragrant River's
Claim and any amount of any other nature arising out of or
in connection with the AP Disposal Agreement and the AP
Acquisition Agreement (collectively the “Dispute Matters”).
Under the Settlement Agreement, Fragrant River and the
Company paid Lucky Famous a sum of HK$1,500,000 (the
“Settlement Payment”) in full and final settlement of the
Dispute Matters. Very Easy, City Link, Chan and Lim do not
need to pay any amount to Fragrant River for the settlement of
the Fragrant River’s Claim under the Settlement Agreement.
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In view of (1) the said legal proceedings under the Lucky
Famous Action among Lucky Famous, Fragrant River, the
Company, Chan and Lim having lasted for more than 2.5 years
that the Group has already incurred considerable legal costs
in this respect and that, should the Group continue the said
legal proceedings under the Lucky Famous Action and the
Fragrant River's Claim, it is estimated that the Company will
further incur a substantial amount of legal expenses; and (2)
the uncertainty of the outcome of the said legal proceedings of
Lucky Famous Action and Fragrant River’s Claim, the directors
of the Company consider that the entering into the Settlement
Agreement is fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Before entering the Settlement Agreement, without admitting
any liability to Lucky Famous under the AP Disposal Agreement
and also without prejudice to any rights and remedies against
Very Easy, City Link, Chan and/or Lim under the AP Acquisition
Agreement, the Group recorded the fair value of the contingent
consideration payable for the Lucky Famous Action and the
contingent consideration receivable for the Fragrant River's
Claim at HK$20.4 million and HK$ Nil respectively in the
Group’s audited consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June
2020 in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards. As a result of the entering into the Settlement
Agreement, the Group will record an unaudited one-off gain
of approximately HK$18.5 million on the written back of the
contingent consideration payable during the Year which is
calculated based on the difference between (i) the fair value
of the contingent consideration payable at HK$20.4 million as
at 30th June 2020 and (i) the Settlement Payment of HK$1.5
million and other costs paid by the Group for the Lucky Famous
Action. The Group paid the Settlement Payment by internal
resources. The directors of the Company consider that there
will be no material adverse impact on the financial position of
the Group as a result of the Settlement Payment. Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 1st February 2021 for
the details of the Settlement Agreement.
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OUTLOOK

COVID-19 vaccination programs have been launched on its
full swing in many countries, we expect that the spread of
COVID-19 in the world will be under control and the Group’s
operations will gradually recover in coming years. Looking
forward, we will continue to devote ourselves to invest and
produce quality films in PRC and Hong Kong in response to the
recovery of the film market. To take up the strong demand of
financial printing services in Hong Kong, we will continue invest
in our financial printing services to increase our market share
and improve our services and operation efficiency. In order
to minimize the negative effect of COVID-19 pandemic to our
trade, wholesales and retail of optical and watches products
business segment, we will continue to implement cost control
measures and adjust our business strategic from time to time
in response to the change in the market.

The Group will closely monitor the changing business
environment and seek out opportunities for long-term
sustainable and steady growth. Furthermore, we will
carefully pursue all potential viable investment and business
opportunities to further develop existing business segments
while also expanding the customer base as well as deepening
relationships with current customers.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30th June 2021, the Group had cash balances and time
deposits with maturity over three months at acquisition of
approximately HK$375.9 million (2020: approximately HK$106.9
million) and HK$ Nil, respectively (2020: approximately
HK$108.6 million). As at 30th June 2021, the Group had
total assets of approximately HK$1,051.8 million (2020:
approximately HK$683.8 million).

The Group’'s gearing ratio as at 30th June 2021 was
approximately 4.2% (as at 30th June 2020: approximately
4.4%), which was calculated on the basis of the Group's total
debt (including borrowings, lease liabilities and bank overdraft)
divided by total equity of the Group.
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As at 30th June 2021, the Group's current ratio (defined as
total current assets divided by total current liabilities) was
approximately 1.11 (as at 30th June 2020: approximately 1.03).

The Group incurred financial cost of approximately HK$532,000,
which is attributable to the interest on lease liabilities during
the Year (2020: approximately HK$542,000).

In light of the fact that most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi. The Group will continue to take proactive
measures and monitor its exposure to the movements of these
currencies closely.

As at 30th June 2021, the Group had Shareholders’ capital of
approximately HK$9.1 million (30th June 2020: approximately
HK$9.1 million). The Shareholders’ capital of the Company
is constituted of 906,632,276 shares (30th June 2020:
906,632,276 shares).

The Company did not carry out any fund raising activities by
issuing new shares of the Company during the Year (2020: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
ASSETS

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
assets during the Year.

THE PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30th June 2021, none of the Group's assets was pledged
to secure any liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30th June 2021, the Group employed 143 staff (2020:
101). Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staff
are entitled to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff
benefits included discretionary bonus, medical insurance
scheme and mandatory provident fund.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme
in compliance with the Listing Rules (the “Share Option
Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(1)

(2)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and any
invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

(@) any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity;

(b) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any invested entity;
(e) any person or entity that provides research,

development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;
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any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development
of any member of the Group or any invested entity;
and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of the
Group.

Maximum number of share options available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

(a)

The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share option granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes for the time being of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. Share options of the Company which
are lapsed or cancelled for the time being shall not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the said
30% limit; and

The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the dates
of approval of the Share Option Scheme unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the
Shareholders has been obtained.

(3)

(h)
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(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued upon
exercise of the share options granted and to be granted
to each grantee under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes for the time being of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant to each
grantee must not exceed 1% of the aggregate number of
shares for the time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of
the share options

There is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at
its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular share option. A share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period of 10 years
commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the last
day of the said 10 year period.

Payment on acceptance of the share options offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on
acceptance of the share option offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share option
is made and shall be at least the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant which must be
a business day; and (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the subscription price
should not be lower than the nominal value of a share.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme was issued
and outstanding during the Year (2020: Nil).
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 59, is the founder and
chairman of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate
strategy, business planning and development and overall
management of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of
experience in the film industry in Hong Kong. He was awarded
the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2002.

Mr. LAM Kit Sun, aged 44, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Group. He is responsible for the
financial and investments functions of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group in 2013, he has over 20 years' experience in
the field of financial reporting, financial management and audit
experience in the PRC and Hong Kong. He graduated from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a
bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration in Accounting.
Mr. Lam is a fellow and practicing member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
("ACCA"), an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and a non-practicing member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the
Group in August 2013.
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EERGREEAEHN

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAM Chi Keung (“Mr. CK Lam”), aged 51, holds a
bachelor’s degree of science in accounting awarded by Brigham
Young University-Hawaii in 1996. He also obtained a master's
degree of science in e-Commerce from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2002. Mr. CK Lam is a fellow of the HKICPA
and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 23 years of experience in accounting
and corporate finance. Since December 2016, Mr. CK Lam
has been an independent non-executive director of Nanfang
Communication Holdings Limited (stock code: 1617), whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
CK Lam joined the Group in December 2013.

Mr. CHOI Wing Koon, aged 44, is currently the financial
controller and company secretary of Huanxi Media Group
Limited (stock code: 1003), the shares of which are listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Choi holds a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in accounting awarded by the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999. Mr.
Choi also obtained a master degree of business administration
awarded by the University of Hong Kong in 2014. Mr. Choi is
a fellow of the ACCA and a member of the HKICPA. Mr. Choi
has over 15 years of experience in accounting and company
secretarial field. Mr. Choi is currently the independent non-
executive director of KuangChi Science Limited (stock code:
439), the shares of which are listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He joined the Group in December 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. TANG Yiu Wing, aged 54, is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong, and the founder and a partner of Ivan Tang & Co.. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in Laws, a postgraduate certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a master's
degree in Laws from The City University of Hong Kong. He is
a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong and is admitted
as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and
a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Tasmania. Mr.
Tang has been an independent non-executive director of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 530), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since September
2006 and an independent non-executive director of Jete Power
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8133), a company listed on
GEM, since April 2015. Mr. Tang was an independent non-
executive director of KSL Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8170),
a company listed on GEM, from March 2017 to May 2018. He
was also an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang
United Investment Holdings Group Limited (Stock code: 8366),
a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from 26th
July 2017 to 1st June 2019. He joined the Group in October
2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to attain and maintain high
standards of corporate governance best suited to the needs
and interests of the Group as it believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to
safeguarding interests of Shareholders and other stakeholders
and enhancing shareholder value. Accordingly, the Company
has adopted and applied corporate governance principles that
emphasise a quality board of Directors (the “Board”), effective
risk management and internal control systems, stringent
disclosure practices, transparency and accountability save as
specifically disclosed below.

The Board has adopted the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”). Continuous efforts are made to review and enhance
the Group's internal controls and procedures in light of changes
in regulations and developments in best practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (“CG CODE")
AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has, throughout the Year, complied with the
code provisions contained in the CG Code except for (i) the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code for the separation of the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") and (ii)
code provision A2.7 of the CG Code requiring the Chairman to
meet with the non-executive Directors as described below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code sets out that the roles of
the Chairman and CEO should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not at
present have any officer holding the position of CEO. Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil is the founder and Chairman of the Company
and has also carried out the responsibilities of CEO. Mr. Lam
possesses the essential leadership skills to manage the Board
and extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
Board considers the present structure to be more suitable to
the Group because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Group's strategies.
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Code provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the Chairman
to hold meetings at least annually with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the executive Directors present. As Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil, the Chairman, is also an executive Director, the
Company has therefore deviated from this code provision.

THE BOARD

Duties and Composition of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of business, strategic decisions and
financial performance of the Group for the best interests of
the Shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power, administration and operation of the Group
to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The Board regularly reviews its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate in view of the Group's prevailing
circumstances.

The following matters (including changes to any such matters)
are reserved for the approval of the Board:

(@) any matter determined by the Board to be material
involving any conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or a Director;

(b) any matter relating to the formulation of the Company’s
strategies and directions including:

(i) policies relating to the overall strategic direction and
strategic plans of the Company;

(i) policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

(i)  policies relating to the declaration of dividend; and

(iv) the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant
capital expenditure which are deemed to be material
by the Board.
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(c)

RERARE

financial controls, compliance and risk management:

()  the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

(i) the approval of the Company's consolidated
financial statements and published reports;

(i) the establishment and review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s systems of internal control and
risk management process; and

(iv)  the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

changes to the Company's capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities, other than in accordance with the terms
of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive schemes
adopted by the Company from time to time;

major appointments and removals:

() appointments to the Board, taking into account any
recommendations of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”);

(i) the appointment of the Chairman;

(i)  recommendation to the Shareholders on the
appointment or removal of the external auditor after
taking into consideration the recommendations of
the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”); and

(iv)  the appointment or removal of the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”).
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(f)  delegation of authority:

() changes to the terms of reference or membership
of any committee of the Board;

(i) changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

(i) matters which exceed the authority delegated to
the Chairman and the senior management.

(g) the adoption, review and approval of changes to the
Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,
the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors, with
two executive Directors, and three independent non-executive
Directors. The names and biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 31 to 33 of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, all of them have accounting professional
qualifications or a practising solicitor. Their mix of professional
skills and experience is beneficial to the Board to formulate the
long-term business strategies and monitor the operational and
financial matters of the Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

The list of the Directors has been published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively, and
is disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING/
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contributions to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company encourages Directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to
time.

All current Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, Mr.
Lam Kit Sun, Mr. Lam Chi Keung, Mr. Choi Wing Koon and
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing, had participated in continuous professional
development with respect to directors’ duties, relevant
programmes and seminars or had perused reading materials
and updated information in relation to business and industrial
development.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from
time to time to ensure that he is fully aware of his roles,
functions, duties and responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
governance policies of the Group.

A record of the training received by the respective Directors are
kept and updated by the Company Secretary.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee or by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director who is appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall retire at
the next annual general meeting.

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years pursuant to code provision
A4.1 of the CG Code. All Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and shall be eligible
for re-election in accordance with the provision of the Listing
Rules and the Bye-law(s). At least one-third of Directors shall
retire from office every year at the Company’s annual general
meeting.

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Choi Wing Koon will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2)
of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws"”) and Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Choi Wing Koon being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at such meeting.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for re-
election and the candidates who will be proposed to be elected
as Directors, please refer to the circular containing the notice
of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be despatched.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Each year, the Board normally holds two regular board
meetings at approximately half year interval. 5 board meetings
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each
Director at these meetings are set out as follows:

Board meeting

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 5/5
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 5/5
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Keung 5/5
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 5/5
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 5/5

ANNUAL AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with the Shareholders and in particular, communicates with
them in annual general meetings or other special general
meetings and encourages their participation.

1 annual general meeting and no special general meetings
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each

Director at these general meetings are set out as follows:

Annual General

Meeting
Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 11
Mr. Lam Kit Sun A
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 11
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 11
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 11

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 29th February 2012) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Mr. Lam
Chi Keung and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive Director,
namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management,
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy.

The model of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company is to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The main principles of the Group's remuneration policies are:

(@) no Director should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration;

(b)  remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration;

(c)  the management’s remuneration proposals should be
reviewed and approved by reference to corporate goal
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and

(d) recommendations should be made by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.
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2 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is set
out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 2/2
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 2/2
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 2/2

The Remuneration Committee assists the Group in the
administration of a fair and transparent procedure for setting
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives
of the Group. The responsibility for reviewing and determining
the remuneration package of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Group is delegated to the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has also approved the remuneration
and the discretionary bonuses of the executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group by reference to their
respective levels of responsibilities and performance, industry
benchmarks, prevailing market conditions and the Group’s
financial performance. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 30th August 2013) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Lam Chi Keung (as chairman), Mr. Choi
Wing Koon and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive Director,
namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, skills knowledge and length of service)
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes to complement
the Company's corporate strategy as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in attaining its strategic objectives and
achieving sustainable and balanced development of the Group.
In view of the new amendments of the CG Code in respect of
diversity of board members that has come into effect on 1st
September 2013, the Board has formulated and adopted its
diversity policy on 30th August 2013.

The nominations were made in accordance with the objective
criteria (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), with due regard for
the benefits of diversity. During the year, the Nomination
Committee conducted a review of the Board’'s composition.
The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board structure, size
and diversity annually and recommends any proposed changes
to the Board to complement Company’s corporate strategies.

1 committee meeting was convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is set
out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung (Chairman) 11
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 11
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 11
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Al
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11th October
1999. The written terms of reference (amended on 29th
February 2012), which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee, were prepared and adopted with reference
to “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in
accordance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Mr.
Tang Yiu Wing. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Audit Committee meets, at least twice a year, with the
external auditor to discuss any area of concern during the
audit or review. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group's financial and accounting practices,
internal control and risk management. It is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and final results of the Group.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

4 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of the each committee member at these meetings
are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 4/4
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 3/4
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement
of the external auditor, the revised accounting standards, the
interim consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 31st December 2020 and annual consolidated financial
statements for the Year. Based on its review and discussions
with management and the external auditor, the Audit
Committee was satisfied that the annual consolidated financial
statements for the Year were prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and fairly present the Group's
financial position and results for the Year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal control
systems and met with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligation prior to
the commencement of and after the completion of the audit.
For details about the internal control review, please refer to the
section headed "Risk Management and Internal Control” in this
report below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for, amongst other things,
the development and review of the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and monitoring the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and
reviewing the corporate governance compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the annual report.

The corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and
reviewing of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board must ensure that the Company establishes
and maintains effective risk management and internal control
systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and assets of the Company. The internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance.
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The Board oversees the Group's overall risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis through identifying
and grading risk components, perceiving control impact and
facilitating remediation plan. The development of our risk
management and internal control systems are largely based on
the framework as set down by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). The risk
management framework, coupled with our internal controls,
ensures the risks associated with our different business units
are effectively monitored, and are in line with the Group's risk
appetite.

The Group adopts the top-down approach to monitor the
principal risks affecting the business. The Board reviews and
approves the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems on an annual basis.

In respect to the absence of a separate internal audit
department in the Group, the Group reviews annually on
whether there is a need for such functional department. Given
the possibility to engage external professional assistance,
the Board opposes to divert resources to establish a separate
internal audit department.

During the Year, an external consultant had been engaged
by the Group to facilitate the Board and the Audit Committee
for the evaluation of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems. Through conducting an annual risk
assessment with the assistance of the external consultant, the
Group had identified and assessed the impact of the strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks of
its major businesses. A three-year rolling internal audit plan
was devised by the Group under a risk based approach with
reference to the results of the annual risk assessment. An
annual internal control review was performed by the external
consultant according to the approved internal audit plan
with a view to making recommendations for improving and
strengthening the internal control systems. The Board will
continue to work with the external consultant to discuss and
follow-up on the status of remediation of the internal control
weaknesses and to monitor the risks of the Group in the
coming years.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure
of inside information with the aim to ensure the insiders are
abiding by the confidentiality requirement and are fulfilling the
disclosure obligation of the inside information.
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Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system and reports the relevant results to the Board. For the
Year, the Board considered that a review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems had
been conducted and considered that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Crowe
(HK) CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report from pages 88 to 95 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. For the Year, the remuneration
payable to auditors is set out as follows:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Kit Sun is the company secretary of the Company.
His biographical details are set out under the section headed
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" of Directors and Senior Management Profile
on page 31 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Company adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code") as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code throughout the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a communication
channel between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held each year and
at a place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks
fit convene special general meetings.

The procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition.
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The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with the detail contact
information of the requisitionists and deposited with the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders” meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting, or
a special general meeting, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with the detail contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’'s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be
verified with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong (the
“Share Registrar”) and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting varies according to the nature of the proposal, and the
relevant notice periods are set out as follows:

° At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if
the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the
Company in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company
in a special general meeting.

o At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 20 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting.

Note: Business Day means any day on which the Stock Exchange is

open for the business of dealing in securities.
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The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

According to the Bye-laws, no person other than a retiring
Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless a notice in writing signed by
a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose such person for
election as a director and also a notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected (including that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules) shall be lodged with the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or the
Share Registrar’s place of business in Hong Kong provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the notices
are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of
such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

If such notice(s) are received less than ten business days prior
to the date of such general meeting, the Company will need to
consider the adjournment of such general meeting in order to
allow the Shareholders fourteen clear days' notice (the notice
period must include ten Business Days (Note)) of the proposal.

Note: Business Day means any day on which The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited is open for the business of dealing in
securities.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
the Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll
except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted by a show of hands.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
Shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
the Shareholders and the investment community to engage
actively with the Company.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
chairman of the Board, the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, or in their absence,
another member of the Board, committees or an appointed
representative, will attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting to answer questions of the Shareholders. The
Company will also invite representatives of the Auditors to
attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer the
Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 27th September
2019 ("Dividend Policy”) which shall take effect on 27th
September 2019. The Dividend Policy allows the Shareholders
to participate in the Company's profits by provision of dividends
whilst preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture future
growth opportunities.

According to the Dividend Policy, the Board shall consider
the following factors, among others, before proposing and
declaring dividends:

(i) the Company's operation and financial performance;

(i) the Company’s liquidity conditions;
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(i) the Company’s capital requirements and future funding
needs;

(iv) the Company's contractual restrictions;
(v)  the Company's availability of reserves; and
(vi)  the prevailing economic climate.

The declaration of dividends by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
the Listing Rules, Bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time by the
Board and may adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant
time. There can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum of association of the Company and the Bye-
laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively.
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (thereafter “Group” or
“We") is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") Report ("ESG Report”) which summaries
the Group's ESG policies, initiatives, approach, strategy as well
as performance of the ESG’s matters.

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Reporting Guide"”) in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The scope of this report will cover the Group’'s whole
range of business activities, including, video distribution,
film distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights (“Film Business”), trading, wholesaling and
retailing of optical products and watches (“Retail Business”),
money lending, leasing of investment properties, securities
investment, entertainment business and provisions of type-
setting, translation, printing, design, distribution of financial
print products and other related services (“Financial Printing
Business”) for the year ended 30th June 2021.

It is also the intention of the management to provide an
overview of the Group’s direction in managing ESG related
matters and the Group's initiatives on further developing
the concept of ESG to employees, customers and suppliers,
putting them into practices in our daily operations, driving for
ESG initiatives throughout the Group, and communicating our
ESG performance result with our stakeholders by this ESG
Report.
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5 HERERRE

ESG GOVERNANCE

Delivering the best entertainment, services and products
while generating revenue and profit for our shareholders,
and recognising the importance and contributing to both
the environment and local community have always been
one of our guiding principles. ESG is thus considered a high
priority within the Group, and is especially championed by our
senior management. We endeavors to develop its business
sustainably, and contribute positively to the environment and
the society where its business operates.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) bears
the ultimate responsibility in ESG governance and sets forth
the overall ESG policies, approach, and strategy. Further, the
Board is obligated to evaluate and determine ESG-related risks
and ensure effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place. Disclosures in this ESG Report are
approved by the Board.

With powers delegated by the Board, ESG working
group, which is comprised of the senior management and
representatives from different departments, was set up to
implement the Board's ESG strategies and policies across
departments of the Group, carry out materiality assessments,
evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's ESG related risk
management and report its recommendations to the Board.

An information and data collection template is used for
collecting ESG information and data from relevant departments
and business units of the Group. The ESG Report is prepared
based on the information and data collected. The ESG working
group also supervises the collection of ESG data and assists
the preparation of this ESG Report. Key performance indicators
relating to the Group’s environmental and social performance
are highlighted in the paragraphs below.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We understand fully that standalone effort is minimal and
therefore see the engagement of its stakeholders as essential.
To extend its efforts to a broader audience, we had consulted
both its internal and external stakeholders on its potential
impact on the environment and society as a result of its
business operations. We understand and values relationship
with customers and suppliers, and thus included both parties
as our consultation targets.

The table below presents key stakeholders of the Group as
well as how the Group communicate with them through a
variety of engagement channels during the year.

Internal Stakeholders

o The Board

° Management

° General Staff

External Stakeholders

o Shareholders

° Customers

o Suppliers

° Local Community Groups

We engage our internal and external stakeholders through
a huge variety of communication channels, including but
not limited to the Company’s annual general meetings, the
Group's annual and interim reports, ESG report, Company's
website, shareholders meetings, company activities, customer

satisfaction survey, community services and business
meetings.
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5 HERERRE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

During the preparation process of this ESG report, the Group
adheres to the following fundamental reporting principles
outlined in the ESG Reporting Guide:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Materiality analysis

Materiality analysis is performed annually to identify
the key ESG issues that are material to our business
operations. We invite various groups of key stakeholders
to participate in a stakeholder engagement exercise
to identify the material sustainability topics for the
ESG Report. We also identify most relevant issues by
reviewing peer companies’ ESG priorities. The results
were then reviewed and approved by the Board.

In this reporting year, a total of thirteen material topics
were identified including (i) greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emission; (i) waste management; (iii) use of resources;
(iv) reducing GHG emission and resources conservation,
(v) employment, labour standard and practices; (vi)
equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination,
(vii) occupational health and safety; (viii) development
and training; (ix) supply chain operating practices and
management; (x) product responsibility; (xi) anti-corruption
and anti-money laundering; (xii) data privacy compliance;
and (xiii) community. In response to the impact that these
issues may cause to our business operations, we have
formulated suitable measures and policies to address
these issues. For details of the policies and the relevance
of the topics to our operations, please refer to the
corresponding chapters of this report. We welcome any
feedback and comments from stakeholders to advance
towards a sustainable future.

Quantitative

We compared the year-to-year environmental and
social data and discussed with the management on its
implications.

Consistency

We adopted a consistent environmental data treatment
approach to allow a fair comparison of our environmental
performance over time.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group's business does not involve in the production-
related direct air, water, or land pollutions, and thus do not
contribute to any material impact in these areas. For the year
ended 30th June, 2021, there were no confirmed incidents
of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating
to air and climate resilience and GHG emissions, and illegal
generation and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

The Group recognises the importance of developing policies
and strategies in line with best practices to address climate
change risks and mitigate the associated impacts on the
Group's business operations. Climate change risks, such
as rising sea levels, extreme weather events and rising
temperatures, can impact the Group’s business, assets and
stakeholders. Therefore, we are committed to doing its part
to combat climate change and conserve our recourses by
monitoring the Group’s most relevant environmental issues as
follow:

° GHG emission;
° Waste management;
° Use of resources; and

° Reducing GHG emission and resources conservation

GHG Emission

The Group's primary business activities branch into Film
Business, Retail Business and Financial Printing Business. The
business nature of the Group’s Film Business, Retail Business
and Financial Printing Business does not involve direct or
significant emission of GHG from industrial or combustion
process. In other words, the Group concluded that there is no
material impact found, through direct GHG emission, to the
environment as a result of its business operations.
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5 HERERRE

Regardless, the Group brought itself forward to examine EiRlfi  NEBP N EEFBEEBEL
the indirect GHG emissions generated via its operations. E’Uﬁaﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁmﬁmﬁl BiEER - A%
The assessment indicated that electricity consumption, fuel BEEHXBEHANEIMEEZEREREES
consumption of own vehicles for transportation, staffs’ air B =EJREE - Atk - NEE R Fit mEH K
travel are three of the most significant contributions to such.  ¥R&ZF :
The Group thus reports on the captioned air emissions as
follow:
GHG emissions from the Group's operations: REREEEBHRE RSB -
For the year For the year
ended ended
30th June 2021 30th June 2020
BE-_ZF-_—F #HE-_ZT-ZTF
~NB=t+H ~NA=+H
Unit By IEEE IEFE
Scope 1 Direct GHG HE1TEEZEZE tonnes CO, ME_S(LIREE 46.1 171
emissions TEEHEM equivalent
Scope 2 Indirect GHG ~ #E2E#EAZE tonnes CO, MI-&LIxE= 587.8 348.0
emissions REEHER equivalent
Scope 3 Other indirect ~ #ESHEABEE  tonnes CO, WI—&/LIxE=E 0.8 13.8
GHG emissions BEREH equivalent
ke
Total GHG emission BEREHM  tonnes CO, ME—_SLEE 634.8 378.9
w=E equivalent
GHG emission intensity JEZEREHMN  tonnes CO, WA — S 0.0011 0.0017
B equivalent/ HEE S
revenue (FHBT)
(HK$'000)

Due to the nature of the Group’s operation, emissions of
nitrogen, oxides, sulphur oxides, particular matter and other
air pollutants are not considered significant in the Group's
operations.

The Group will continue to monitor its operational activities
to ensure its GHG emission maintains at a satisfactory
level. Further information shall be disclosed should there be
significant changes to the reported GHG emission levels.
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Waste Management

The Group’s core business involves only Film Business, Retail
Business and Financial Printing Services. However, there were
an insignificant amount of chemicals used during the filming
process (<1 tonne), of which were disposed of safely and
legally by licensed operators. Overall, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with related laws or regulations in
regards to such matters and will continue its strict monitoring
practices.

For non-hazardous waste, the Group had been cautious about
waste generation from daily activities, and have worked closely
with employees and partnered with suppliers on reducing solid
waste. The Group promoted the culture of recycling, and had
placed recycling bins in easy-to-access locations to increase
employees’ awareness on recycling. The Group promotes the
paper-less working environment. The Group’s office, retail
and other business activities generated daily wastes from its
operation. For this reporting period, Wastes were produced as
follows:

Unit

Hazardous Waste BEEBEEY Total Sum
(tonne)

Non-Hazardous Waste  EEEEEY) Total Sum
(tonne)

Use of Resources

The Group is an environmentally friendly company, and actively
promotes the culture of “Efficient & Green” operations.
Continued from last year, the Group had continued its efforts
to encourage employees to consume resources smartly,
particularly on paper and electricity.
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RE  #HEREREE

Initiatives such as the adoption of energy conservation practices R ETRLE N S RENEERNER AEH
were successfully implemented in the offices in the past years. 1T - i & TIRMESFFHHNBRFEA LG
Latest environmental trends and green tips were available fit+ @ HERBGWMULEAETOFEAER
to employees as constant reminders for responsible use of KAZR o 4N BFICHEESENREE
natural resources. In addition, suitable facilities management 12 - LB RIZEBETRAEFTUR K E T4
were in place to identify building services that require upgrades & /E AR KIEF RS ©

for improved building efficiency and employee comfort.

A summary of the Group’s consumptions on natural resources AEBRAREHE R AREREDEE 0
during this reporting period is provided as below: ™

Consumption ltem ¥HEH

Electricity Consumption S

Water Consumption Rk

Petroleum Consumption 5 H#E M

Diesel Consumption SoBfEA

Electricity Consumption FAEEE
Intensity

Water Consumption FAKe&E
Intensity

Unit

kWh

L

L

L

kWh/
revenue
(HK$'000)
L/revenue
(HK$'000)

For the year For the year
ended ended

30th June 2021 30th June 2020
BE-2——F BE_ZT_ZF
AB=+H NA=+H

B IEEE IEFE

TR 828,554 539,492

NI 482,000 835,000

NF 16,607 6,776

NF 1,600 -

TR, Wz 1.4 2.4
(F#T)

A & 0.8 3.7
(F#&T)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Environmental, Social & Governance Report

Reducing GHG emissions and resources conservation

We aim to realise environmental sustainability, minimise the
adverse impacts on the environment brought by our business
activities and address the climate change risks in the Group's
operations. The Group is now working toward to reduce
the average annual GHG emission intensity and electricity
consumption intensity in coming 5 years by 20% from 2020
baseline. In order to achieve the above targets, we set out
the following measures to reduce GHG emissions and energy
consumptions as follow:

= air conditioners are set to 23 to 25 Celsius degree;

- employees are encouraged to switch off the idle electrical
appliance to minimise non-essential energy consumption;

- alternative communication channels, such as
videoconferencing and conference calls, are preferred
over unnecessary business travel;

- encourage and support the use of electric vehicles;

- communicating and encouraging customers, contractors,
suppliers and other stakeholders to reduce carbon
emissions in daily operations whenever practicable;

- documents were to be printed or copied double-sided;

- e-marketing material, such as greeting cards were to be
sent via electronic means only; and

- monitoring and responding to market and technological
shifts, regulatory and policy changes associated with
climate change.

The Group will continue to put its best efforts on minimizing
GHG emission, enhancing overall performance and operation
efficiency to save energy through working closely with its
stakeholders.
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SOCIAL

The business of the Group spreads across several industry
sectors. In particular, the Film Business involves working
with a large number of individuals across various industries.
The Group understands the best way to attract or retain
talents is by offering competitive compensations, and treating
employees fairly and equally in regardless of culture, gender
and interests, while complying to laws and regulations. As
one of its guiding principles, the Group commits to growing
its business sustainably and in a socially responsible manner,
whilst continuing its best management practices to improve in
areas as needed.

Employment, Labour Standard and Practices

The Group truly understands that its success depends on the
seamless teamwork among employees and thus recognises
its people as one of the most valuable assets in contributing
toward its achievements. The Group trusted that the works
of excellence must be well compensated, and therefore
have always offering a market competitive remuneration and
benefits scheme to its own employees.

The Group is an Equal Opportunity Employer (EOQE). This means
that it is committed to equal treatment of all employees without
regard to race, national origin, religion, gender, age, sexual
orientation, veteran status, physical or mental disability or other
basis protected by law. The Employment Policy of the Group
accords to and exceeds the requirements of the Employment
Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, aiming to provide a fair
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity and
anti-discrimination scheme for all of our employees.
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During the employment process, the Group made it clear to
responsible recruitment employees that any discrimination
acts against the EOE would not be tolerated. The same policy
extends to its internal training and promotion practices. The
human resource department would also be responsible for
ensuring compliance with all regulations during the employee
recruitment process, where curriculum vitaes and identification
cards are carefully reviewed to prevent any cases of the
employment of child or forced labour, or junior members under
the age of 16 years old as full-time staff. Any breach of such
action will be reported to the company’s senior management
revision and subjected to further company disciplinary action.

In the reporting period between 1st July 2020 to 30th June
2021, the Group has found no material breach of relevant laws
and regulations during operation.

To ensure the remuneration scheme stays competitive, the
Group had established a Remuneration Committee since
15th July 2005, and with the principle duties of making
recommendations to the Board on the Group's Remuneration
Policy, structure of the Directors and senior management, and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing Remuneration Policy. In addition, the Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for giving suggestions to the
Board on remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and members of the senior management. In detail,
the principles of the Group’s remuneration policies consist of:

(@) ensuring no Director should be involved in deciding his or
her own remuneration;

(b)  ensuring remuneration should be determined by taking
into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment, levels of
responsibilities, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration;
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RE  #HEREREE

(c)  reviewing and approving the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to corporate goal and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(d) recommending the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee will also meet regularly to
determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors and
assess the performance of Executive Directors and certain
senior management of the Group.

The Group employee’s emolument is determined by the
Remuneration Committee, and it will be assessed based
on merit, qualifications and competence. Remuneration is
reviewed annually and certain employees are entitled to
commission. In addition to basic salaries, employee benefits
included discretionary bonuses, medical insurance scheme and
the mandatory provident fund as stipulated by law.

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees
employed.

During the year ended 30th June 2021, the total contributions
paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the Group amounted
to approximately 1.7 million (2020: approximately HK$1.7
million), which had been recognized as expenses and
included in employee costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination

The Group’s Corporate Policy includes provisions on handling
discrimination, harassment and victimisation in the workplace.

The Group acquires talents based on their merits to fit in and
contribute to the company regardless of their gender and
age. Together with a transparent employment process, a fair
appraisal, remuneration and incentive scheme, the Group has
attracted a profile of diversified workers to join their workforce.
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The following table provided an overview of its employee’s
gender, age distribution and turnover with a total of 143
(2020: 101) employees recorded last per June 2021 during the

reporting period:

Total workforce

Total workforce by
gender

Male

Female

Total workforce by
age group

Below 30 years old

30-50 years old

Over 50 years old

Total workforce by
employment type

Full time

Part time

Total workforce by
geographical region

Hong Kong

PRC

The Group had issued a comprehensive Employee Handbook,
providing the basis for human resources management about
the employment policy, welfare and benefits, leave and rest 12
days, conduct and discipline, occupational health and safety
policy, personal data (privacy) policy and equal opportunity
policy. All employees were handed a copy of such handbook
upon employment. Any updates to the Group’s employment
policies would be made transparent through electronic means
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For the year ended

30th June 2021
BE-Z-_—F
ANA=THLEE
No. of Turnover
people rate %
A TKEY%
143 44.3
71 46.3
72 42.6
33 68.9
82 30.6
28 56.4
139 42.0
4 66.7
98 56.1
45 23.0
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or other appropriate methods to staff members affected.

During the period from 1st July 2020 to 30th June 2021, there R-ZE-_ZF+ H—

was no reported material breach of related regulations and

laws.
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For the year ended
SOth June 2020

Aﬂf+E¢¢E
No. of Turnover
people rate %
ANEL MEEY%
101 34.3
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64 38.6
28 55.4
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Occupational Health and Safety

As a socially responsible company, the Group places great
emphasis on workplace safety, especially for its film making
activities that occasionally involves activities of high risks to
workers, such as working from height, controlled explosions,
stuntman performances, use of equipment and chemicals etc.

The Group’'s health and safety practices accords to the
guideline from HKSAR Labour Department (section
“QOccupational Safety & Health”), where safety equipment,
measures, practices are enforced per requirement. Sufficient
lighting, air ventilation and spacious working areas are provided
in all premises to minimise occupational health risks imposed
to workers.

Furthermore, the Group safeguards its workplace from
unanticipated events that would require an immediate
evacuation, such as under the accident of fire, and employees
are required to participate in the office building’s regular fire
drills. The building management also provided clear signs and
instructions for emergency incidents (such as the access to
fire safety route or rally points). The participation of these drills
is mandatory for all employees and it were conducted during
office hours.

For the film division, safety practices are part of the daily
routine and it is applied at all times. The Group’'s management
team makes periodic visits to ensure all safety practices
were implemented, and to review potential health and safety
risks, or any accidents that may occur. The Group provides
appropriate safety guidelines and equipment to all workers
exposed to safety risks such as Personal Protection Equipment
(PPE), fire extinguishers, emergency evacuation procedures,
and appropriate training to actors or actresses working on
action movies etc. Special insurance is provided to relevant
employees working in such conditions to ensure the best
assistance would be available should any cases of injuries
happen.

The Group also employs third-party contractors to perform
regular check-ups for filming equipment to ensure they are in a
good condition.

BikfEmEL e

ER—REHEAEENRR  AEEER
TESMNEZE  LERBRIRTAKRSE
SEBENEZEIERL  WRZETHE -
THEE - BRAKRE - ERESRIMEER
AEEMRFEEZ 2EPBIEEB T RN
BImmEsl((BEXL2MEFE]—F) A
MZ2®RE BEMERGRAENT -
SR EFRBRE - BERGIANER
MITER B8 TAXHNBERERREE
R®IE -

o REBEREBETHESMRXFEEL
BEE BN EM (D) - T B THBES MM
REANBERNEMNERE - KEERT
PRHUB MR 36 S 48R (DI A B RD %2 2 20 £ BE 47
HEER) - FTAEBE T MASE ERRAK
FEITRRS -

BEXRETE  2EOIEMTITEN—3
7 ABRERTT - AEEEREBEGKE B
EHNEREZ2BOSART - LERH
ERABERERZEEAREAEELENT
B - AEBRAXZZREBRNMEET
RESENZEZESILRE - MEARER
#(PPE) - BAH ESHEREFUARRZ
HEERNBLORBIRESEEIF - M
EREAHRETIENHBEIRESRR
R BREIEXGHARFZEZENR

¥ o

AEENEAES P AR AEYRERT
EHIRS - RRERRBIORE -

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Environmental, Social & Governance Report

During the reporting period from 1st July 2020 to 30th June
2021, the Group is happy to report that there is no material
non-compliance breach with relevant standards, rules and
regulations, and did not involve in any accidents that has
caused serious injuries to its workers. The number of work
related fatalities and lost days due to work injury is zero during
the reporting period.

Development and Training

The Group's business involves producing products in the
entertainment and retail industry and provision of financing
printing services. In order to stay competitive, periodic trainings
for employees are required for the Group to stay abreast with
the latest market development. Great emphasis was placed on
training and equipping employees with the latest market trend
for career advancement.

Despite considerable training costs involve, the Group adheres
to nurturing talents internally to enhance the overall capability
of its workforce.

The following reports on training received by staff and its
distribution by gender and employee category.

For the year ended
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For the year ended

30th June 2021 30th June 2020
BE-Z-_—F HE_T_F
ANA=THLEE NA=TRHLEFE
Training Training Training Training
ratio % hours ratio % hours
A 2% 12 S B B Bt E % b= [i3
Training ratio and 1 BI85 193 5
hours by gender LR R RE
Male B 40.8 644 40.5 255
Female M 54.2 1,058 57.8 424
Training ratio and RERI 5D a3
hours by category bR 8
Senior Management BRERE 100 60 100.0 60
Management TIBE 60.7 185 50.0 219
Staff 8T 43.4 1,457 50.7 400
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The Group respects intellectual property rights and should
report any infringement on copyrights should any of such
act discovered within the scope of the Group’s management
capability. Its customer database is maintained in strict
confidentiality to safeguard consumer data and their privacy.

Supply Chain Operating Practices and Management

The nature of the Group's business requires to work with
numbers of stakeholders from various sectors. As reported
in last year's ESG report, the Group maintains an open
engagement channel with suppliers that includes procedures to
conduct regular meetings and interviews (for new suppliers).

The Group examines qualifications of its suppliers. Required
business licenses, trademark registration certificates, trademark
use authorizations, product testing reports, and customs duty
certificates are inspected to ensure its validity. Suppliers would
be assessed based on product knowledge, after-sales service,
marketing strategies to ensure the Group’s standards can be
met.

The Group only sources raw materials for its goods from
reputable suppliers. The Group exerts its influence, as a buyer,
to ensure suppliers provide products that comply to local and
international regulations.

The Group collaborates with its business partners to deliver
quality products and services with sustainability attributes to its
customers. The Group encourages its contractors and suppliers
to observe the Group's core values and to adhere to ethical as
well as socially and environmentally responsible practices.

Regular monitoring and annual performance reviews of
registered suppliers are conducted to minimize environmental
and social risks in the supply chain. The Group also has
standard approach and criteria to assess the performance of
suppliers and contractors.
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Number of suppliers by geographic region:

Hong Kong BE
PRC and other Asian countries F7 B K H {25 1 B R
(other than Hong Kong) (BABBRIN

Product Responsibility

The Group’s business spreads across the retail and wholesale
of goods and production of movies. It is therefore anticipated
that the Group has a complicated product management
portfolio due to its subjection to various applicable laws and
regulations. Continued from last year's ESG report, details of
the Group's product responsibility are summarised as below.

Retails Products — Eyewear

The following ordinances and procedures have been adhered to
regarding the sales of eyewear products:

° Qualified optometrists are present in all of the Group's
eyewear retail shops;

° Eye-tests are conducted by such professionals according
to the section 12(1)(a) of the Supplementary Medical
Professions Ordinance (Chapter 359 of the Laws of Hong
Kong);

° Contact lens are only recommended to customers by
optometrists when a valid prescription is provided (under
section 7.4 of the Code of Practice of the Optometrists
Board);

° Only real and genuine products are offered (under the
Trade Description Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), where false trade descriptions, misleading or
incomplete information and mis-statements in respect of
goods provided in all sales activities) are strictly prohibited
in all of the Group’s shops;
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° Products are directly purchased from the manufacturers
and authorized wholesalers, where invoices and
authorizing documents are provided on re-selling goods;

° Performance of “Triple” quality check-up process
before products are sent to shops (performed by buyer,
procurement officer and front-line sales employees);

° “Table of Tolerance” quality check to be performed on
the lenses upon product arrival to shop. The check is
prepared by the professional association in the Hong
Kong Optical Industry as a quality check up on the contact
lenses, ensuring the status of the expiration of these
lenses are valid before re-selling to customers; and

° Protection of customers’ data and privacy by denying
unauthorised access to customers’ information.

Under the current reporting year, which is from 1st July 2020
to 30th June 2021, the Group has not received any complaints
regarding its eyewear products and services.

Retails Products —Watches

The Group closely monitors its offered watch products,
especially in relation to safety issues. A consistent update is
performed safeguarding the Group with the compliance to
up-to-date laws and regulations related to watch products,
ensuring the accuracy of the advertised information and labels,
and avoiding any misrepresentation leading to a breach of law.
On the other hand, regular communication is conducted with
suppliers, updating the latest trend on regulation and measures
accordingly.

During its procurement process, the Group relies on a
comprehensive Procurement Policy set by the senior
management. Only genuine goods with relevant trademark
registration certificates or trademark authorisation documents,
or directly from brand owners or brand authorised distributors,
will be procured for resell purposes. Testing reports are
requested from suppliers, while warehouse keepers will also
perform quality control checks to ensure the quality of watches
are up to standard before shipping to shops for sales.
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The Group applies the same Data Protection and Privacy Policy
throughout the business. Customer data are stored in a Point
Of Sales (POS) system, where senior grade employees, with
appropriate authorisation, are able to access such database,
and no data shall be released to any third party under any
circumstances.

There was no complaint received in relation to the Group's
watches sold during this reporting period.

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering

The Group is committed to the highest standard of corporate
governance, and aims to maintain the same vision with its
policies in transparency, uprightness and accountability.

It is at the heart of the Group’s business to operate in an
ethical, personal and professional manner. Any activity relating
to corruption, commercial bribery, extortion, money-laundering
and other fraudulent activities would not be tolerated. Conflict
of interests will be reported, to prevent the possible occurrence
of inside-dealing or any criminal regime in client transactions.
Regular anti-corruption, and money laundering training and
circulars are provided to employees to remain cautious on
suspicious transactions.

The compliance manual of the Group has set out policies and
procedures for anti-corruption and anti-money laundering. All
employees are required to be read and acknowledge such
compliance manual. There are Whistleblowing Policy in place
for reporting suspicious fraudulent actions, misconduct,
malpractice and irregularities to the Board.

We encourage employees to raise and report any concerns
in confidence about misconduct, malpractice or irregularities
in any matters related to the Group to the Board. The
confidentiality of all reporting persons is strictly protected
and every reasonable effort will be made to maintain the
confidentiality, to ensure that no retaliation will result from
reports or complaints on reportable misconduct made in good
faith. The mechanism will be followed by careful investigation
procedures to ensure all complaints are treated promptly and
fairly.
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In addition, annual training in anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering is provided for employees, including Executive
Directors, in collaboration with the Independent Commission
Against Corruption and other regulators. The training covers
issues such as integrity in operations, works supervision and
the reporting of the suspicious transactions.

During the current reporting period, the Group had no litigation
in relation to corruption and money laundering activities
identified, involving the Group and its employees.

Data Privacy Compliance

The Group is dedicated to protect the privacy and confidentiality
of personal data from employees, clients, business partners,
and other identifiable individuals. The Group’'s employees are
instructed to handle confidential information with due care.
Information is only collected and used in a responsible and
non-discriminatory manner, and restricting the use of the
information for the purposes consistent with those identified in
the contracts. Generally, the laws and regulations affecting the
Group includes the Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter
362 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group
will stay alert to the relevant legal issues and update its internal
policies when necessary to avoid any breach of the regulatory
requirements.

There were no issues occurred concerning data privacy in this
reporting period.
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COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to serve and give back to the local
community and contribute to social services. The Group's
management team encourage employees to join all of these
activities, which reflects management team’s commitment to
sustainable development. The Group believes by encouraging
employees to participate in a wide range of charitable events,
community awareness will be raised, and more people will
be inspired to take part in serving our community. However,
due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
social distant measures imposed by the PRC and Hong Kong
government during the reporting period, the Group did not take
part in any charitable and community activities nor performed
any volunteer services during the reporting year. Nevertheless,
the Group will continue to support these meaningful social
events in the future.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Universe Entertainment and Culture
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30th June 2021
(the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 98
to 100.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (for the year ended 30th June 2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the Year are set out
in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 30 of
this annual report.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the shareholders of the Company (”“Shareholders”) by
reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation during the
Year (2020: HK$Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 307 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30th June 2021
amounted to HK$129,396,000 (2020: HK$132,252,000) including
contributed surplus, of HK$597,789,000 (2020: HK$597,789,000),
which is only distributable subject to conditions as set out in
Note 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 308 of
the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
Year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.
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(b)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion,

invite any person

belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and any
invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity (individually,
an "Employee”);

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development
of any member of the Group or any invested entity;
and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of the
Group.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Maximum number of share options available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

(i) The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share option
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Share options of
the Company which are lapsed or cancelled for the
time being shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the said 30% limit; and

(i)~ The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Schemes
is an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the dates of approval
of the Share Option Schemes unless approval for
refreshing the 10% limit from the Shareholders has
been obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
for the time being of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant to each grantee must not
exceed 1% of the aggregate number of shares for the
time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of
the share options

There is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at
its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular share option. A share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period of 10 years
commencing on the Date of Grant and expiring on the
last day of the said 10-year period.
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(f)  Payment on acceptance of the share options offer
A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on
acceptance of the share option offer.

(g) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share option
is made and shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant which must
be a business day; and (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the subscription price
should not be lower than the nominal value of a share.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme was issued
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and outstanding during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr. LAM Kit Sun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LAM Chi Keung

Mr. CHOI Wing Koon

Mr. TANG Yiu Wing
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Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Choi Wing Koon will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2)
of the Bye-laws and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Mr. Choi
Wing Koon being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at such meeting.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for re-
election and the candidates who will be proposed to be elected
as Directors, please refer to the circular containing the notice
of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be despatched.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as
specified by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the above
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company is satisfied that they are independent as such.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, its holding company,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 30th June 2021, the interests of each of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares (within the
meaning of the SFO) which were required to be (a) notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interest which any such
Director was taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or;
(c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules are as follows:
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Notes:

(@) The trustee of the discretionary trust is Central Core Resources
Limited which owns the entire issued share capital of the
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited (“Globalcrest”) which in turn
was interested in 33,546,853 shares of the Company as at 30th
June 2021. Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil is the discretionary object
of the discretionary trust.

(b) Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited (“Pioneer Entertainment”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and is wholly-owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, was
interested in 430,120,020 shares of the Company as at 30th
June 2021.

All the interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2021, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
which were required to be (a) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests which they were deemed or taken to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part
XV of the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any
interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable)
of the Company and its associated corporations required to be
disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

In addition, at no time during the Year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, its associated company or
its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
in or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30th June 2021, Shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company disclosed above)
who had interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO are as
follows:

Name Capacity

28 g%

Pioneer Entertainment (Note a) Beneficial owner
Pioneer Entertainment(Ffi3Ea) EamlEA A

Note:

(a) Pioneer Entertainment, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Mr.
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2021, no other person
has any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company in the register required
to be kept by Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the Year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 4%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 7%
Sales

— the largest customer 15%
— five largest customers in aggregate 33%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited ("UDE"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
tenancy agreement with Universe Property Investment Limited
("UPI"), a company owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
(“Mr. Daneil Lam”), the executive Director of the Company,
for renting (1) an industrial unit on the 18th Floor of a 28-storey
industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium
plus a 2-level basement (with a saleable area of approximately
13,983 square foot) and (2) 5 carparking spaces on the 2nd
Floor of a 28-storey industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/car
parking podium plus a 2-level basement (“Rented Properties”)
for warehouse, ancillary office and carparking uses from 25th
February 2018 to 24th February 2021, with a monthly rental
of HK$244,000 (the “Old Tenancy Agreement”) which were
arrived at arm’s length negotiation between the Group and
UPI with reference to the rental valuation performed by Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent property
valuer, as at 22nd January 2018 which reflected the then
market rent.

BLBEE

REBAYEELEEERZRERBREX
R G BAHER -

TEHERKEF

AFEEAXREETIEHEHMNEPMEZE
ERIHERA DT ¢

Ed=y
B

- A ER 4%
- AAHERAE 7%
THER

-RAKFP 15%
- RAREFAR 33%

BEE  REZBMEASEABRRGLIESAR
HERARRREL% 2 A EER Ll £ R
HERHTP 2 -

ARFIHEL2ENBRAREFEIBREEGR
AR BT IRE ) BADNRRITE S M/
BEE((MEENEEZ AR ETMELRES
BRAR(EFWEREDRAE-T—N\F_A
—+HRAfRE-—E-——®€—-F—-+mA
A £244,0008 LA MBLER—H2ES
B AREEELTFEN2EL TE L28E
BIFEREZISEMN—EIESEN(UHEET
BHE13,983FFR)RQQLER—H2ES
B8 AREEESFAMEHTE 288
SIEREZ2EMSEGEC(HENEDA
ERE  BRERAEREEBIIIHERR
(EREW:z]  ZhEhAEBEEFTYE
RER2EB T Y EGEMS LRI HR
HEBRARR-_ZE—N\E—A -+ -HEL
MASHERBRERSMSHES) B ATERE
g(o

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021



As the Group has been using the Rented Properties since early
2000, the Directors considered that there will be considerable
time and cost saving (in terms of relocation and renovation) for
the Group to continue to lease the Rented Properties from UPI
after the expiry of the Old Tenancy Agreement. Therefore, on
29 January 2021, UDE entered into a new tenancy agreement
with UPI for renting the Rented Properties for warehouse,
ancillary office and carparking uses from 25th January 2021 to
24th February 2024 with a monthly rental of HK$244,000 (the
“Tenancy Agreement”) which were arrived at arm’s length
negotiation between the Group and UPI with reference to the
past monthly rental and the rental valuation performed by Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited as at 22 January 2021 which
reflected the then market rent.

During the Year, UDE has paid a total of HK$2,928,000 in
rent to UPI in respect of the Rented Properties in accordance
with the terms of the Old Tenancy Agreement and Tenancy
Agreement.

LISTING RULES IMPLICATIONS OF
THE CONNECTED TRANSACTION

In accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, the Group is required
to recognize an additional asset representing its right to
use Rented Properties, and as a result, the entering into
the Tenancy Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder will be regarded as acquisitions of assets by the
Group for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Daneil Lam, who is the founder, the chairman of the
Company, an executive Director and controlling shareholder
of the Company, is a Connected Person. Accordingly, UPI is
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Hence, the transactions contemplated under the Tenancy
Agreement, the payment of monthly rental payment under the
Tenancy Agreement will be regarded as one-off connected
transaction.
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As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
Value of Right-of-Use Assets under the Tenancy Agreement in
the amount of approximately HK$8,395,000 is more than 0.1%
but less than 5% and the Value of Right-of-Use Assets is more
than HK$3,000,000, the transactions contemplated under the
Tenancy Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but are exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 29th January 2021 for the details.

Apart from the above, there are other related party transactions
entered into by the Group during the Year, all of which
constituted exempted connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules, or did not fall under the definition of
"“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.
Details of these transactions are disclosed in Note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out in this report,
no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, or that requiring the Company to
enter into an agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as at 30th June 2021.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2021

Report of the Directors
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRES

Crowe

To the shareholders of Universe Entertainment and Culture
Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
(“the Company"”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 96 to 306, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 30th June 2021, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30th June 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

EELE (F8) SHMEHMERAT
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

8 REE TSIRET7R iBEP.0E
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Recoverability of accounts receivable
Refer to notes 3.1(b), 4(a)(ii) and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BYRBENHRES

B EAEIE

BREZFESRBERMANERHE
HEMEAVBERENERR/EZENSE
e REEREHGAVBRREBETE
UK EZERNE S TETRE - M
YAEBHZEEHREHRER -

=71 %
AN /7

FEYW AR5 2 i Y [B] 1
L2047 B B HRERMIFES. 1(b) ~ 4(a)(ii) 5220 °

The Key Audit Matter
EREZER

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

BN EZNAEEZSEE

The Group's operations gave rise to significant accounts
receivable at the end of the reporting period. Given the
size of the balances and the risk that some of the accounts
receivable may not be recoverable, judgement is required to
evaluate whether any allowance should be made to reflect
the risk. As at 30th June 2021, the Group’s gross accounts
receivable amounted to approximately HK$110,932,000,
against which loss allowance of approximately HK$2,067,000
was provided.

RBEER Y BEEBECEBEESKERER - ER4HEH
2 B R T e AR R RT AR A M B 2 LB - 28 4 B DA
AR AEELREABRHEARBRZAR - KT =—F A
=+H - EXEEZEREREELDR110,932,00087T ' 2
UL ETIRE BB EL /52,067,000 7T ©

Our audit procedures to assess the
recoverability of accounts receivable
included the following:

B E KRR 2 TR E 2 EZRFE
BATRIE :

o obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls relating to credit
control, debt collection assessing
the expected credit loss of accounts
receivable and recognising the loss
allowance of accounts receivable;

e TEHMEFEBEBEEREN  BEBHK
B - Vb IR SR TE B (E B 1R K i
RIEWERE R R B BN T
Z®Et - Bt FAEVERCRR

EFTRECEBERLDR —T-—FFH
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recoverability of accounts receivable (Continued)

AR EZSTE @)
JEW B 2> ATYRETHE (4E)

The Key Audit Matter
BREXSE

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

BMWERNAEEZSE

Loss allowance for accounts receivable is based on
management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit
losses which might be incurred, which is estimated by taking
into account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
accounts receivable, customers’ repayment history and
customers’ financial position and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions, all of which
involve a significant degree of management judgement.
JEWBE R 2 BB EE I ENERBE B e EE 2 2 T8 H
BEEEBR M  ELHKBEEEBELR S HEUER
MRl ~ B 2 EREHBLEF 2 M RRIA K& A &
FERB BB FHE MG - IEZSZERERA P REKR
REZEEEHE -

o comparing, on a sample basis, the
categorisation of accounts receivable
in the ageing report with invoices
issued, contract terms and other
relevant underlying documentation;

o  HBLEERERMEHEWER 2SR
HEBEHEHRE  SOKRREME
Bt
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recoverability of accounts receivable (Continued)

BYRBENHRES

FAEEZSIE @)
JEW B 2> ATYRETHE (4E)

The Key Audit Matter
BREXSE

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

BMWERNAEEZSE

We identified assessing the recoverability of accounts
receivable as a key audit matter because the assessment
of the recoverability of accounts receivable and recognition
of loss allowance are inherently subjective and requires
significant management judgement, which increases the risk
of error or potential management bias.

BB 2 AT E RS R REAREZEIR - RE
2 FEUBR T2 AT B I AT R B IR B 2 BERF BB 8
M FEEEEBELEARHE - BT ERIEBEEEER
RZEkg -

o assessing the reasonableness
of managements loss allowance
estimates by examining the
information used by management
to form such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical
default data, evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking
information and examining the
actual losses recorded during the
current financial year and assessing
whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising
loss allowances; and

s FRBRTEREEMZSFAEBGAZ
BH > AMEERERGBEREZS
B BEARELENER R
M AEEEEEEERREEA
KERARATEEERETES AR
RigERERIMBFERG 2 ERE
B UTEHERBEEERITLERF
EERBREZ2DR : &

o inspecting cash receipts, on a sample
basis, from customers subsequent to
the end of the reporting period relating
to accounts receivable as at 30th June
2021.

e IHEEE BRERREHAREZER
PUBRE-_ZT-_—FA=1+HZE
WERBBZRE °
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRES

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRES

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Wai Dune, Charles.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29th September 2021

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number P0O0712
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 30th June 2021 RZ-ZFE-—#FXXHA=+H

96

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2021 2020
IS I
—E——F —E-FF
~NA=t+H ~A=1+H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M FExT FHET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER T Y 6 17,130 17,271
Investment properties WEME 7 31,460 31,460
Other intangible assets HEm\mpEE 8 2,092 2,239
Film rights and films in progress BYRERBER2EY 9 278,195 221,760
Interests in associates RN 11 — -
Loan to an associate By —EBERFZER  21(b) - -
Loan receivable FERE R 21(a) 183 -
Film related deposits ES2 5 79,328 68,346
Deposits paid BfEI & 14 29,690 407
Deferred tax assets FRIEFIEE E 15 471 271
Other financial assets HthemEE 16 16,723 10,008
TR ... 98272 351,762
Current assets REEE
Inventories ENy 19 9,843 10,963
Accounts receivable JE Uk BR 3R 20 108,865 73,105
Loans receivable U E TR 21(a) 3,283 7,216
Amount due from an associate JE U — Bt 2 A B 12 = 53
Deposits paid, prepayments and BENE® - BRAFIER
other receivables H b eI SRR 14 20,458 21,020
Trading securities RGB5H 17 76,871 3,300
Other financial assets HEtemErE 16 48 -
Contingent consideration FEM AR E
receivable 22 - -
Contract assets BREE 32 423 -
Bank balances and cash RITEB MRS
- trust accounts - E5EERP 23 785 780
Time deposits with maturity over REBAREIERER
three months at acquisition =@ Az FEBEK 24 - 108,640
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB eEEY 24 375,924 106,949
_Total currentassets . mEEESE . ..............5%50 332,026
Total assets REE 1,051,772 683,788
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to the owners RATHB AEGER
of the Company
Share capital & 7 25 9,066 9,066
Share premium f&19 @ 8 27(a) 35,013 35,013
Other reserves E b 27(a) 546,264 547,995
Accumulated losses REtEsiE 27(a) (82,033) (236,378)
508,310 355,696
Non-controlling interests eI R M (2,843) (804)
Total equity R 505,467 354,892

......................................................................................................
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 30th June 2021 R=-ZFE=—#XHA=+H

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2021 2020
i »
—E-—F —ECERF
ANA=1H ~NA=+H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ihK=s FExT FHET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FkREBEE
Lease liabilities Tﬂfﬁﬁ 28 9,151 5,612
Deferred tax liabilities BLEHBERRE 15 102 84
e eet et eraateettatereratetetrmmaranrasrernesisnseiernseenesecess. N 9253 . .....! 56%
Current liabilities REBAEE
Accounts payable FEATBRS 29 50,197 19,301
Other payables and accrued HEMERRIERER W
charges 30 236,361 158,870
Contingent consideration payable FERS S ARE 31 = 20,400
Contract liabilities AHEE 32 183,863 97,397
Deposits received BUET & 16,184 11,409
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 12,283 9,863
Taxation payable FEHRIE 38,164 5,960
. Total current liabilities mEBOEEE ... 537082 323,200
_Jotal liabilities . ... .. R . ................546305 328,896
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 1,051,772 683,788
Net current assets REBEETFE 59,448 8,826
Total assets less current BEERRBAE
liabilities 514,720 360,588
The notes on pages 104 to 306 are an integral part of these #HNFE104BEF3068 7 Wit BirA B 1%H

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 306 were
approved by the Board on 29th September 2021 and were

signed on its behalf:

RZ—HD

HNFIBHEFI6E ZGEAUBFHREA-E
——inﬂ FTAEKESSHMAERBUT

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2021 BZ_-_ZFE_—FNF=+HIFEZF

2021 2020
—B--F —E-FE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & BT TEL
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: FECEER
Revenue tz
Sales of goods - video distribution, optical ~ $HE & &M — #E T -
products and watches products IRI%EE b RSB SR 57,407 52,229
Income on film distribution and exhibition, BRETRRME BHR
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights BRETZRERA 523,185 153,653
Income from other businesses Hih WA 22,008 20,885
Total revenue i 5 602,600 226,767
Cost of revenue W 3 AR
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAK 19 (48,007) (41,025)
Related cost on film distribution and BRETRRM BHR
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of BN EFRER BN A
film rights (298,542) (71,175)
Cost for other businesses Hfth ZEHPK AR (16,140) (11,027)
Total cost of revenue W o B R AR (362,689) (123,227
Selling expenses HEEH (15,639) (16,943)
Administrative expenses THER (61,400) (80,987)
Impairment loss of film related deposits BYHEBIeRERE = (11,356)
Impairment loss of film rights and BYMENBEREY 2
films in progress WEEE 9 (3,000) (4,653)
Impairment loss of property, M - BERBEZ
plant and equipment EEE 6 (120) (1,090)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets FREEENEEE 6 (5,954) (2,069)
Impairment loss of other intangible assets ~ HMEFEE 2 REFRE 8 = (1,165)
Change in expected credit loss BHEEEEEZE 34 (1,682) (23,175)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih 8 i 8 (147) (397)
Other income Hl A 38 22,590 2,878
Other gains — net Hinlzs - 558 39 16,890 14,523
(Losses)/gains: (E518) /Whzs
Fair value change of trading securities RPEHFNTEEE (12,460) (5,391)
Fair value change of other financial assets FREBEREATFEAERZ
carried at fair value through profit or loss HireMEERFHEE 761 (3,581)
Finance income BIBUA 40 2,291 2,987
Finance costs BIRSRAR 33(c) (532) (542)
Share of losses of associates FE(h 2 A AESE - (1,085)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATEF (B18) 33 181,509 (28,506)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigf (Fx),/#Ke 41 (28,745) 141
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing FANREFELEEBH
operations w i,/ (&) 152,764 (28,365)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EERER

For the year ended 30th June 2021 BZ_-FE_—FNA=1+HIFFE

2021 2020
—EB--F —E-FE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & BT TEL
DISCONTINUED OPERATION: BRIEEE XK
(Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued K A B 4 IF & & E K H)
operation FR(ER),EF 42 (294) 795
Profit/(loss) for the year FRET(ER) 152,470 (27,570)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hth 2@ (&58), W
[tems that may be reclassified to AREeENIBEEEEY
profit or loss: 1BH
Currency translation differences BEmEEE (3,301) 1,628
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREM2E(ER) k&
.. fortheyearnetoftax  HE®RE B301, ... 1528
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EREEWE (BB AE
for the year 149,169 (26,042)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of ERREE AEERR,
the Company: (518) -
- from continuing operations - REBECEER 154,639 (27,858)
~ from discontinued operation - REERIEEEER (294) 795
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ARRHEEABEFR
owners of the Company siwA, (E518) 154,345 (27,063)
Loss attributable to non-controlling FERESEGES !
interests:
- from continuing operations - REBECEER (1,875) (507)
- from discontinued operation - REBRIEEEER - -
Loss for the year attributable to EEREREEFAER
non-controlling interests (1,875) (507)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) LTEEERZE RS,
for the year attributable to: (BB %%
Owners of the Company ARRHEBA 151,044 (25,535)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 2 (1,875) (507)
149,169 (26,042)

EFTRECEBERLDR —T-—FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2021 BZ_-_ZFE_—FNF=+HIFEZF

2021 2020
—EB--F —E-FE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & BT TEL
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AARFEEAELEZEE
attributable to owners of Wi (R BERE :
the Company arises from:
Continuing operations SECEER 151,338 (26,330)
Discontinued operation BRIHEEER (294) 795
151,044 (25,535)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributableto ~ F£RA2QF#EE AENE
owners of the Company for the year SREA /(&8
(expressed in HK$): (UBRIIR) :
From continuing and discontinued REFEREKL
operations mEER
= basic YN 43(a) 0.1702 (0.0299)
- diluted -8 43(b) 0.1702 (0.0299)
From continuing operations REFELSEER
- basic - &K 43(a) 0.1706 (0.0307)
- diluted -8 43(b) 0.1706 (0.0307)
The notes on pages 104 to 306 are an integral part of these N F104E EFE3068 2 Wit AirA BB R

consolidated financial statements.

K2 —H5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30th June 2021 BZ_-FE_—FNA=1+HIFFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

AAAREARE
Non-
Share  Share Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium  reserves losses Total interests  equity
(Note 27(al)
RkEx RGRE HthE  RHEE A FeREE  gER
(H270)
Note  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
WE TEr FEr  TER T TEr  TEr TR
Balance at 1st July 2019 RoE-NELA-A2ES 906 35013 56467  (09315) 381231 (97 380,034
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the Year EnEE - - - (27,063)  (27,063) (507)  (27570)
Other comprehensive income ~ HAI2EKNA
Currency translation difference ~ SHEEZR - - 1528 - 1,528 - 1528
Total other comprehensive Bt 2EUALE
income - - 1528 - 1528 - 1528
Total comprehensive income/ ~ FAZAUA/ (BB 45
(loss) for the Year - - 1528 (27,063 (25,538) (607)  (26,042)
Balance at 30th June 2020and  W=Z-BEARZTEK
1st July 2020 mt bt 120 B:PY 906 3013 57995 (36378 36EEH 804 35480
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year ERgi - - - 164345 154345 (1,875) 152,470
Other comprehensive loss b2 EEE
Currency translation difference ~ EBEEZE - - 330 - 3300 - 3301
Total other comprehensive loss £t 2 EAEASE - - B3 - B33 - 330
Total comprehensive income/  FAZEKA/ (Bi8) 45
(loss) for the year - - (3,301) 154,345 151,044 (1.875) 149,169
Partial disposal of subsidiaries HESIHBLAR - - 1570 - 1570 (164) 1,406
Balance at 30th June 2021 R-B--EXA=tHZEH 0086 35013 546264 (82,033 508310 (2843) 505467
The notes on pages 104 to 306 are an integral part of these #NFE104HEFE306E 2 M AL A MK R

consolidated financial statements.

RLZ—BD °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 30th June 2021 #HZ— —FENA=FHIEFE

102

2021 2020
—B-—-f —E_TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE FET FHET
Cash flows from operating EEITHCHRERE
activities
Net cash generated from EETBHEEZFRS
operating activities 45(a) 459,969 89,448
Cash flows from investing REFTBZRERE
activities
Purchase of property, BAMZE - Mas B
plant and equipment 6 (1,348) (3,134)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BAME KB R
property, plant and equipment B/ELEMETE (28,113) -
Purchase of other intangible assets A HMER & E 8 - (1,414)
Purchase of club debenture BAGEES (770) -
Decrease in film related deposits BB 2R 11,968 14,543
Increase in film related deposits BB & 215 (22,950) (30,007)
Payments for film rights and B R RER 2
films in progress ES- 20PN 9 (257,421) (30,089)
Refund of film production cost BREBZEUEER 9 = 3,864
Payment for settlement of litigation ~ FFEAMNAR M AERAAK A 2
and related cost (B (1,851) -
Proceeds from capital return AHHECMEE
from available-for-sale & 7B ¥R AT 1S 58
financial assets 299 1,530
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHDE SR
available-for-sale financial assets BEFSHIE 5,932 5,932
Repayment from loan receivable BT —2F8=FEK
granted to a third party BRZER 4,276 1,910
Loan receivable granted to ?*? BE=FZ
a third party FEWE R = (6,025)
Interest received BUF S 2,291 2,987
Decrease/(increase) in time REBAREERAEA
deposits with maturity over 3 AR ZEBEFER
months at acquisition (38 ) 24 108,640 (108,640)
Net cash used in investing REZHFAZERS
activities (179,047) (148,543)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 30th June 2021 BZ_-FE_—FNA=1+HIFFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE FET FHET
Cash flows from financing METEB2RERE
activities
Capital element of lease rentals ENHEEREEZER
paid #> 45(p) (11,419) (11,642)
Interest element of lease rentals BENHEEREZFE
paid s 45(b) (528) (542)
Net cash used in financing MEFBHFAZERS
L BOHVIHOS i iiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieiiieeiieiiiiincneibuennees (1947 ... (12,784),
Net increase/(decrease) in ReRFSLEEYZ
cash and cash equivalents BRI, G A) 268,975 (71,279)
Cash and cash equivalents REVRe RIRSEZEY
at beginning of the year 106,949 178,228
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESRESEZEY
at end of the year 375,924 106,949
Analysis of cash and RERBESEEYIN:
cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 24 375,924 106,949

The notes on pages 104 to 306 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in video distribution,
film distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights, money lending, leasing of investment
properties, entertainment business, securities investment,
trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products
and watches products, and provisions of type-setting,
translation, printing, design, distribution of financial print
products and other related services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The address of the principal place of business
of the Company is 18th Floor, Wyler Centre Phase I,
192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board
on 29th September 2021.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

—REH

BEFRECEBERRB(ARA)
REWBAT(REIARE]DETZRHK
EHREHRT  ERBOTRBEBR BEHEK
EBRETRE  KE  HEREWME -
IREEXTS - EHRE - RIBERNMER
EmES  #BEMTEEBUNIEHY
RRENRIE dn 2 HEhR - BB - EDRI - &%
it IR R E A AERE AR TS o

KRR DRBREFMKLZBRA
A HFEfM#EE i AClarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda ° AR AIEEEE AR
MU AR EOR AR EHFE192E 200
REMPLOE_HJ18E -

ARARDREBH AR DHERA
(TS 3A7 ) AR £ o

BB AR - REMERERIATET
TFABRTDEY - HRETBERRELES
EER_E-_—FNAZTNABHET
%éﬁo

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKASs") and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of contingent
consideration receivable, other investments in
equity securities, derivative financial instruments,
contingent consideration payable and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

2

A B RERME
EEEHBRRAE

RESAVBHRRRANETERHBER
HNTX - BRABERBPI  BEFBRRE
FREROMEEENCERER -

2.1 RERIEAE

ARG EMBEREIBRIEME
EREBYBHREEN(EBHH
HELER] - BRBRAE EFE
mEEEMAS(HEGFAIA
S ) B R PR E R e E R BB R
BamEER - BEGFHER(ER
SR ERE) BERARE
SHRAIRBB RGN 2 RERE
MaRE o L FIMH MR T AL
Pragzs AR EmARADME
RBERE -

A BB IR ERRE L RAVER
B WHEWEARE - B
EHFRE  TESRTA - BN
AREBEEEMENEHBEQ
FEDIR) MIELER]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEE=SHBEHEEw@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for the amendment HKFRS 16,
COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions, none of
the developments have had a material effect
on how the Group's results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented. The Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical
expedient that allows a lessee to by-pass the
need to evaluate whether certain qualifying
rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
("COVID-19-related rent concessions”) are
lease modifications and, instead, account for
those rent concessions as if they were not
lease modifications.

The Group applies the practical expedient
to all qualifying COVID-19-related rent
concessions granted to the Group during the
year. Consequently, rent concessions received
have been accounted for as negative variable
lease payments recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers those payments occurred (see
Note 6(a)). There is no impact on the opening
balance of equity at 1st July 2020.

e R R M AT
2 EEZETTHERHEE@®

2.1 REEEm
SRS RIFE @)

(i) FERFET AN BB
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BB S ERE 163
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEtHREEw
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mBEEEE

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i) New Standards and amendments to standards
not yet adopted

The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations to existing
standards have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1st
July 2020 and have not been early adopted:

S BREE RIKE (@)

(i) 5 R ERANZ HaTE R R
KR ZIEET K
TRFET AR « ERI 2 25T
AERBRERZZER-E
—ZEFE A —BHEBNMEK
FEBEMAMKLER - B

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4, and HKFRS 16

BEMBREEREN - BEGHERE9 -

BERBREENETS  BAREREES

RARREBRMEREERE 165 (BITE)
Amendments to HKFRS 3
ERUBRERVNER (BT
Amendments to HKFRS 10 & HKAS 28

RN BRERUZ10RR
BEEIERE28% (B A)
Amendments to HKAS 16

BAGIHERE 165 (B3 F)
Amendments to HKAS 37

BRI ENETR(BAA)
Amendments to HKFRSs

FRMHREER (BFTA)

I IR P AN
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RUATRES
BB
FEHREN
Interest rate benchmark reform = phase 2 1st January 2021
PREENE - E-RE —Z_-%-A-H
Reference to the Conceptual Framework Tst January 2022
BatER Rl —“Z--F-f-H
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an a date to be determined
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
REEREBENANEE AT M EE RERTE
HMERTE
Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds 1st January 2022
before Intended use
nE  BERKE - HERAALFMENE —T__%-f-H
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Tst January 2022
Contract
BE&N-BIaZmA —%2--%-H-H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Tst January 2022
2018-2020
EANBREEN_T-\FE_T_ZF T _5-f-H

BRI FRME
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i) New Standards and amendments to standards (i)
not yet adopted (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1

BRGHEREZ 1R (BTTE)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

ERERERR IR RERMBREENEHRSE

EVEACHEY
Amendments to HKAS 8
ARG FR (BT
Amendments to HKAS 12

BRGHERE125 (871 K)

EEESTTHERRE @

2.1 REEEm

DI BREE) R IKE (@)

4 TR ERAR 2 H 7T ZE R R

BRI ZNZFT A ()

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current
BEENERRYIERY

Disclosure of accounting policies

EiHEIRE

Definition of accounting estimates

Bitliit EE

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction

HE-XGELNBER R EHENELHE

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RATHE
ZERRN
FEHREN

1st January 2023

—ZT-=f-f-H
1st January 2023

—Z-=%-A-H
1st January 2023
—ZZ=F-H-H

1st January 2023

—ZE-=%-A-H

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

=
E=3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEE2:REEE @

POLICIES (continued)

22 MIB AT MIFER S

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the owners
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

(&)

FEBREERFREERRKNE
SAEARRHEE AEEER D
25 - AEBXRENIHERERE
i?/m\’fﬁﬂﬁz EREREZ2YIRFARRE
SARRR N B R AR R FE R A
SEARRERAZENDE -
BRAzzEWRERRBRAR
Ti‘?ﬁﬁ)\&#? Perss - BOfELLER
BT E LB ER -
3!5? BHEDTAEAZERRHZE
RBAMAZEMAENEERES
BERBERT2IIRERAEE-

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in NEFBREEHEATH
existing subsidiaries BEREEREH
Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that A EBNH B AR EREE T

do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained

SEYRAEGE - AERRER
ZAE - BRAREGEEEANZ
VERR N2 SR AR fe 2 ) & HE DA S B L
AR EE ETFBEFHER
THEREE °

EAEBEREWME QR ZEHIRE
B SR AL EERZMNEB AR
ZERRRETERE  EEXY
BEAINBEER - AIEHER R

in that former subsidiary at the date when control RERIEHEE B 2 TR B FERS
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount BEANTERER - Mz A G5
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of EEMEEVIFERZATE - 3k
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on (EA) VP ERREE ARG
initial recognition of an investment in an associate ERAZIZRERKA ©

or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

24
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Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’'s balance sheet, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2.12(b)), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Contingent consideration

Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or liability is remeasured to fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

[nvestments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated
in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

2

2.2

2.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates is included
as part of the Group's investments in associates.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a
joint operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly;
° its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities

incurred jointly;

2 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.6

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to the Group's interest in a joint operation
are accounted for in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Chairman of the Company (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net'.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a)

assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group's ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Shorter of useful life
or lease term

Leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment 3-5 years
Right-of-use assets Over the lease term
Others 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.12(b)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see note 2.10) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2.28(d).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEES:tREEE @

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets 210 HEE E

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) Asalessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2.8 and 2.12(b)), except for
the right-of-use asset that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value
in accordance with note 2.9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
any rent concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the
practical expedient set out in paragraph 46A
of HKFRS 16, and recognised the change
in consideration as if it were not a lease
modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated balance sheet, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the principal portion of
contractual payments that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
in ‘other property, plant and equipment’ and
presents lease liabilities separately in the
statement of financial position.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note
2.28(d).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHEERZEw@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Other investments in equity securities and 211 R ARFEHINE &

derivative financial instruments TTEEMIT A

(a) Otherinvestments in equity securities (a) HMBRAZHRKRE
The Group's policies for investments in REE 2 RAFEHIZE (R
equity securities, other than investments in B HBEQRTAREER
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are AR ERINEER AT -
as follows:
Investments in equity securities are AR B ST E RN E B A
recognised/derecognised on the date BE HEzREEA®
the Group commits to purchase/sell RBEITER - BEREY]
the investment. The investments are FIEAFENEEZEERS
initially stated at fair value plus directly FARF R - B BEREA
attributable transaction costs, except for FEARZZEZEERI -
those investments measured at fair value ERXGRAEERER AN E
through profit or loss (FVPL) for which R BARNEBNMAETS
transaction costs are recognised directly BMTAZAFE ALK
in profit or loss. For an explanation of how 33  REREHEBRTES
the Group determines fair value of financial BIRUAT AL ¢

instruments, see note 3.3. These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

(i) Investments other than equity (il BREREUIIZKE
investments
Non-equity investments held by the AEEFEZIERAKER
Group are classified into one of the AT ER—EFt 285

following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment - REBEKE - WES
is held for the collection of "EZBHBKDE
contractual cash flows which WIRERE - EES
represent solely payments of TRAEERFE - KE
principal and interest. Interest ISR SWRATIERE
income from the investment is BRAREETE (R MR
calculated using the effective 2.28(e)) °

interest method (see note 2.28(e)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Other investments in equity securities and
derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Otherinvestments in equity securities

(Continued)

(i) Investments other than equity
investments (Continued)

fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) -
recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise
solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows
and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective
interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL) if the investment does
not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Other investments in equity securities and
derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

(ii)

Equity Investments

An investment in equity securities is
classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election
to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer's
perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time
of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to accumulated losses.
It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2.28(f).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Other investments in equity securities and
derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period, the fair value is remeasured. The gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, time deposits,
loans receivable, accounts and other
receivables and loans to associates);

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15
(see note 2.18);

- lease receivables; and

- loan commitments issued, which are not
measured at FVPL.

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at FVPL,
and derivative financial assets, are not subject
to the ECL assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (that is, the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the
loan commitment draws down on the loan and
(i) the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.127 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, accounts and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used
in the measurement of the lease
receivable;

- loan commitments: current risk-free rate
adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes
into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEg®

POLICIES (continued)

2.127 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a) Creditlosses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for accounts receivables,
lease receivables and contract assets are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments issued),
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.127 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.127 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractual due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

= an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligations to the Group.

For loan commitments, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing
ECLs is considered to be the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment,
the Group considers changes in the risk of
default occurring on the loan to which the loan
commitment relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.127 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

For margin client receivables, the Group
considers there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when clients cannot
meet margin call requirements and uses the
loan-to-collateral value (“LTV") to make its
assessment. The Group considers a margin
client receivable is in default when payments
under the margin call requirement are 30
days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a margin client
receivable to be in default when there is
a margin shortfall which indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full, taking into account
the pledged securities held by the Group.
A margin client receivable is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.127 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2.28(e) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
the amortised cost (that is, the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.127 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.127 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment including
right-of-use assets;

- other intangible assets;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.127 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- film related deposits;

- film rights and films in progress; and

- investments in subsidiaries and
associates in the Company’s balance
sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for intangible assets that are not yet available
for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash-inflows independently
(that is, a cash generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.127 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying amount of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year
in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.127 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(c)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2.12(a) and (b)).

2.13 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful
life is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Impairment is reviewed annually and
when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Brand name

Brand name acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Brand name has a
finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 7.5 years of the brand
name.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEE=SHBEHEEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Intangible assets (Continued) 213 B EE®

(c) Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment loss
(see note 2.12(b)). Amortisation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line method over
the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 years.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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2.14 Offsetting financial instruments 2.14 @t T A 5H

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHEERZEw@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Inventories 215178
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net GFERK AR AR FERE R
realisable value. EEYIER -
Cost is calculated using the weighted average A ADIREFE R A ARGTERE
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, EMEBERAN « Sl AR ET
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in HEEHRTHE REBORKME
bringing the inventories to their present location and 2 B o
condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in AR FEATEHSEKBRETHN
the ordinary course of business less the estimated M E RGO AR KA E
costs of completion and the estimated costs SHEFTERAA -

necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of EFELERN FEGFENERRE
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the ERBRAEERBHEANER AR
period in which the related revenue is recognised. ¥ o M EEMRE]ERFED
The amount of any write-down of inventories to SRR METEEER MR ER
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are EEHRENERAEAY - #AFE
recognised as an expense in the period the write- R B 1 ] 185 [2] 5 B8 pA 13 (2 3% A B
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal FMRRERRAERINTFESENRN
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a HUR ©

reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Film rights and films in progress

(a)

(b)

(c)

Film rights

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable
under agreements and direct expenses
incurred during the production of films, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of films
in various videogram formats, film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of film rights is amortised over the
shorter of the underlying license period and
their estimated useful lives, with reference to
projected revenues.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Cost includes
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. The balance of film production costs
not yet due at the end of each reporting period
are disclosed as commitments. Cost of films
is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
film rights and films in progress are impaired.
If any such indication exists, the carrying
amount of such assets is assessed and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

2 EET

STHEREEmw

216 ERMME R BUEF 2 BR

(a)

(b)

(c)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021

SR HRE

EUMEERER R
TAREGHAEY  BEF
PRBR - B R ERER RE
MREHHRD T RENZE
RREZREEEZEER
¥ o

BRI Ty AR R AT
N RETREEER -

EXMBEBRATIZERI
A A RERR REMG
AAERAFRUAREER
) H5H o

Wik 2 BY
RER 2B TR AT

R EE B E RS o AR
BREMBSREZRIEZE
AR o & S R R
A2 ERRIER A BRI
BREE - ERXKARTEX
REBREERRE -

B

REBEKER  BBEENA
BEIBHEHEER  FEE
TIRERRETFZERZRD
FHEERBETR - FHE
EEEERETR - RBIFFHE
BEHREENEREE  RES
BRI T MR B E B B A
EERZHAKDESHE - It
EREBREEGAEZEHK



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHEERZEw@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Film related deposits 217 E B €

Film related deposits comprise deposits paid for EXEE S BIEMIEE S ME
the acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to Yz El e RREXFRBRIIZNES
production houses, artists and others prior to the BUHERA BARHEMZETE - 1R
production of films. The balance payable under BEimmAEEASHRERETR
agreements for the acquisition and production of VEZ BT 8RR B A ER A B 25 o
film rights is disclosed as a commitment. Provision BB 2 BEBEIBREBERNEEE
for film related deposits is made based on future EZRRBRAREZ @I 2E
revenue generated for the Group and the carrying HE{EMIEL -

value of film related deposits.

2.18 Contract assets and contract liabilities 218 EHEBEENEHEE

A contract asset is recognised when the group BRHEERASEBEEKMER
recognises revenue (see note 2.28) before being BHFEZTER TR ER#ER
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under Uz (R aE2.28) BFHERR - A HVE
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract EEYRMIE2.12(a) PTEL SR 3 77 TE BR
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the EEEIEE - WEUER (B R4
policy set out in note 2.12(a) and are reclassified to M R EARH R ET DB E R
receivables when the right to the consideration has TH(RMHFE2.19) ©

become unconditional (see note 2.19).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer AHABEASEEREBRKS
pays consideration before the Group recognises AIEPXNRERER (R
the related revenue (see note 2.28). A contract 2.28) o AREE A EFFEFE
liability would also be recognised if the Group has 7R E% [ He SR NS B A s AT HSCER A AT K
an unconditional right to receive non-refundable BERE - NEHBETIERR
consideration before the Group recognises the ERBEBRAT  HERRFIENS
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding EER(RWE2.19) -

receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.19).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net REEXEFPHE—EAOME @+ 8273
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. BHNEEFEXEHNBEFE-
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract MELHEHmME  THBEELNE
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented HNEERAHABTRFEREES
on a net basis. Bl o

When the contract includes a significant financing MEXNBREAREDLSD @ GH%K
component, the contract balance includes interest HEERBERN SRS EES
accrued under the effective interest method (see A2 (RBIEE2.28) ©

note 2.28).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Accounts and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 2.18).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2.12(a)).

2.20 Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business. If the collection of
loans receivable is expected to be one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
credit losses (see note 2.12(a)).

2.21 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
cash held at custodian, and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.12(a).

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

2.23 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

2.24 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.75 Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax loses and unused
tax credits.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEE2:REEE @
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Income Tax (Continued) 2.25 P % @)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred BRETHERZAIIMERIN - FIBIE
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the ﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁkﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits BT ER(RBRR A gL EF 82 F
will be available against which the asset can be %?FXT’E&T&?DW*XE%H@
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that F)) o BE 20 A LARE SR A] 005 B A 1
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets %%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%\ﬁmkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂ@ﬂ%
arising from deductible temporary differences pLE N - B IR E R IR A E R
include those that will arise from the reversal of Ry R S| A RS
existing taxable temporary differences, provided EZEFEEVALAR —BBER R
that those differences relate to the same taxation FE—ERHEREER - WABEHE
authority and the same taxable entity, and are TERTEE AT R E R M = SR R —
expected to reverse either in the same period as BRI E - SKTEIRIERITB A E S|
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary B 5 TE 5 18 AT LA A A Bk 45 B 0 HA T
differences or in periods into which a tax loss arising RO o ERTIRBEAME R ZE
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back R B LARERE 18 & {52 F i 18 /&5
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when B RBFHE S EKRIEETRIAE E
determining whether existing taxable temporary B MRAMERAER] - BVE SR
differences support the recognition of deferred tax EFERE—HFE B NRR—ERH
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, EEEAE  WHEFTEAAERABIA
that is, those differences are taken into account if EE sk B R R a B R - R
they relate to the same taxation authority and the FTAZEERE ©

same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred TMERRELEHIBEENABZY
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary REEEEEEB U TARZHISN
differences arising from the initial recognition of B PR EGRENEN &
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting EXaEzVIFERFIREEL
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a IEEBEHz—HD)  URIEE
business combination), and temporary differences MBAR(MNBERHERE - B
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the RSB DAE B e 2 B - M
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the BEAER 2GR KNAJRER D 2
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is TipEERE BRI =% -
probable that the differences will not reverse in BIRRRAIRATRETEAS SR B B 2 2=
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible ) o

differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Income Tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 2.9, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the end of the reporting period unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Income Tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets
are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are
met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

° the same taxable entity; or

° different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binominal Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

2 EET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company's shares. When share
options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

2

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021

EEESTTHERRE @

221 Bt MR RIS

EAKEEAARBEFEMELZ
FERIEERE  METARAET
A RE G B BN SR - WA R
A SE 2 fhETE - RIS REREE -
ERREEEBEL - AREME
BEEMBRAXZHRE RS -

A M s SMNRZ R BEMET K » 3
EAE RS BRIEL A 2 A5
ARAEERBEAIARAE  ER
BRI INAZ AT BEIEAR N RIBRSD o
WAl s B EHREFRFIHERAK
REMHREBLERERTRETF
- TMERBEAIRAE  ELE
M ERSNR 2 AT BEE G/ N RIERSD o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.78 Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue ad other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(a) Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised
at a point in time when the customers take
possession of and accept the products.

(b) Income from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights

Income from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights is recognised at a point in time
upon the delivery of the pre-recorded audio/
visual products and the materials for video
features including the master tapes to the
customers, in accordance with the terms of
the underlying contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.78 Revenue and other income (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Film exhibition income

Film exhibition income is recognised at a point
in time when the film is shown and the right
to receive payment is established.

Rental income from operating lease

Operating lease and other rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount
of the financial assets. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (that is, gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note
2.12(a)).

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.78 Revenue and other income (Continued)

(g)

(h)

Financial printing and translation services

Revenue from the provision of financial
printing and translation services is recognised
overtime by measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation, which is determined
based on the Group's inputs to the satisfaction
of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation.

Revenue from the sales of printed products is
recognised at a point in time as the customers
obtains control of the printed products.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in
the balance sheet initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group)
is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its
present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a
group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held
for sale, the measurement of the non-
current assets (and all individual assets and
liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial
statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale,
would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification
as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-
current asset is classified as held for sale, or
is included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(ii)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group's business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is part
of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if
the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented on
the face of the statement of comprehensive
income, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets
or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The policies for managing
these risks are summarised below.

Market risk

(a)
(i) Currency risk

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and
purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash
balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, that is, a currency
other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currency
giving rise to this risk is primarily
Renminbi (“RMB") (2020: RMB).

The following table details the
Group’'s exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AEE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B RERRE = )
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THiZERE @)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EHEFEGE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) ) Fr#&=xzE8E

7[5 (1)

Exposure to foreign
currencies (expressed in
Hong Kong dollars)

PR 2 SNE R B
(B THIR)
2021 2020
=B-—-F _ZT_EF
Renminbi Renminbi
ARYE AR
‘000 '000
Fr Tt
Cash and cash RERBEEED
equivalents 409 1,232
Accounts receivable JE WS AR 3K 90,765 56,476
Financial assets included st AIENEI £ »
in “deposits paid, TEATFRIE R HAt
prepayments and FEUWFRIE] 2 &’
other receivables” BE 660 5,202
Accounts payable FET AR AR (83) (11)
Other payables and E A RIE R
accrued charges FERTZ (16,999) (37,300)
74,752 25,599
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HBiiEEREERESHMIAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NE @
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIfsREEAEAE®
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THIZEMEE @
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) B E)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BT
The following table indicates TEREH N HE
the instantaneous change in the IR A& B EG
Group's profit/loss after tax (and B KA BN E
accumulated losses) that would fEERMNiZ A LR
arise if foreign exchange rates to FE)(BREMAE
which the Group has significant 2 B 2 R 5
exposure at the end of the TE)EREE K
reporting period had changed at i mA B8
that date, assuming all other risk (RRFBEE
variables remained constant. HHIBNRSEE) o
2021 2020
—E--F —ZZTF
Increase/ (Increase)/
(decrease) decrease
in profit in loss
after tax and after tax and
Increase/ (increase)/ Increase/ (increase)/
(decrease) decrease (decrease) decrease
in foreign in accumulated inforeign  in accumulated
exchange rates losses  exchange rates losses
BB & RA BRREER
#m,/ (hD) Ggm,/ mo
SHEER REGER HIE B 2 REEAE
#/(FE) (8m) /WD /(TR Ggm,/ me
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTHET
RMB AR 5% 3,738 5% 1,280
(5%) (3,738) (5%) (1,280)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as
presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of
the group entities’ loss/profit after
tax and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes
that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for
2020.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate loans receivable
(see note 21) from its money lending
business. The management considered
that the risk is insignificant as the
amounts are carried at amortised cost
and not remeasured in the financial
statements in response to changes in
interest rates. Therefore, no sensitivity
analysis for the years ended 30th June
2021 and 2020 was disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiEMEENSRTIEZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NE @)

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrigREBe A= e
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THiZERE (@)

(i)~ Equity price risk (i) ARAE )R Bz

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from changes in the prices
of listed securities, unlisted investment
funds and unlisted limited partnership.
The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk.

The Group's trading securities are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Decisions to buy or sell trading
securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual
securities compared to that of the Hang
Seng Index and GEM Index of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
other industry indicators, as well as the
Group's liquidity needs.

For the unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership classified as
other financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss, the board
of directors manages the exposure
to equity price risk by maintaining a
portfolio of investments funds with
different risk and return profiles.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Equity price risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2021, it is estimated that
an increase/decrease of 10% (2020:
10%) in the fair value of the Group's
trading securities with all other variables
held constant would have increased/
decreased the Group's profit after tax
(and decreased/increased accumulated
losses) by HK$6,419,000 (2020:
decreased/increased the Group's loss
after tax (and decreased/increased
accumulated losses) by HK$276,000).

At 30th June 2021, it is estimated that
an increase/decrease of 10% (2020:
10%) in the fair value of unlisted
investment funds and unlisted limited
partnership classified as other financial
assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss with all other variables
held constant would have increased/
decreased in the Group's profit
after tax (and decreased/increased
accumulated losses) by HK$145,000
(2020: decreased/increased the Group's
loss after tax (and decreased/increased
accumulated losses) by HK$167,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.7
(b)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligation
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties as a means
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
default. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to accounts receivable, loans
receivables and other receivables. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit rating assigned by
rating agency, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses

In respect of accounts receivable arising
from trading, wholesaling and retailing of
optical products and watches products, and
provisions of financial printing services, in
order to minimize the credit risk, management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
on-going basis. Credit evaluations of its
customers'’ financial position and condition are
performed on each and every major customer
periodically. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. Receivables due from customers are
due within the settlement period commonly
adopted by the relevant market convention,
which is usually within 180 days from the
trade date. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from its customers.
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3

BEEREEERERmTE
NEE@®

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEREZ=®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE@E
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Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

In respect of accounts receivable arising
from video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights business, in order to minimise the
credit risk, management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an on-going basis.
Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition are performed on each
and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Sales of
videogram products are with credit terms of
7-60 days from the trade date. Sales from film
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights are on open account terms. Sales to
retail customers are made in cash or via major
credit cards. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from its customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

In respect of businesses mentioned above, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor and customer. The default risk of the
industry in which debtors or customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent. The Group had no concentration
of credit risk in respect of accounts receivable
from these businesses with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties.

The Group measures loss allowances for
accounts receivable from these businesses
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. For
accounts receivable arising from trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products
and watches products, and provisions of
financial printing services, these receivables
are normally settled within 6 months. The
Group has assessed that the expected
credit loss for these receivables as at 30th
June 2021 and 30th June 2020 based on
historical settlement records and looking-
forward information (including the economic
environment) and impairment loss allowance
was recognised on these accounts receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk for
accounts receivable arising from businesses
other than securities brokerage and margin
financing businesses as at 30th June 2021.

3 BIREMREERSFBTAY

NEE@®
3.1 BiEREZ=®

(b)

EE R (@)

KEEFEALRFRHBE
RIS T 2 FEW AR
(&
TEREER =T =Z—FXA
=tREBAKEXERE S
REMTERBEFRG 2N
E % EWIR T 2 15 B AR
AZE#

At 30th June 2021 R-ZFEZ—FA=1H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BAEEE BEAE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Trading, wholesaling and BHEER  #ER
retailing of optical HKEERES
products, watches and HERBEER
jewellery
Current (not past due) BlkieSat) - 668 - 668
31-90 days past due BH3IZE0A - 133 - 133
91-365 days past due #H912365H = 20 = 20
821 - 821
Provision of financial printing 12448 1l AR 7%
services
Current (not past due) S (K@) 1.70-100.00 4,389 (415) 3,974
1-30 days past due BH1Z308 1.70-100.00 5,375 (186) 5,189
31-90 days past due ##31290A 1.70-100.00 760 (74) 686
91-365 days past due #8912 3650 1.70-100.00 1,490 (604) 886
Over 365 days past due BH365A M £ 6.90-100.00 473 (205) 268
12,487 (1,484) 11,003

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other

REMB|RME

3 BEEREENSRMIAEZ

NEE@
3.1 BiEREZ=®

(b) EEREER @)

KEEFEALRFRHBE

than securities brokerage and margin financing EHUIEHZ KR
businesses (Continued) (%)
At 30th June 2021 (Continued) R-ZFE-—FNH=1+H
()
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BAEEE BEAE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET Thn FET
Video distribution, film BRERT EYRAR
distribution and exhibition, M - BHREZRE
licensing and sub-licensing ~ FREEH
of film rights
Current (not past due) A (R ) 0.10-9.30 21,985 420) 21,565
1-30 days past due BEE0A 0.15-9.30 561 (1) 560
31-90 days past due BEIEI0H 0.15-9.30 248 - 248
91-365 days past due #1191%365H 0.20-9.30 68,183 (134) 68,049
QOver 365 days past due BE1365A M £ 0.25-9.30 4,692 (23) 4,669
95,669 (578) 95,091
Entertainment business R
Current (not past due) N (R ) 0.1 2 = 2
1-30 days past due BHZE0A 0.15 8 = 8
31-90 days past due BH31E08 0.15-0.20 9 = 9
91-365 days past due 89123650 0.20-0.25 10 = 10
Over 365 days past due BE365A L £ 0.25 1,889 (5) 1,884
1,938 (5) 1,933
Total it 110915 2,067) 108,848
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk for
accounts receivable arising from businesses
other than securities brokerage and margin
financing businesses as at 30th June 2020.

3 BIREMREERSFBTAY

NEE@®
3.1 BiEREZ=®

(b)

(S

KEEZBFLELER FRAE
EBELUIFEFEZ BRI
(&)

TREHN -_Z-_FE XA
—THAEBAEBREESFH
BERFRERBMEEBLB 2N
EBEWERE R 2 EE R R
OZ&k o

At 30th June 2020 R-IFE_FFNH=+H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
RRERE BEEE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiER TiER
Trading, wholesaling and BHEER  #ER
retailing of optical HKEERES
products, watches and HERBEER
jewellery
Current (not past due) BlkieSat) - 556 - 556
31-90 days past due BH3IZE0A - 147 - 147
91-365 days past due #H912365H = 9% = %
798 - 798
Provision of financial printing 12448 1l AR 7%
services
Current (not past due) N (R ) 4.10-100.00 5,061 (221) 4,840
1-30 days past due BH1Z308 4.40-100.00 265 (81) 184
31-90 days past due A#31290A 4.40-100.00 346 (76) 270
91-365 days past due #91%365H 4.60~100.00 608 557) 51
QOver 365 days past due #1365 A M £ 100.00 21 (21) -
6,301 (956) 5,345

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other

REMB|RME

3 BEEREENSRMIAEZ

NEE@
3.1 BiREREZ=®

(b) EEREER @

KEEFEACRFRHBE

than securities brokerage and margin financing EHUIEBZERIRL
businesses (Continued) (%)
At 30th June 2020 (Continued) R-IFE_FFNH=+H
€-))
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
REBEE BERE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx THER FiEx
Video distribution, film RERT B¥ROR
distribution and exhibition, MM - RERERE
licensing and sub-licensing ~ FIREEK
of film rights
Current [not past due) SN (R g 0.10-1.50 1519 2) 1517
1-30 days past due BHZE0A 150 64 (1) 63
31-90 days past due BH31290H 0.15-1.50 8,715 (2) 8,713
91-365 days past due 89123658 0.15-1.50 54,115 (82) 54,033
Over 365 days past due BH65H M L 0.25-1.50 141 - 141
64,554 (87) 64,467
Entertainment business IREER
Current (not past due) BlkileSat) 26.88 14 (4) 10
1-30 days past due BHE0A 26.88 12 (4) 8
31-90 days past due BEIIZ0H 0.15-26.88 1,498 (6) 1,492
91-365 days past due #15912365H 26.88 11 (4) 7
QOver 365 days past due BH365A L L 0.25-26.88 967 (5) 962
2,502 (23) 2,479
Total Hit 74,155 (1,066) 73,089
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiEMEENSRTIEZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrigRBe A=

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
in respect of accounts receivable from businesses

(b)

(S
KEEFEALRFRHBE
RIS T 2 FEW AR
(&
KEEFEGLRITRBE
RSN Z JEH R

other than securities brokerage and margin L RER B E
financing business
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Balance at 1st July RNEA—BZ&H 1,066 5,172
Amounts written off SRl (815) (5,172)
Current year change in B EEBEATEZE
expected credit loss 1,816 1,066
Balance at 30th June RANA=TRZ#&& 2,067 1,066

The following significant change in the gross
carrying amounts of the above accounts
receivable contributed to the increase in loss
allowance during the year ended 30th June
2021:

- origination of new accounts receivables
net of those settled resulted in
an increase in loss allowance of
HK$1,001,000.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from securities brokerage
and margin financing businesses

In order to manage the credit risk in the
accounts receivable due from clients arising
from securities brokerage and margin
financing business, individual credit evaluation
are performed on all clients including cash
and margin clients. Accounts receivable
from cash clients related to a wide range of
customers who generally settle the accounts
receivable within two days after trade date
and are secured by the portfolio of securities
of the cash clients. Credit risk arising from
the accounts receivable due from cash
clients is therefore considered minimal. For
margin clients, the Group normally obtains
liquid securities as collateral based on the
customers’ margin requirements. The margin
requirement is closely monitored on a daily
basis by designated team. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual receivable at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the credit risk
is significantly reduced. Market conditions
and adequacy of securities collateral and
margin deposits of each margin account are
monitored by management on a daily basis.
Margin calls and forced liquidation are made
where necessary.

3
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e M BHRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BEEREEERERmTE
NEE@®

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BBREEREZE®E
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE@E
Accounts receivable from securities brokerage KEFHLLRFIRHE
and margin financing businesses (Continued) X EWER (&)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021

The credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk of accounts receivable from
margin clients is mainly based on Loan-to-
value ratio (“LTV") unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort.

In respect of accounts receivable from
brokers, credit risks are considered to be low
as the Group normally enters into transactions
with brokers which are registered with
regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation
in the industry.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has no significant concentration risk (2020: no
significant concentration risk).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HERREERERMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N E@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIfsREEAE®
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE@E
Accounts receivable from securities brokerage KEFHLLRFIRHE
and margin financing businesses (Continued) FEHZEWIR ()
The Group has no account receivable from RZEZ—EFER-ZZT=FF
any margin client as at 30th June 2021 and NB=+R A£EBTEFT
2020. An analysis of the changes in ECLs for AREAFREP 2 EKEK
accounts receivable from margin clients during KR -_ZE-FEXA=+
the year ended 30th June 2020 is as follows: HIEFE  REFREFPZ
RS BEEEE S
oW

For the year ended 30th June 2020
BE-Z-ZEXA=tHLEE

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
(E-8) (E=H) (E=4) ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEL Fitn FhEL Fitn
Balance at 1st July 2019 RZB-NEtR-H2
3 - - 1,500 1,500
Accounts receivables repaid  FER(E 2 EUER
during the year - - (1,500) (1,500)
Balance asat 30th June 2020 HM-ZT-Z#
NAZTRZEH - - - -
Avrising from EEE
-~ Margin clients -AREP - - - -
ECLs rate BHEEREE
- Margin clients -AREP N/A EFR N/A TEFR N/A MEA N/A P EFR

BrRE(REERAT —T-— 45 177
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e M BHRHE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021

Credit risk (Continued)
Loans receivable

In respect of loans receivable (including loan
to an associate) from customers and third
parties, the objective of the Group’s measures
to manage credit risk is to control the potential
exposure to recoverability problem. The Group
manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of its new and existing customers before
payment terms and conditions are concluded
by assessing the credit qualities of the
customers and the third parties, taking into
account its financial position, past settlement
experience, collateral held and other factors.
Loans receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis, management reviews the
loans receivable at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment allowance is
made. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Interest income are usually billed on
a quarterly basis.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2020: 100%) of the loans receivable are due
from the Group's six (2020: six) debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HERREERERMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrigREBe A= e
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE@E

FEWE 7 ()
ERER(BREET —HEE

Loans receivable (Continued)

An analysis of changes in the gross amount

of loans receivable (including loan to an REIZER) BENEE DN
associate) is as follows: m
For the year ended 30th June 2021
BE-EC-EXA=TALEE
Purchased
Lifetime Lifetime or
expected expected  originated
12-month credit loss credit loss credit-
expected - not credit - credit impaired
credit loss impaired impaired (“POCI") Total
BAY
FifE
HE
2HEE 2078 (B R
2EREY FEFR-  GEEE- FARE
FEEE  FEENE EEHE HE) L
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(-4 (=) (E=8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T T Thn
Balance at 30th June 2020 WZE-EEXRB=TRAZ
Ge 7475 - 2,052 2450 11977
New loans originated RETER 5,400 - - - 5,400
Loans repaid during the year EREERER
(other than write-offs| (szmon) 9,193 - - - 9.193)
Balance at 30th June 2021 WZEZ-EXB=1RZ
Ei 3,682 - 2,062 2,450 8,184
Representing: fik:
Loans receivable FEWER 3,682 = = = 3,68
Loan to an associate RT-FBENAER o = 2,052 2450 4502
3,682 = 2,052 2,450 8,184
BFRECEEERAT —T-—FER
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e M BHRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrigRBe A=
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE@E
Loans receivable (Continued) FEWE L (48)

180

For the year ended 30th June 2020
BE-E-EFAA=THLER

Purchased
Lifetime Lifetime or
expected expected  originated
12-month credit loss credit loss credit-
expected - not credit - credit impaired
credit loss impaired impaired (“POCI") Total
BAY
FifE
HE
2HREY 2078 ([BAS
2ERESE FEFR-  GEEE- FARE
FEBE  FEENE EERE HE) L
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(- (=) (E=f)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T T Thn
Balance at 30th June 2019 RZE-AEABZTHZ
i 5910 30,998 33444 1,760 72112
New loans originated RETER 6,225 - - 690 6,915
Loans repaid during the year EREERER
[other than write-offs| (sgkon) (4,660) (7.199) (31,392) - (43,251)
Transfer to lifetime ER R
expected credit loss Bt
- creditimpaired -RERE
(Stage 3) E=H) - (23,799) 23799 - -
Total transfer between stages ~ SERZENERGE S (23,799) 23799 - -
Write-offs iss = = (23799) - (23,799)
Balance at 30th June 2020 WZE-EEXRBZTAZ
i 7475 = 2,052 2,450 11,977
Representing: f%:
Loans receivable BUER 7475 = = = 7475
Loan to an associate RY-HBENmzER - - 2,052 2450 4502
7475 - 2052 2450 1977

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2021




(Continued)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiIEREEREMIAE Y
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEEEZE®
Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE@E
Loans receivable (Continued) FEW B 5 (48)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding HEBHEEBERENE
ECL allowances is as follows: Elleak i (NN
For the year ended 30th June 2021
B2-E_-ERA-tHILEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
BAS
BERE
£-8 £24 F=4 HE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL TEn TEL TEL
Balance at R-E-%f%
30th June 2020 AAZTHZER 259 - 2,052 2,450 4,761
New loans originated REZHER 131 - - - 131
Loans repaid during the year ~ FNEEEER
[other than write-offs) (Hrsamon) (179) - - - (179)
Movement dus tochangein ~ EEEREEEH
credit risk iR 5 - - - 5
Balance at 30th June 2021 R=E=--£5:B=1H
&8 216 - 2,052 2,450 4718
Arising from: EkB:
Loans receivable EUER 216 - - - 216
Loan to an associate RT-RBEQFZER - - 2,052 2450 4,502
216 - 2,052 2,450 4,718

EFRECRBERAT —B-—FFH
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e M BHRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrigRBe A=
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE@E
Loans receivable (Continued) FEWE L (48)

For the year ended 30th June 2020
BE-E-E5/A=-THLEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 PoCI Total

BAg

REGE
£-R B8 E=8 BE axn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL AL BT TAR

Balance at RZE-N§

30th June 2019 ~AZTHZER 163 5,115 788 128 6,194
New loans originated REZHER 171 - - 16 187
Loans repaid during the year ~ FAEREEH

(other than write-offs) (Hrssbaon) (112) 1,188) (32) - (1,332)
Transfer to lifetime ERELHEY

expected credit loss FEFE

- credit impaired -FERE

(Stage 3) (E=H) - 3927) 3927 - -

Total transfer between stages £ E# 2 HHEREE - (3.927) 3,927 - -

Net remeasurement of FRE G HERFE
expected credit loss arising 2 BEREE BB
from the transfer between B EFE

stages during the year - - 19,873 - 19,873
Movement due tochangein ~ EERREHEH
credit risk ik 37 - 1,295 2,306 3,638
Write-offs g - - (23,799) - (23,799)
Balance at 30th June 2020 R-E-ZEXA=1H
a3 259 - 2,052 2,450 4,761
Arising from: EER:
Loans receivable EUER 259 = = = 259
Loan to an associate BET-BBEQFZER = = 2,052 2,450 4,502
259 - 2,052 2,450 4,761

1 82 Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables

For other receivables which includes other
receivables and amounts due from joint
operation partners, credit checks are part of
the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal
with overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amounts of other
receivables at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has concentrations of credit risk as 35% (2020:
32%) of the total other receivables was due
from the Group's largest debtor and 79%
(2020: 58%) of the total other receivables
was due from the Group's five largest debtors
respectively.

The Group measures loss allowance for other
receivables using lifetime ECLs for each
debtor individually with significant balances.
As at 30th June 2021, based on historical
settlement record and risk of default for
each debtor and forward-looking information
(including the economic environment),
write-back of loss allowance of HK$91,000
was recognized during the year 30th June
2021 (2020: write back of loss allowance of
HK$257,000).
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to the parent company's board
approval. The Group's policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.

3

BEEREEERERmTE
NEE@®

3.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiEMEENSRTIEZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSTIER?)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIfsREEAE®
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REESREME @
As at 30th June 2021 R=—B=-—FxA=t+H
More than More than Total
1 year but 2yearshut  contractual
Within 1 year less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount

- -F0E MENL  ANRER
FERER MENR BFAR  REREAE Rt
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

Accounts payable ERER 50,197 = = 50,197 50,197
Financial liabilities includedin -~ 3t A[EfERFUR
“other payables and RE L]
accrued charges” and REkE2]
"deposits received"” LEREE 238,209 = = 238,209 238,209
Lease liabilties (Note 28) HEAE(H9) 12,683 6,980 2,395 22,058 21,434
301,089 6,980 239 310,464 309,840

ETREULEBMERRA —T-—FFH
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e M BHRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSTIER?)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BBREEREZE®E
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBEZRMR@E
As at 30th June 2020 R-ZZE_TFXA=1H
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
Within 1 year less than less than ~ undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount

—FR —FE MENE  RDRRR
IEEX BEUR RENR REREARE KAl
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn ThR Thn ThR Thn

Accounts payable E&R 19,301 - - 19,301 19301
Financial liabilties includedin ~ sr A[EfERFUR

“other payables and RE L]

accrued charges” and RIEN:T2]

"deposits received"” LEREE 160,950 - - 160,950 160,950
Contingent consideration ERRARE

payable 20400 - - 20400 20400
Lease liabilties (Note 28) HEBE(H8) 10,057 4,940 891 15,888 15,475

210,708 4940 891 216,539 216,126
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REMB|RME

BEEEERERMTAEY
NEE@®

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management 32 ENEHE

The Group's objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. In addition, a subsidiary
of the Group licensed by the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC") is obliged to meet the
regulatory liquid capital requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
("FRR") at all times.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets. For the subsidiary
licensed by the SFC, the Group ensures this licensed
subsidiary maintains a liquid capital level adequate
to support the level of activities with sufficient
buffer to accommodate increases in liquidity
requirements arising from potential increases in the
level of business activities. During the year ended
30th June 2018, the licensed subsidiary ceased its
business. This licensed subsidiary complied with the
liquid capital requirements under FRR at all times
during the years ended 30th June 2021 and 2020.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(include borrowings and lease liabilities) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet,
plus net debt, where applicable.
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FEEREERSRMIAZ
NE @

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

32 BRE®E @
A B R R A RS HR - B
RBEEEBMBREENE 6
B ) 40 T T R B R

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

The Group's adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at the
end of the current and previous reporting periods
and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16 was as

188

follows: T
30th June 30th June
Note 2021 2020
—E-— —E-TF
BosE ANB=+H NAZ=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current liabilities: mEnafE
Lease liabilities HeEamE 28 12,283 9,863
12,283 9,863
Non-current liabilities: EREEE
Lease liabilities HEaRE 28 9,151 5,612
Total debt BIET 21,434 15,475
Less: Cash and cash B IReRReE
equivalent B 24 (375,924) (106,949)
Adjusted net debt BRARFEL (354,490) (91,474)
Total equity B 505,467 354,892
Adjusted capital BARER 505,467 354,892
Adjusted net debt-to- RARFEKELR N/A N/A
capital ratio b= TEA A

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the
finance manager performing valuations for
the financial instruments. The team reports
directly to the directors of the Company and
the audit committee. Valuation reports with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement
are prepared by the team at each annual
reporting date, and are reviewed and approved
by the directors of the Company. Discussion
of the valuation process and results with the
directors and the audit committee is held once
a year, to coincide with the reporting date.

REMB|RME

3 BREREERSBMIAY
NEE@®

33 AFEFT=E
() BRAFEIE~SH

LBERERE

NFEZLR

T£EHAEESBITAY
NEE ZEERIARR
EERIREE S RS
WD KA E B R
BIE135R [ A EFE TR
Fr=BATEEE - BA
FEHBHIEIERTIES
0T E R A AR
BrABENREEMERE

JE -

s  FMUHE: EERAF
— A A BUR (AR &
ERRBEEEXRAEEBER
AT 5 RIETHER
BBz YE

e E_QMHE:ERFEZ
A A BUR (AR BEXE
AE-—RZABRBA
BB BAREREKR
TR BRGARIBTE
ZRFE - TR BER
ABBESEMSEEZ
BABE

s  F=AMHE:ERERX
TRBRBARESE
ZFE

AREBEHEE — B BERE
BEZHEK  BEHESBMT
BETTHE - ZEBREER
ARREFENENAZRBER
o HERAFEAEREYD
M2 BERSE T HBEBER
BFERESAHRE - XA
ARBEEEHRME - B
BrtfaERF MaREGFHE
EEREFZBEET KX
AEm o AEERE B HIRR —
o

RTREXCEBAERRR —FT_—FFRH

189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

FEEREERSRMIAZ
NE @

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 AV EI=E®

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) BAFEFEZEEH
fair value (Continued) EEREBE®E
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEZR (E)

Fair value measurements as at
30th June 2021 categorised into

R=B--FRAZTRZAVEREIRA

Fair value measurements as at
30th June 2020 categorised into

RoB-RERA=THZATENEAEA

Fair value at Fair value at
30th June 30th June
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021 Level 1 Level2 Level 3 2020
R i
“BC-F 2
~A=TA ~RE=TH
£-8 E2H F=R  ZAYE E £28H £Z0 0¥E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH7R THT TR TH7 FiEn TR TR TFin
Recurring fair value M ATE
measurements itE
Assets: EE:
Other financial assets ~ EM 2 BEE
- Unlisted - EMRE
investment b5
funds (Note a) (¥ta) = = 346 346 - - m m
-Derivative financial - T4 4R
instruments I
Note a) (Hiita) = S 14,499 14,499 - - 833 8,336
- Unlisted limited -FETAR
partnership AELE
(Note &) (Hista) - - 1,108 1,108 - - 1,350 1,350
- Club debenture -2EE5 = = 70 70
- Other derivative - Htfi
financial | S$HIR
instruments - - 48 48
Trading securities R5EH
(Note d) (Hfskd) 75,521 - 1,350 76,871 - - 3,300 3,300
Contingent EUSARE
consideration (Kizb)
receivable (Note b) - - - - - - - >
75521 - B - - BaB 1A
Liabilties: 8E:
Contingent EHREARE
consideration (Rizkc)
payable (Note c) - - - - - - 20,400 20,400)
- - - - - - M0 040
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 30th June 2021 and
2020, there was no transfer between Level 1,
Level 2 or transfer into or out of Level 3.

Notes:

(a)

For unlisted investment funds and limited
partnership classified under Level 3 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy, the fair
values are determined based on the net
asset values of those investment funds and
limited partnership determined with reference
to third party valuation of the underlying
investment portfolio and adjustments of
related expenses. When the net asset values
of the unlisted investment funds and limited
partnership increases/decreases by 10%
(2020: 10%), the fair value will increase/
decrease by HK$145,000 (2020: HK$167,000).
The higher the net assets values, the higher
the fair value.

3

=
E=3

REMB|RME

BEEREEERERmTE
NEE@®

33 R EFTE®
(i) BAFEFEZEEH
EENBE®
N FEERE)
REBEE_ZE-_—&FR_FT—
TENA=TBHILEE &
— BT ESE
B ONEEBAZ -8
BREEY -

Gh

(a) MOERAFEHEER
FZHMBATZELETE
BEESRAERAGBLEM
= AFEDIREBEZER
BEEDERABELEY
BEFE 2ERBERE
MAZHEZFHEET
WHARBRA L EH A -
BEIFLTREESRE
BABLENEEFE
#on, M A10% (2 =
THE10%) 0 AFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

3

laxlaxd =, AY
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3 ﬁjﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁfiﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁz
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N {E
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 AFEFTE®
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) BRATFEFTEZ2EH
fair value (Continued) EEREBE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEZR (E)
Notes: (Continued) st : (88
(a)  (Continued) @@ (&)
During the year ended 30th June 2019 the HE-_ZTZ—hF~A=
Group entered into certain arrangement to +HIEFE  &X&E l ET
dispose one of the unlisted investment funds VAETLREURZZTZ
at a fixed consideration of HK$17,796,069 —F+Z A IER{E
in December 2021. In the opinion of the 17,796,069/ T H & H
directors of the Company, the arrangement FoIEELETREES o
constituted a derivative contract which ARREERA  ZBER
should be recognised as a derivative financial BB — M ITEEY - B
instrument (“DFI") (note 16(i)). The DFI is net FTHERAABITESBIEA
of deferred day one gain, which arise from (TSI E]D (R
the difference between its fair value at initial 16()  PTAES BT A THE
recognition and its transaction price of HK$Nil. HBEEE AW - JhH
The deferred day one gain is amortised over RERV T HEREH AT
the period from March 2019 to December BEHREAXFGERENESE
2021. The valuation techniques and key ABTEETTMESL - BiEH
inputs used for the DFI in Level 3 fair value Al mR=T—NF=A
measurement at the end of the reporting 22T+ AHA
period are as follows: WS - RIREER - A
BE=MATEFEZTE
SR TAMFERZEER
EREEMASELOT ¢
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable input Range
BEARTBE
HERE WAHE gE
HKS
BT
Derivative financial Marking-to-market Fair value of equity interest ~ HK$346,000

instruments

TEERMT A

approach and
discounted cash
flow approach
mEHEER
BRBRSNEE

in unlisted investment

(2020: HK$322,000)

fund
RIELTREESZ 346, 0005%773

RENTE (ZZ=ZF : 322,000/ 7T)
Credit value adjustment 14.03%

factor (2020: 7.06%~11.89%)
CEEEAREZ 14.03%

(ZZ=ZF:
7.06%-11.89%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2021, it was estimated
that a 5% increase or decrease in the fair
value of the unlisted investment fund while
holding all other variables constant would
not significantly affect the value of the DFI.
As a result, no sensitivity analysis for the
year ended 30th June 2021 is disclosed for
the impact of changes in the fair value of the
unlisted investment fund.

As at 30th June 2021, a 5% increase or
decrease in the credit value adjustment
factor while holding all other variables
constant would decrease or increase the
carrying amount of the DFI by approximately
HK$148,000 (2020: HK$442,000) or
HK$148,000 (2020: HK$442,000),
respectively.

3

=
E=3

REMB|RME

BEEREEERERmTE
NEE@®

33 REEFTE®
(i) BRATFEFEZ2EH
EERBE®
ATEZH E)
W - (8)

(a) (&

RZZTEZ—FNA=+
A WA EMmEHER
T EEMREESA
F 1B 2 5% 3 0 s A il
A resTEer T A
ZEEBERYE - R
it BE-Z-—4%XA
“t+HILFERERI L
THREELAFEEHZ
HEWBRHBE DN
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B ETE EM e
& FEBEARAE
Z.5% 3 i skom A i 5 Bl
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Z BETE{E#148,00008 7T
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e M BHRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N E@
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 AFEFTE®
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) BAFEFEZEEH
fair value (Continued) EERBE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEZR (E)
Notes: (Continued) st : (88
(a)  (Continued) (a) (4B
The following table represents the changes in TRABFAB=ZHLFE
other financial assets included in Level 3 fair HEZEMESREEZE
value measurements: g :
Other
Unlisted Unlisted derivative
investment limited Club  financial
funds  Derivative financial instruments  partnership ~ debenture instruments Total
FLH
ki ERE® R4
REES fiE4HIE % eRE@EE  SRIR st
Deferred
day one
Gross gain Net
EE
g ERbE et

HK$000 ~ HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
TEr  TEn  TET  TEn  TEr  TEn  TETL  TER

As at 1st July 2019 RZF-NE
tA-H 37 1592 (13864) 2,058 7,199 - - 9,574
Gainfllosses) included in -~ AABEZE/
profit or loss (&8) 5 733 - 733 4,319) - - (3,581)
Amortisation of deferred ~ EXEEBUEZ
day one gain B4 = = 5545 5545 = = = 5,546
Return of capital Tk - - - - (1,530 = = (1,530)
As at 30th June 2020 RZBZ%E
and 1st July 2020 AAZTRR
ZTITE
tA-A 30 16,605 (8,319) 8336 1,350 - - 10,008
Addition HE - - - - - 710 = 700
Gainsflloss) included in SABRZ S/
profit or loss (B8 2% 632 S 632 57 = 8 761
Amortisation of defered ~ EEERMEZ
day one gain B4 - - 5,531 5,531 - = = 5,531
Return of capital EXEH - - - - (299) - = 299)
As at 30th June 2021 R-B--f&
~AZTH 346 17,287 (2,788) 14499 1,108 770 48 16,771
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The contingent consideration receivable was
derecognised during the year ended 30th
June 2021 through the settlement agreement
signed on 1st February 2021. Further details
of the settlement are disclosed in note 38 (a).
The valuation technigues and key inputs used
for contingent consideration receivable in
Level 3 fair value measurement at 30th June
2020 are as follows:

Valuation
techniques

BRI

3

REMB|RME

FEEREERSRMIAZ
NEE@

33 RYEFE®
(i) BRATFEFTEZ2EH
EERBE®
N FEZERGE)
3T ()

ERSAREBEREE =
T-—FXA=Z+THIHF
EBEBR_TE_—F_A
—BE 2B RERLE
R - BREAMBAE—F
HISHAHTE38(a) I EE o B
—E-_EFAA=+H "
NE=MAFHEFEZE
Wk AR EAHER 2 EE
FAREZG AHEN
T~

(b)

Significant

unobservable input

Range

EAFUBE

AAHE

&E
HKS
BT

Discounted cash
flow approach

HRALREE

Contingent consideration
receivable

R ARK(E

The fair value of the contingent consideration
receivable represented the profit guarantee
in relation to the adjustments to the
consideration from the acquisition of AP
Group Investment Holdings Limited (“AP
Group") as detailed in note 22.

Expected net loss

Expected loss of
HK$1,875,845

BEFEE BHk5181,875,845 T
Discount rate 100%
BRIR X 100%
ERSHARENHRTEE
HENEEHEEERE
RAaal([BHEEDHK
EBABRBEBENRFRE -
W 225 4t -
BFREEBERAT —T-_—FER
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2020, the contingent
consideration receivable is determined by
reference to the financial statements of
AP Group and its subsidiaries for the years
ended 31st December 2016 and 2017, in
which the consolidated results showed a net
loss position. As at 30th June 2020, it was
estimated that a 5% increase or decrease
in the expected net loss of AP Group while
holding all other variables constant would not
significantly affect the value of contingent
consideration receivable.

As at 30th June 2020, it was estimated that a
5% increase or decrease in the discount rate
used while holding all other variables constant
would not significantly affect the value of
contingent consideration receivable.

During the years ended 2021 and 2020,
there were no movements in the balance of
contingent consideration receivable in Level 3
fair value measurement.

3

FEEREERSRMIAZ

NEE@®

33 AV EFTE@®

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

The contingent consideration payable was
derecognised during the year ended 30th
June 2021 through the settlement agreement
signed on 1st February 2021. Further details
of the settlement are disclosed in note 38(a).
The valuation technigues and key inputs used
for contingent consideration payable in Level
3 fair value measurement at 30th June 2020
are as follows:

Valuation
techniques

EER%

REMB|RME

3 HEEkREEKREMIAZ
NFE @
33 AHEETE®m
() EAFEFEZEH
EERAEGE®
N FIEFR (&)
BT - (48)
) ENSAREBEEREZZ
T —FRA=ZTHILERF
EEBAR-_ZT-_—%_A
—HEF 2R mEZ L
R - BB E—2F
BRI 38 @) EE - 1
—TTFERA=+H"
ENKAREE=RRF
B EMERZEERE
REEHABIELT
Significant
unobservable input Range
BERTAHE
WAHE g
HKS
BT

Discounted cash
flow approach

BEREREE

Contingent consideration
payable
BRIk ARE

The fair value of the contingent consideration
payable represented the profit guarantee
in relation to the adjustments to the
consideration from the disposal of AP Group
as detailed in note 31.

Expected net loss

REFER

=
E=3

Expected loss of
HK$1,875,845
TEEAES 181,875,845 T

N AREH R TEE
BEHETHEBNRE
HBAENEMNRE R
MHEE317Eat -

FREX(CEBERLDR —T-—FF§
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3 ji%ﬂﬁfﬁ SIENERMT A
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N E@E
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 AFEFTE®
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) BAFEFEZEEH
fair value (Continued) EEREBE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEZR (E)
Notes: (Continued) st : (88
(c)  (Continued) 0 &
As at 30th June 2020, the contingent RZZEZZEFNA=+
consideration payable is determined by H - ERKARETIRE
reference to the financial statements of EPEE R A BN A
AP Group and its subsidiaries for the years BT —RFRZT—t
ended 31st December 2016 and 2017, in F+ZA=+—HILFE
which the consolidated results showed a net MR (HPaREEE
loss position. As at 30th June 2020, it was J&%E’\J‘%Eﬂéﬁﬁﬂ)ﬁéi °
estimated that a 5% increase or decrease E"_ T_TF~A=T
in the expected net loss of AP Group while BREMAREMESE
holding all other variables constant would not %T*“‘ AR EBE I?E
significantly affect the value of contingent HFEB AR THE5%
consideration payable. The amount would BreRELEREMNIA
become payable once the actual results of REHEEBE - —BEEEE
AP Group is finalised and no discount factor HEBERESE 228
is applied to the amount. As a result, no BAESZMN  BZESBETLT
sensitivity analysis for the year ended 30th AR3R o E L - I & 3L TE AR
June 2020 were disclosed for the impact of )‘%"Eﬂéﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬁyz 7
changes in expected net loss and discount BEREREE_T_TFA
rate. A=1THILFEZH#KE
DT
The movement during the year in the balance ZEE=HATEFEZ
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are muﬁ%ﬁ’\\iﬂqﬁiﬂﬁﬂ—lt :
as follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaxT FAET
Contingent consideration BARARE :
payable:
At the beginning of the year REH] (20,400) (20,400)
Derecognised through settlement B BHMER FE L1
agreement (Note 38(a)) TR (K15E38(a)) 20,400 =
At the end of the year RER - (20,400)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

The financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss classified under Level 3 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy represent
investment in the equity security of a Listed
entity which trading was suspended.

The fair value of those equity instruments
is mainly valued based on Guideline Publicly
Traded Company (the “"GPTC") method
whereas the key inputs to the valuation
models include the market multiples, share
prices of similar companies that are traded
in a public market and discount for lack
of marketability. The discount for lack of
marketability used are unobservable input.
As at 30th June 2021, if any of the significant
unobservable input above was 5% higher/
lower while all the other variables were held
constant, the changes in fair value of the
listed equity security would not be significant
to the Group.

=
E=3

REMB|RME

BEEREEERERmTE
NEE@®

33 RNEEFTE®
(i) BRATFEFTEZ2EH
EERBE®
AT EZH E)
W - (8)

d SDERRFEFEERE
=HMETERBRERAF
BARZZREEER—
MLEmERBZEAZES
(BEEFEER)ZKE -

ZERBETAZATEE
2B 2R SR A
(MBI 2RAZ B RRE
EITHE - EZTET
HEREZ T 2R AHE
BREARTSETRS
ZRBRARZTSEE
BB R SR TS PR
ZHiE - AZHRED
BIERTE Z TR AT A
R@ARE RN-T——
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HERREERERMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSTIER?)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 RYEFE®
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) BAFEFEZEEH
fair value (Continued) EEREE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEZR (E)

Notes: (Continued)
(d)  (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are

faE - ()
o @&

HESMATET B
RERZ BT :

as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZT-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Listed equity security suspended L TRRATES
from trading (BEEEE)
At the beginning of the year REH) 3,300 8,691
Total loss included in profit or FFAEEZEBE
loss ek (1,950) (5,391)
At the end of the year RER 1,350 3,300
2021 2020
—E=-—F BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Total loss included in profit or PR EHR
loss for assets held at the BBEESA
end of the reporting period iEngwd api=Fy (1,950) (5,391)

(ii)  Financial assets and liabilities at other than (i)
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair
values as at 30th June 2021 and 2020.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021

WA FEIIEZ
cREEREE

75 B 3 K A ol B S A AR A
RreemITAEZERAEBERER
RZEZ—FRZTZFF
NAZTBZRAFEEZRT
j( °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

()  Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits

The Group assesses annually whether there
is any indication for impairment on the film
rights, films in progress and film related
deposits for video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights segment and further assesses
if they have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.

4

k=S
=T

G

(a)

FIRE

SEHEE R

BRERAE S RTEFG - AR
FRELRMEBEZETIE B
EERBATHRARBEENARAREN
FEA o

B R HE M RER
$%lg$x¢ﬁﬁxﬂﬁﬂ i

VEEEENEEE  ROGH

,\,\;ﬁ,n§E$BEﬂ° BERERARSE

B TMEMBFEHNEEMB BN
EEFHEAFBNGEMBRS
Eap N

(i)

EME - RIFFZ
EYREYHEETS
B
IR EB REOFT AL B R K -
ARERSEET  BHE
TR BEREEEY
R HE 5 284 4 3T 5 B IR
B2 EYRER
BTS2 7 A A
2 - TR E R B AT
— P -

LXEBERAF —T-—FFR
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e M BHRHE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(i)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021

Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits (Continued)

As at 30th June 2021, the Group assessed that
there were impairment indication for certain
films included in films rights, film in progress
and film related deposits with gross carrying
amount of approximately HK$3,950,000,
HK$16,954,000 and HK$25,157,000
respectively because of the change of
comparable market information and expected
performance. As at 30th June 2021, these film
rights, film in progress and film related deposit
have been reduced to their recoverable
amount of approximately HK$46,000,
HK$13,205,000 and HK$13,801,000
respectively. The recoverable amount was
determined on a title-by-title basis, and is
assessed with reference to a value-in-use
calculation at the end of the reporting period,
which was derived from discounting the
projected cash flow forecast using a discount
rate of 11% (2020: 11%). Key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculations related to the
estimation of cash inflow include the budget
film exhibition income, budget licensing and
sub-licensing income revenue and discount
rate. Such estimation is based on the historical
box office of the same director and main cast
members, the market comparable data of films
with the same theme, and management’s
expectations of the market development. The
discount rate used is before tax and reflected
current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the film
production business.

4

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits (Continued)

Taking into account the impairment
assessment performed by the management,
an impairment loss of film rights of
approximately HK$3,000,000 (2020:
HK$904,000), an impairment loss of film
related deposits of approximately HK$Nil
(2020: HK$11,356,000), and an impairment
loss of films in progress of approximately
HK$Nil (2020: HK$3,749,000) were recognised
respectively in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended
30th June 2021 to reduce the carrying
amounts of these assets to their recoverable
amounts. The directors and management have
considered and assessed reasonably possible
changes for other key assumptions and have
not identified any instances that could cause
the carrying amount of film rights, film in
progress and film related deposits to exceed
their recoverable amount as at 30th June
2021.

As at 30th June 2021, the aggregate carrying
amount of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits amounted to
approximately HK$357,523,000 (2020:
HK$290,106,000).

4

k=S
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(a)

FIRE

(i)
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(ii)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021

Provision for impairment of accounts
receivable

Accounts receivable are reviewed by
management at the end of each reporting
period to determine the expected credit
losses. The management bases the estimates
on the historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and assessments of both current and
forecast general economic conditions. Credit
risk assessments focus on the customers’
past history of making payments when due
and current ability and willingness to pay,
taking into account the financial position
of the customers and the macroeconomic
environment in which the customers operate.
If the financial conditions of the customers
and/or the macroeconomic environment of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to repay, additional
impairment provision may be reputed. If
the financial conditions of these customers
were to deteriorate, additional provision for
impairment may be required. As at 30th
June 2021, the carrying amount of accounts
receivable amounted to approximately
HK$108,865,000 (2020: HK$73,105,000).

4
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REMB|RME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Estimated valuation of investment properties

In determining the fair value, the valuer has
based on property valuation techniques which
involve, inter alia, certain estimates including
comparable sales in the relevant market,
appropriate discount rates and expected
future market rents. In relying on the valuation
report, management has exercised their
judgement and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
condition. As at 30th June 2021, the carrying
amount of investment properties amounted
to approximately HK$31,460,000 (2020:
HK$31,460,000).

Estimation of fair value of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss that are not
traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in these estimates
and assumptions could have a material
effect on the fair value of the financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

4
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e M BHRHE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Estimation of fair value financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

As at 30th June 2021, the carrying amount
of other financial assets amounted to
approximately HK$16,771,000 (2020:
HK$10,008,000).

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax
losses can be utilised, and is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax assets are
realised. In determining the deferred tax
assets to be recognised, management is
required to estimate the future applicable tax
rate for each entity within the Group at each
tax jurisdiction and the profitability of each
entity, so as to estimate the future utilisation
of tax losses. Any difference between these
estimates and the actual outcome will impact
the Group’s results in the period in which
the actual outcome is determined. As at 30th
June 2021, the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets amounted to approximately
HK$471,000 (2020: HK$271,000).

4
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(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(vi)

Impairment of loans receivable and other
receivables

The impairment loss for using the expected
credit loss model is subjected to a number of
key parameters and assumptions, including
the identification of loss stages, estimates
of probability of default, loss given default,
exposures at default and discount rate,
adjustments for forward-looking information
and other adjustment factors. The expected
credit losses for loans receivable and other
receivables are derived from estimates
whereby management takes into consideration
historical data, the historical loss experience
and other adjustment factors. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of the
relevant observable data that reflect current
economic conditions and the judgment based
on management’s historical experience.
Management reviews the selection of
those parameters and the application of the
assumptions regularly to reduce any difference
between loss estimates and actual loss. As
at 30th June 2021, the carrying amount of
loans receivable, loan to an associate, amount
due from an associate and financial assets
included in deposits paid, prepayments and
other receivables amounted to approximately
3,466,000 (2020: HK$7,216,000), HKS$NIl
(2020: HK$NiIl), HK$Nil (2020: HK$53,000),
and HK$48,204,000 respectively (2020:
HK$19,549,000).
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e M BHRHE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group amortises its other intangible
assets with a finite useful life on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives reflect management’s
estimate of the period that the Group is able
to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the other intangible assets. At 30th
June 2021, the carrying amount of other
intangible assets amounted to approximately
HK$2,092,000 (2020: HK$2,239,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group’'s management reviews the
inventory ageing analysis periodically, and
makes allowance on an annual basis for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer marketable. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a
product-by-product basis at the end of each
reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving items through
management’s estimation of the net realisable
value for such obsolete and slow-moving
items based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. At 30th
June 2021, the carrying amount of inventories
amounted to approximately HK$9,843,000
(2020: HK$10,963,000).

4

BRI EERAE@®

(a)

FReHEE RRER®

(vii)

(viii)

HttELEE Z M
58

AEEREBEEBRAIERST
HrHMmEREE 2T H
FRFHUNEREEHEZSE
| EE - hstr AT
RREREHAEBEFEE
BEREMBEREENESE
R 35 2 BHRfHE ©
R-_ZE-_—FXA=+H"
Hth@EPEEZREEY
/2,092,000 (= =%
£ 1 2,239,000/ 7T) °

FEURRFE

AEEZEBETHEMT
BZERERST TEBFA
BRATHEANENRE
LEEFEBEBEERRE -
RERERER - AEEESR
MEEERIGTE  UTEFE
BEEEFEREBEZNERE
BRBIITMHBEREZER
ERFHEBEMECTER
FEGE - BRE RBHIE
SR I A —

ANA=ZTH GBEZE@EE
#)7/59,843,0008 L (—F =
Z4F 1 10,963,000/ 7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Critical accounting judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

Classification of joint arrangements

The Group has entered into joint arrangements to
produce and distribute television series, films and
webisodes. The Group has participating interests
ranging from 5% to 90% (2020: from 5% to 90%)
in these joint arrangements. The Group has joint
control over these arrangements as, under the
contractual agreements, unanimous consent is
required from all parties to the agreements for all
relevant activities. The Group’s joint arrangements
involve the joint control by the venturers of the
assets contributed to the joint arrangement and
dedicated to the purposes of each joint arrangement
for the benefits of the venturers. Each venturer
may take a share of the output from the assets
and each bears an agreed share of the expenses
incurred. These joint arrangements do not involve
the establishment of a corporation, partnership or
other entity, or a financial structure that is separate
from the venturers themselves. Therefore, these
arrangements are classified as joint operations of
the Group and the Group recognises in relation
to its interest in a joint operation in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 2.5. The
determination of the relevant activities under joint
operations requires management’s significant
judgement.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines (products and services).
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Chairman of the Company,
being the Group’'s chief operating decision maker
("CODM") for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group ceased
its business in securities brokerage and margin financing
which are classified as discontinued operations for the

year ended 30th June 2020 and 2021.

The Group has presented the following reportable
segments.

Continuing operations

- Video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights

- Trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products
and watches products

- Leasing of investment properties
- Securities investments

- Money lending

- Entertainment business

- Financial printing services

Discontinued operation

- Securities brokerage and margin financing (ceased
during the year ended 30th June 2018)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations. The profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations is measured consistently
with the Group’s loss before tax from continuing
operations except fair value change of other
financial assets, amortisation of deferred day one
gain in respect of derivative instruments, gain on
settlement of litigation, finance income, unallocated
finance costs, share of loss of associates, and
unallocated corporate expenses.

Segment assets exclude unallocated other intangible
assets, interests in associates, other financial
assets, unallocated loan receivable, unallocated time
deposits with maturity over 3 months at acquisition,
unallocated cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax
assets, loan to an associate, amount due from an
associate, contingent consideration receivable and
other unallocated corporate assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred
tax liabilities, contingent consideration payable
and other unallocated corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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e M BHRHE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment

5

o EBE R @)

(a)

ﬁv\%ﬁuﬁzﬁé CEEBE
ISE=NEC:

W E—T - —FR-TFERA
“TRLFE  BHRTASEEE
BERREREERD KM EPE

of segment performance for the years ended 30th Bz AEE 25D BHER N
June 2021 and 2020 is set out below: N
2021
I2-f
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
bt Bi ] BRILEEEE
Video Trading,
distribution,  wholesaling,
film and
distribution retailing
and of optical Securities
exhibition, products brokerage
licensing and and  Leasing of Total for and Total for
sub-licensing watches  investment Securities Money ~ Entertainment Financial continuing margin  discontinued
of film rights products  properties  investments lending business printing  Elimination  operations financing operations Total
BERT
E¥EMR  BEERR
H# - Bt HRER BAL
REREY FAUE it KREE  BREER f-£34
R HEREE RENE R5RE HE REXE BHBER s RBeE FREE &t @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
7 AT TER  TER  TER 7 TR TET  TER AR TRE  TRE
Segment revenue SPhE
Disaggregate by timng of ~ EHERIEHAH
revenue recognition
~Point in time 54,111 55,867 - - - 254 7,953 - 588,845 2 2 568,847
- Over time - - - - - - 1,621 - 1,621 - - 11,621
~Revenue out of scope of
HKFRS 15
- - 1,167 - 967 - - - 2,134 - - 2,134
Exteral revenue ikl 52411 55,867 1,167 - 967 254 19,574 - 602,600 2 2 602,602
Inter-segment sales HPEEE kil = = = = = 340 (37) S S S S
524,802 55,867 1,167 - 967 254 19914 (3n) 602,600 2 2 602,602
Segment results 193,473 (14,744) 870 (12,262) (970) (1,179) 4,464) (31) 160,353 (294) (294) 160,059
Fair value change of other
financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or
loss m - m
Amortisation of deferred
day one gain in respect
of derivative financial
instruments 5531 - 5,531
Gain on settlement ey 18549 = 18,549
Finance income BIMA 2,000 - 2,000
Finance cost BB (167) (167)
Share of losses of AEBERAER
associates - - -
Unallocated corporate AARLERR
expenses (5,470) = (5,470)
Loss before tax HHAER 181,509 (204) 181215
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and

5

ya) %B ;E *’I’ (IHE

D EblEs ~ %

(a)

s BE

. g, 35 r
liabilities (Continued) NE=EERC )
2021
=
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B&L
b bS] EEH
Video
distribution, Trading,
film  wholesaling,
distribution  and retailing
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensingand ~ productsand ~ Leasing of Totalfor  brokerage
sub-licensing watches  investment Securities Money  Entertainment Financial ~ continuing  and margin
of film rights products properties  investments lending business printing ~ operations financing Total
BERT REERR
EYRGR HHER
HER - R 285" it kREE  BREER
BREYRE  HBREE RENR BERE HE RERE AR EhaE AREE a3t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR ThT ThT ThT TR ThT Thn TEn Tin ThR
Assets
Segment assets 501,267 23556 31,564 76919 1216 31m 12614 650,313 4,806 655,119
Other financial assets 16,723 - 16,723
Deferred tax assets m - m
Unallocated other intangible
assets 1,858 - 1,858
Unallocated loans receivable 666 - 666
Unallocated cash and cash )
equivalents &N 312,101 -
Unallocated corporate assets FORLEEE 4834 = 4,834
Total consolidated assets LREEGE 1,046,966 4806 1,051,772
Liabilities
Segment fabities 433,19 25,867 260 - - 1871 12347 41354 75 474316
Taxation payable 38,164 © 38,164
Deferred tax liabilties 102 - 102
Unallocated corporate liablfies * @Em%ﬁf 33723 = 313
Total consolidated liabilties LABEEE 545,530 75 546,305
BEFRECEBERDA T —FFH
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e M BHRHE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a)

5 DEER@®
(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and

214

liabilities (Continued) )SZ F
2021
e
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BAL
RREERR EExH
Video
distribution, Trading,
film  wholesaling,
distribution  and retailing
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensingand  productsand ~ Leasing of Totalfor  brokerage
sub-licensing watches  investment Securities Money  Entertainment Financial ~ continuing  and margin
of film rights products  properties  investments lending business printing  operations financing Total
BEYT REERR
BYRTR HHER
H- RER 285" ot FREE  BRELR
BRERE  HBREE RENR BERE HE RERE AR EhaE fREE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TER Ten  fan Ten  Ten TR FAR TER FER
Other information £bEn
Additons of property, plant and TENE KERRE
equipment 134 1,067 15 - - o 127 1,343 - 1343
Additions of rght-of-use assets TEfRELE 83% 7,354 - - - - 3,080 18,829 - 18,829
Additons of unallocated propety, fﬁ%ﬂﬂ%% HER
plant and equipment 5 - 5
Total additions of property, plant
and equipment 201717 - 211
Additions of fim rights and fimsin ~ FEZHMREREERZ
progress / 257421 o o o = o = 257421 o 257421
Additons of film related deposits HE: 2950 o o o = o - 2,950 - 22,950
Depreciation 102 1,720 15 = = = 1 1844 © 1844
Unallocated depreciation S S 0 o o 2 O n = "
Amortisation of fim rights EYME EY 197,986 = = = = = = 197,986 - 197,986
Depreciation of right-of-use assets wi%é@zﬁ% 3682 5513 o o o 12 513 9,720 - 9,720
Unallocated depreciation of AARERELE N
right-of-use assets 0 0 0 2 O = = 270 - 200
Amortisation of other intangole AhEvEE BN
assets - 7 - - - - - 47 - 47
Total depreciation and amortisation  FTEREHEE 209978 o 209978
Write-down of inventories BEZHH = 1,693 = = = = = 1,693 = 1,693
Reversal of write-down of HEHRER
nventories (187) (1,880) - o - - - (2,067) - (2,067)
Impaitment loss of property, plant 1% + BEREEHE
and equipment 5 o = o o = = 120 120 = 120
Impaitment loss of ight-of-use {FREEENEER
assets - 3,388 - - - - 2,566 5,954 - 5954
Impairrent loss of fimrights and ~ EARERSUFT 2B
fims i progress SR 3000 = = = = = S 3,000 = 3,000
Change in ECLs TSR RHRERR
29
- Accounts receivable - EAER 1,306 = = = = (18) 528 1816 = 1816
- Loans receivable (m) - - - 2 - - (109) - (109)
- Other receivables (93) = = = = 2 = 1) = (91)
Unallocated change in ECLs 66 - 66
Total change in ECLs 1,682 - 1,682
Fair value change of trading
securities o o o 12,460 = S S 12,460 o 12,460
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REMB|RME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

5

DEER @

> N2 Al = > >
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and (a) PEMWaE ~ 45 BE
. g (== .
liabilities (Continued) Y=L ()
2020
k-3
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
HREEZE BEIHTERH
Video Trading,
distribution, ~ wholesaling,
fim and
distribution retailing
and of optical Securities
exhibition, products brokerage
licensing and and Leasing of Total for and Total for
subricensing watches  investment Securities Money  Entertainment Financial continuing margin -~ discontinued
of fim rights products properties  investments lending business printing Elimination operations financing operations Total
BEHT
BYRTR REERR
1 Bl EHER B
REREY 8% i BANE  BREER fEE S
g HERTE REnE E5RE HE REEH Bl it 2heE ARRE &t &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
i i i i FAT FET TFEr FAT FAn i FAn i
Segment revenue AP
Disaggregate by timng of AR EABHSH
revenue recognition
~Pointin time -F-BE 154,864 51,018 - - - 2082 - - 207,924 3 3 207,957
- Over time -RER - - - - - - 9814 - 9814 - - 9814
-Revenue outof scopeof - EVEETEHEEE
HKFRS 15 F1SHEEN
g - - 1,140 - 7889 - - - 9029 - - 9029
External revenue ke 154,864 51,018 1,140 - 7,889 2,082 9,814 - 226,767 kel kel 226,800
Inter-segment sales AUEEE - - - - - - kil [371) - - - -
154,864 51,018 1140 S 200 10,185 B 2676 % B 180
Segment results S | 17,355 (12,101) 928 (5,754) (13370 (857) (11,134) 31 (25,304) 7% 7% (24,509)
Fair value change of other ~~ EABHEATEAE
financial assets carried at ZEMEREELL
fairvalue through profitor ~~ FEEH
loss (3,981) - 3,561)
Amortisation of deferred ATESRTIAZER
day one gain In respect ERKEEH
of derivative financial
instruments 5,545 - 5,545
Finence income BBRA 2987 = 2987
Finance cost A ] €]
Share of losses of HMiBELREE
associates (1,085) - 1,085)
Unallocated corporate AARLERR
expenses (7,065) - (7,065)
Loss before tax Bhilsg (28,506 %@
EFRELEBER AR T —FFRH
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities (Continued)

5 DEER@®

(a)

D EblEs ~ %

NE=EERC )

_\LLLZ%E‘;

Nne=

=3

2020
E0EE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BEL
REMERE EEES ]
Video
distribution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retaling
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensingand ~ products and Leasing of Total for brokerage
sub-ficensing watches  investment Securities Money  Entertainment Financial continuing and margin
of film ights products properties  investments lending business printing operations financing Total
B85 BEERR
YRR EHER
1 BiHR 85 i BREE  EREER
AREYNE HEREE EEVES E5RA e RE2H Bl £hiE ARME 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin Fin Tin Tin Tin Tin Fin Fin FiEn
Assets 4E
Segment assets HUEE 371,841 21636 31502 3300 1,348 4,250 6,537 46414 4,950 41,364
Other financial assets EfoREE 10,008 - 10,008
Deferred tax assets ERHEEE m - m
Amount due from an associate k- EBE AR 5 - 5
Unallocated other ntangible RAREMENEE
assets 1,858 - 1858
Unallocated loans receivable FORENER 5868 - 5868
Unallocated time deposits with REARISEEE
maturity over 3 months at ZARZKSE
acquisition THER 108,640 - 108640
Unallocated cash and cash AARRERAS
equivalents 2ED 102,976 - 097
Unallocated corporate assets FAMLEEE 2750 - 2,750
Total consolidated assets GARESE 678838 4950 683788
Liabilities &f
Segment lisbilties ABEE 263615 20659 21 108 400 2,208 6,543 283784 802 284,586
Taxation payable AR 5,960 - 5,960
Deferred tax iabiltes ERHRARE 8 - 8
Contingent consideration ERFARE
payable 20400 - 20400
Unallocated corporate liablfies FoEL2ER 17866 - 17,866
Total consolidated lisblties GABREE 328,004 802 328,8%
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REMB|RME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

liabilities (Continued)

Segment revenue, results, assets and

5 SDEER@®

(a)

NE=EERC )

Dl - E4E B

=3

2020
E0EE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BRI
REERE EEES )
Video
distribution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retaling
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensingand ~ products and Leasing of Total for brokerage
sub-ficensing watches  investment Securities Money  Entertainment Financial continuing and margin
of film ights products properties  investments lending business printing operations financing Total
B85 BEERR
BYATR EHER
1 BiHR 85 i BREE  EREER
AREYINE HEREE EEUES E5RA e RE2H Bl £hiE ARME 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin Fin Tin Tin Tin Tin Fin Fin T
Other information EfbEH
Additions of property, plant and TENZ  BERRE
equipment 78 1573 2 - - 2 1,399 3078 - 3078
Additons of right o use asses HERREAE 05 6113 - - - - 1382 7690 - 7690
Additions of unallocated property,  AERARNE - BER
plant and equipment & 56 - 56
Additons of unallocated TERDREAELE
right-of-use assets 541 - 541
Total additions of property, plant TENE KERRE
and equipment % 11,365 - 11,365
Additons of intangible assets FEEVEE - - - - - - 1414 1414 - 1414
Additions of fim rights and fimsin ~~ FEZPiRERE R
progress £ 30,089 - - - - - - 30,089 - 30,089
Aditions of film related deposits B HEE 30,007 - - - - - - 30,007 - 30,007
Depreciation g 104 2,566 1 - - 1 310 2,992 - 2992
Unallocated depreciation RARNE - - - - - - - ki) - 3%
Amortisaton of fim rights ERiE Y 4149 - - - - - - 149 - 4149
Depreciation of rightofuse assets  (FFEAEZITE 3628 52395 - - - 35 2413 1147 - 1147
Unallocated depreciation of RARERELELFE
right-of-use assets - - - - - - - 68 - 68
Amortisation of other intangole EhEVAE ES
assets - 148 - - - - 249 397 - 397
Total depreciation and amortisation 17 & RE£8 59,12 = 59,12
Write-down inventories [3-v2 )} - a - - N - - Iy = 1Y)
Reversal of write-down of FEMRER
nventories - (406) - - - - - (406) - [406)
Impaiment loss of property, plant 1% + BERREHE
and equipment L] - = = - & = 1,090 1,090 = 1,090
Impaitment loss of other intangible  EHEREEHESE
assets - - - - - - 1,165 1,165 - 1,165
Impaitment loss of ight-of-use {FRELENEER
assets = = - - - - 2,069 2,069 - 2,069
Impaiment loss of fim rights and ERMERR(EEY
fims in progress HEEE 4653 - - N - - = 4653 - 4653
Impairment loss of fim related BB AEER
deposits 11,356 - - - P - - 11,366 = 11,356
Change in ECLs ISR RBEERR
Lok
- Accounts receivable - RS 8 - - - - B 956 1,066 (1,500) (434)
- Loans recsivable -BRER 127 = = = 18,663 = = 18780 = 18780
- Other receivables - Bt 647) - - = 386 4 - (267) - (267)
Unallocated change in ECLs AR REEEERRD 3586 = 3586
Tota change in ECLs RELRERESAE BT (1500 21675
Fair value change of trading RHEFLTESY
securities - - = 5391 - K - 5391 - 5391
BEFREVVEEBERAT —T_—FFK
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

5 DEER @)

Geographical information (b) hig &
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The KRB ES - REBECEBE
Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong EMREBRPEH -
and the PRC.
The revenue information below is based on the VAT U 2 B T LA & P e 4 B
location of the operations. P
2021
—E_—F
Non-current
assets (other
than financial
instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
FREBEE
(FEFESHE
TAERIEE
g BEBEEE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FH&xT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) 75 (Fr1Eih) 74,327 385,814
Macau JEFS 71 =
PRC and other Asian countries B R E i g M B 5K
(other than Hong Kong and Macau) (& FORPIBRIN) 525,386 22,392
Others Hh 2,816 =
602,600 408,206
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEEEEK
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (FriEih) 2 -
Total HET 602,602 408,206
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DIER @
(b) Geographical information (Continued) (b) Mol E R @)
2020
—E-TF
Non-current
assets (other
than financial
instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
EMBEE
(T EETH
THRIEE
W ek HIBEE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREEL
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &5 (FrfEit) 83,456 314,385
Macau SEPY 230 -
PRC and other Asian countries AR B R B g B R
(other than Hong Kong and Macau) (B8 KIBFIERIN) 142,365 26,691
Others Eih 716 -
226,767 341,076
DISCONTINUED OPERATION CRIREEK
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &4 (FriEns) 33 -
Total st 226,800 341,076

JRE

ot
%

MERBEBERAT T —FFR
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5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

(d)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 30th June 2021, one of the
customers from video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights segment contributed 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue amounting to approximately
HK$60,260,000 (2020: one of the customers
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
amounting to approximately HK$23,460,000).

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts
for video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights,
entertainment business, trading, wholesaling and
retailing of optical products and watch products and
provision of financial printing services, such that the
Group does not disclose information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies
the remaining performance obligations under the
sales contracts as their performance has an original
expected duration of one year or less.

5

il

(c)

(d)

a
L
A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

Sz D
6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 W - HBENEXE
Other properties,
plant and
equipment
leased for own Machinery
use carried Leasehold and Furniture Motor Office
atcost  improvements equipment  and fixtures vehicles equipment Total
REANR
HEMERRN
S
BERRE  HEVERE  AEREE  KAREE RE BOERR 2]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL ThL Tir Tk T T L
Costs A
At 1st July 2019 RZE-NELF-H 19,392 9,744 25,725 2314 3734 10,331 71,240
Additions RE 8,231 2,331 1 313 - 489 11,365
Disposals e - - - (28) - (153) (181)
Wite-off i - (248) - (473 - - (121)
Exchange realignment EiEE (125) it - (40) ) 27 (29)
Lease modification HEEY (339) - - - - - (339)
At 30th June 2020 and RZZ-5F1 A=A
Tst July 2020 R=Z-5F+A-A 271,159 11,729 25,726 2,086 3,729 10,640 81,069
Additions WE 18829 647 - 291 - 410 20177
Disposals & - - (1 () - - 6)
Wite-off it (9,079) (2,475) - (147) - (1,480) (13,181)
Exchange realignment EHBE 39 275 - 9% 12 8 812
Lease modification REEY 334 - - - - - 33
Cancellation of tenancy NHRERE
agreement (2,786) - - - - - (2,786)
e e L. LU BI% L. 289 ... o W, ., B9
Accumulated depreciation  EFERAEFE
and impairment loss
At Tst July 2019 RZE-NELF-H - 8,024 25713 1923 2,661 8,878 47,199
Depreciation charge (Note 33~ TTEZ A (#33) 11539 1,635 1 163 714 504 14,566
Disposals L& - - - (28 - (153) (181)
Write-off W - (248) - (473) - - (121)
Exchange realignment EiFE ) (88) - (30) (72 (26) (224)
Impairment (Note 33) (33 2,069 743 - 39 - 308 3159
At 30th June 2020 and R-E-5%7 A=A
Tst July 2020 R=Z-5F+A-A 13,600 10,066 25,724 1,594 3303 9,511 63,798
Depreciation charge HEER 9,990 924 1 179 426 325 11,845
Disposals e = - i) () = = 6)
Wite-off i (9,079) (1,947) - 81) - (736) (11,843)
Exchange realignment EiHE 132 247 - 59 12 69 519
Impairment BE 5,954 = - 2 - 118 6,074
Cancellation of tenancy NERERE
agresment (1,008) - - ‘ - - (1,098)
o AELUEWE RIEZTRRAZIRL L L N WL LN e Sl P
Net carrying amount REFE
At 30th June 2021 R-E--Fr A=A 15,307 886 1 571 & 365 17,130
At 30th June 2020 RZZ-ZEA=1A 13,559 1,663 2 49 426 1,129 17,271
BRRATEBERAT —T-—541%K 221
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Statements

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 W - HERXRBE®
(Continued)
Depreciation of approximately HK$1,000 (2020: WEHN1,0008B L (2 F
HK$411,000) has been charged to “cost of revenue” and 411,000 70) BERERE 2 EKE T 2T
approximately HK$11,844,000 (2020: HK$14,155,000) mﬁkmqﬂ?uﬁ% M#11,844,0007% 7T
has been charged to “administrative expenses” in the ZZ =T F 14,155, OOO/%TE)EE/\\NT
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. EEEWERKXZITIRER]F KR
In accordance with the Group's accounting policy, BEAEBE 25K @ W - #eS
property, plant and equipment (note 2.8) and right-of-use N (M sE2.8) K fF B #E & E (M &
assets (note 2.10(i)) are stated at cost less accumulated 2100 R AR R 5T B OB EBES)
depreciation and impairment loss. During the year, B RAEE - MEHRIEL 2mE -
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets HEERBEURGEAEEETERE -
for financial printing business were fully impaired as RERAEREEEEMFTZEEELR
the value-in-use of those assets are estimated by the HEEBEAZAEIT  NAZESBBAE
management of the Group to be HK$Nil because of the VBREAERTERZSEEESEER
past poor financial performance of the business segment REAERFKIIBESRA o
and it is foreseen that those assets will not be able to be
used to generate positive future cash inflow.
The impairment losses of property, plant and equipment M MEREREARTEREEE 2R
and right-of-use assets of approximately HK$120,000 BEE1EDRI4120,0008 L (ZE ==&
(2020: HK$1,090,000) and HK$5,954,000 (2020: £ 1,090,000/ 7T) 5,954,000 7T
HK$2,069,000) were recognised in the consolidated (ZZE=ZF : 2,069,000 0) BN A
statement of comprehensive income respectively. FHEHRERAER o
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FHAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use EZHRBEERRE D < EAEEE
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: BREFESHTT
As at As at
30th June Tst July
2020 2020
R-ZBE-EF RITZEF
ANB=+H +A—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other properties leased forown  IZEITERAAREE
used, carried at depreciated cost ~ A{EE AR EM Y% 15,307 13,441
Motor vehicle leased for own used, Z&ITEKRNARHEE
carried at depreciation cost LAMEE AR RE - 118
15,307 13,559
Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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REMB|RME

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 W - HERXRBE®
(Continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) FEREEE®

The analysis of expenses items in relation to leases

RIBEERNEERBEMAXIAER D

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: Hran
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Depreciation charge of REBEEERNEDH
right-of-use assets by class of FREEEBRATE
underlying asset: (Note 33) (F3E33)
Other properties leased MEEE A
for own use Hob P 9,883 11,432
Motor vehicle leased MENEE AN AE
for own use 107 107
9,990 11,539
Impairment loss of right-of-use FRAEEEREBE
assets (Note 33) (F45E33) 5,954 2,069
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEHNE (FIFE33)
(Note 33) 528 542
Expense relating to short-term EEAR SRR
leases (Note 33) (PF$7£33) 1,666 2,887
Expense relating to leases of HEREEEEMERX
low-value assets (Note 33) (F3£33) 96 64
Variable lease payments not WEFAHEGEAZEZ
included in the measurement of AR E R K (FFESI)
lease liabilities (Note 33) 299 633

RTREXCEBAERRR —FT_—FFRH
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e M BHRHE

6

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were approximately HK$18,829,000 (2020:
HK$8,231,000). This amount primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under a new
tenancy agreement.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 45(c) and 28 respectively.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its office, warehouse and retail stores
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 2 to 3 years. The lease of
retail stores contain variable lease payment terms
that are based on sales generated from the retail
stores and minimum annual lease payment terms
that are fixed. These payment terms are common in
retail stores in Hong Kong and the PRC where the
Group operates. Other than the retail stores, other
leases do not include variable lease payments.

Other leases

The Group leases a motor vehicle under leases
expiring in one year. The leases include an option
to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated
and include an option to purchase the motor vehicle
at the end of the lease term at a price deemed to
be a bargain purchase option. The lease does not
include variable lease payments.

6

M - BERRE®

(a)

(b)

(c)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

1T REYE

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

At fair value BAYE
At the beginning of the year RE] 31,460 31,460
Fair value change N EEE) - -
At the end of the year RER 31,460 31,460

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, that is, observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

WEME 2 RN FEFE

(a) AFESFHK
TREIINEERRBEF L
B WRE B REEDE
135 [ AP E B IPFIEEN=%
BAFESEHEOEEEDRAY
$NF{E - SEAFEIBNSH
SEHEI AT FEARALRY
ABREMANEEEEMT -

F1RGE: EERF 1ABAR
BAFEMATE  BINETERHE
BT AREERB BENAREH
BWRE

2 fHE - ERF2REARE
AEMATE ITHFaE IR
ABRBARE  RTEAEAT
AERNBAZE - TRHBRBA
FEEEANNSEBESNEA
g

EIWAE : RKERTAERNE
ABBFENAFE

RTREXCEBAERRR —FT_—FFRH
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7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 1 BREYZE®
Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties WEYHE 2 N ERE @)
(Continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) DAFEZFHRE

Fair value measurements at
30th June 2021 categorised into
R-B-_—-FXA=TALTEHERER

Fair value at

30th June 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-BE=Z—-F
~B=1H

ZAYE E1 B2 E3%

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET THET TET

Recurring fair value EEEATE
measurement itE
Investment properties: KEME
- Residential — Hong Kong -FE-F 31,460 = = 31,460
Fair value measurements at
30th June 2020 categorised into
RZE-_ZFEXAZ+HRFENERES
Fair value at
30th June 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-ZTE_ZF
NA=+H
AN S| FR FoR £33k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FEL FAT FEL
Recurring fair value KEENFE
measurement e
Investment properties: REME
- Residential = Hong Kong -FE-B5% 31,460 = = 31,460
During the year ended 30th June 2021, there HE-_ZT-_—FA=+tHLHF
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, B EFIRES2H 2 EBEE
or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil). The % BRI EEALEL(CE S
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between TF &) cAEENBEEER
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the WMEBRERESHANEENAFE
reporting period in which they occur. ERPEER 2 ERER o

226 Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

All investment properties of the Group were
revalued as at 30th June 2021. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, who have
amongst their staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued.
The management of the Group has discussions with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at
each reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

REMB|RME

7 BREYHE®

SEME 7 N EETE @)

(a)

(b)

Valuation Unobservable
techniques inputs
AAEREZBEA
HERE Hi&
Investment properties REBZREWE

in Hong Kong
- Residential properties  Direct comparison
approach

- FEME BELBUE
The fair value of investment properties located
in Hong Kong is determined using direct
comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square foot basis, adjusted for a premium or
discount specific to the quality and location of the
Group’s properties compared to recent sales of
comparable transactions. Higher discount for lower
quality properties will result in a lower fair value
measurement.

Discount on quality
of properties

RYESEE LS

N EFER @
AEBERERENEON T ——
FRA=THETEMR - HETH
B ERTT - B B IRIRFH A
BRRARETT  ZRRFDETR
BAREBMBEEER - HAHEY
SV FT A H A0 FTEE B Bl BB AT
B  NEBRREEBETHE
R AEEERED RS
EEREEEESER -

BEEMRAFETEZER

Range of
unobservable inputs
FHEERARE
ZEE

5%-0% (2020: 10%-15%)
5%0%(ZZE-FF : 10%-15%)

NRBBZEENEZ A FETE
RERLEEERE - RES2EH
HEMERET T REREETE
IHEE  BeRAKREYERE
BN E 7R B SR (BT
HHEX S LBMEIEHAR -
REARMEZERIESEHR
B2 RAFEFERE-

RTREXCEBAERRR —FT_—FFRH
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7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 7 REVE®
Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties SEYEZ N FEFE @)
(Continued)
(b) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (b) BEFERLATFETEZER
(Continued) (#&)
The movements during the year in the balance FANEIR AT EFELEBNED
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as wm
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Investment properties REWME
- Residential - Hong Kong -FE-5B
At the beginning of the year REH] 31,460 31,460
Fair value change NTEES) - -
At the end of the year RER 31,460 31,460
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REMB|RME

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8§ HMEEEE
Computer Club
software Brand name  membership Total
EREs mE B e Ll
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FAT TAT
Cost A
At 1st July 2019 RNZ_E-NFLA-H - 1,108 1,858 2,966
Addition WE 1,414 - - 1,414
At 30th June 2020, RZZZZFXA=1A "
Tst July 2021 and ZE--F+A-BRk
30th June 2021 —Z--FXA=TH 1,414 1,108 1,858 4,380
Accumulated amortisation R BERAERE
and impairment losses
At 1st July 2019 “E-NEtA-H - 579 - 579
Amortisation for the year FREE(HE33)

(Note 33) 249 148 - 397
Impairment (Note 33) A (ME33) 1,165 - - 1,165
At 30th June 2020 and RZZEZZFRA=Z+AR

Tst July 2020 —Z-TELA-H 1,414 727 - 2,141
Amortisation for the year FREHE(HE33)

(Note 33) - 147 - 147
At 30th June 2021 RZZEZ—%FA=+H 1,414 874 - 2,288

Carrying amount REE
At 30th June 2021 RZEZ—F/ A=1H - 234 1,858 2,092
At 30th June 2020 RZZZZERA=TH - 381 1,858 2,239
In accordance with the Group's accounting policy *ETFK/%.ZA‘EJFBZﬁ(W?EZ 13(c)) -

(note 2.13(c)), computer software is stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss.
During the year, computer software for financial printing
business was fully impaired as the value-in-use of the
computer software was estimated by the management

of the Group to be HK$Nil because of the past poor
financial performance of the business segment and it was
foreseen that the computer software was not be able to
be used to generate positive future cash inflow.

No impairment loss of the other intangible assets
was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (2020: HK$1,165,000).

EFTRECEBERLDR —T-—FFH

BB AR R AT # 5 OB E R 1R
B EVRI 75 2 I
BHEBRE  RARAEEEEER
AAEMEEZEREEST
AZEBO R BERBRRRERBHRE

§|JEE RAFEE

=TT - IR

A EERAREEERKEDRA -

j’IﬂHﬁEE%EFZﬁ@EﬂEB

A2EKRFERANER
1,165,000/ 7T) °

—7—?@

229



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

9  FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS 9 BEMERKERZER
Film Films in
rights progress Total
Bl
=AY ZE¥ M

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT

Cost A
At 1st July 2019 RZZ-NERA=TH 102,246 194,197 296,443
Additions NE 124 29,965 30,089
Refund of film production cost (Note (i) ~ RESZEIFER
GE) (3,864) - (3,864)
Transfer from film related deposits ERREYEE & 8,955 78 9,033
Write-off of expired film rights SIERE AR A 2 3K (5,707) - (5,707)
At 30th June 2020 and 1st July 2020 RZZZZF A=1THRK
—E-ZF+A-H 101,754 224,240 325,994
Additions NE 11,972 245,449 257,421
Transfer from film in progress HERAREPEY 188,611 (188,611) -
Write-off of expired film rights S HIE R 2 WsE (476) - (476)
Write-off DVD pre-product cost D\/DEK%‘J (FESi§= (42) - (42)
.. 30t June 2021 © LR REFZTFSASTR L 301819 281,078 | 882897
Accumulated amortisation and Rt RAE
impairment
At 1st July 2019 R-E—NFtHA—H 61,139 - 61,139
Amortisation for the year (Note 33) F R sH (R 5E33) 44,149 - 44,149
Impairment (Note 33) B (P EE33) 904 3,749 4,653
Write-off of expired film rights EIJHH?E AR 2 WiE (5,707) - (5,707)
At 30th June 2020 and 1st July 2020 ZEZTFERA=THR
:g_Titﬂ H 100,485 3,749 104,234
Amortisation for the year (Note 33) Fr# i (HE33) 197,986 - 197,986
Impairment (Note 33) B (H3E33) 3,000 - 3,000
Write-off of expired film rights BB R 2 M (476) - (476)
Write-off pre-product cost DVD i 1E AR 2 i 54 (42) - (42)
L AusOthdune2021 L REESTHRAASTR 300953 3749 304702
Carrying amount REE
At 30th June 2021 RZZE=——F,A=+H 866 277,329 278,195
At 30th June 2020 R-ZZ_THFA=1H 1,269 220,491 221,760
Note (i) During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group () B#E=2-FTTFSA=THLHF
received a refund of film production cost from a B AEEE—BMEXEELQA
film production house amounting approximately W —2EFREEARAL
HK$3,864,000 on a film that was recognised as film 3,864,000 * FBE IR -F —
rights in 2019. NFEER BB RIE -
Amortisation of approximately HK$197,986,000 (2020: B 44 %49197,986,0008 L (ZE =&
HK$44,149,000) is included in the cost of revenue in the F 1 44,149,000/ 70) 5T Afr e 2 E W
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. RZWEmEAR ©
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FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

Impairment test for film rights and films in progress

The Group assesses whether the film rights and films
in progress for video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights segment are subject to any impairment loss, in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note
2.16 of these consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 30th June 2021, management
assessed whether there was an impairment indicator in
relation to the film rights and films in progress for video
distribution, film distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights segment by reviewing the cast
or scale of each films, current market condition, the trade
history, current financial position and popularity of film
outline stories. Management has further performed an
assessment on the recoverable amount of the film rights
and film in progress based on each film sales forecast. As
at 30th June 2021, the Group assessed that there were
impairment indication for certain films included in films
rights and film in progress with gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$3,950,000 and HK$16,954,000
respectively because of the change of comparable market
information and expected performance. As at 30th June
2021, these film rights and film in progress were reduced
to their recoverable amount of approximately HK$46,000
and HK$13,205,000 respectively. The recoverable
amount was determined on a title-by-title basis, and was
assessed with reference to a value-in-use calculation at
the end of the reporting period, which was derived from
discounting the projected cash flow forecast using a
discount rate of 11% (2020: 11%). Key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculations related to the estimation of
cash inflow included the budget film exhibition income,
budget licensing and sub-licensing income revenue
and discount rate. Such estimation was based on the
historical box office of the same director and main cast
members, the market comparable data of films with
the same theme, and management’s expectations of
the market development. The discount rate used was
before tax and reflected current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the film
production business.

9

A B RERME
EVRBEREMFRZER @

BEXRELRREP CER
ERENEES

R EIR AR A BT WA £E2. 165780
BT R ERT - BRBITRN
B R E B S B2 BER
R 2 BY RS R T ARER

e

RNEE-_ZTZ-—FA=Z+HILFE
EREERREEMETNEEMAL
HIE  ERMR - XHsk - BAE5
MRAREEMEEENTEOREE T
HEERET - EEBITRNE - BER
SR T MIE D B 2 B RE R EAEF
Z2EYROAHBRRETR - EEERE
EREFHHEBAIE —SHERRE
FEER 2 EEM A E S BEETT
He-R-_T-_—FA=1+H A&£H
G RE B E D B4 723,950,0008 7T
116,954,000 T2 & TEF(BREE
EREMBEEREZ)TERETZ -
ERABALTMHEERNRBHRR 2 &
Fo-RN-_T-—FA=1+H %58
FHENSEREZEDRIRERSE 2
AJ U [B] < BEA946,0007% 7T 213,205,000
B e kBl &I EHEYEEE
WS ERBERR2EREEFE
EITRHE  MEABENFEA11% (=
TTF 11%) 2 BhIR KB IRTRRIR
CREFMESE - BREBRSAAGITZ
FHEBEFETZBRIAREBEEY N
BRUC A ~ TEE % R 88 B A W e I B
WE - BB HERBREERFTE
BEBARE - MAXEEX 2%
ALHEREEEHMSER CTEH -
FrABIR = ATiATARIR X - RELER™
BHEEREEEREYREERET
BB 2 5FE -

EFTRECEBERLDR —T-—FFH
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9

FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

Impairment test for film rights and films in progress
(Continued)

Taking into account the impairment assessment
performed by the management, an impairment loss
of film rights of approximately HK$3,000,000 (2020:
HK$904,000) and an impairment loss of films in progress
of approximately HK$Nil (2020: HK$3,749,000) were
recognised respectively in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 30th
June 2021 to reduce the carrying amounts of these
assets to their recoverable amounts. The directors and
management have considered and assessed reasonably
possible changes for other key assumptions and have
not identified any instances that could cause the carrying
amounts of film rights and film in progress to exceed
their recoverable amounts as at 30th June 2021.

9

EMERRIFPFZ2ET @

BRI Y EY
pERENEENC))

K REREBETZRET G  EFR
R EE1E 493,000,000 L (T =&
F 1 904,000 L) R BMER B R EE
BHOZTAETL(ZZZF : 3,749,000%
E)E )DJUE/\@Z:I:_v_ E/\H +E|
IEFEZHFEEEBERTER - UG
ZEEEZEEEBEREE AT KL S -
EEREREEEEMTMEMEEZR
B ABIEAIREES) 0 AW IR A]
EENECMRERMEPERY CREE
BEER -_ZE-—FXA=+tHZAK
O SEEAENR °
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TENMBLT

UTAR-_ZE-_—FRA=1THZXE

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 10

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at

30th June 2021.

MEBARRE -

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
HEE
EfA HfHE  mEER
BRREE 58 BEBEW
B AN e VEER  WEER EER
£R RtaRREs BRARRRFE IERBRERNY (%) (%) S BI(%)
Universe Films (Holdings) The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US§100 Investment holding in 100% - -
Limited* limited ligbility Hong Kong
company
EBRUES ERRBRA100%ET RERk &%
EREHRA
Universe Films Distribution Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Subrlicensing of film - 100% -
Company Limited liability company rights and television
series, film exhibition
and leasing of investment
properties in Hong Kong
SEPRENERAA Eh BRELLT ERRBRAZET BREYMERERE
EYIMNRILRRE
nx &
Unigue Model Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Model agency in - 100% -
liability company Hong Kong
Eh BRELLT ERRRER00ET BERRE &
Universe Digital Entertainment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,0005%  Distribution of films in - 100% -
Limited liability company deferred HK$10,000 various vidgogram
formats in Hong Kong
ERHERLERLT B5 BREELT  ERRRAO0ORT  HTRESHEEG
S ERERBER B A
10,0007
Universe Management Services ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,0005%  Provision of management - 100% -
Limited liability company deferred HK$10,000 services for the Group
in Hong Kong
BFROEERERA Eh BRELLT ERREAI00008T  WAEEREERRY
SERREA &
10,0007

RTREXCEBAERRR —FT_—FFRH
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10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

R

Universe Entertainment Limited

Universe (China) Development
Limited

SFEREARAT

Globalink Advertising Limited*

Universe International Technology
Limited

EFERNAARLA

Universe Artiste Management
Limited

EFEAERERAF

Films Station Production Limited*

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind
of legal entity

SHREL/ R

RERREEN

The British Virgin Islands,
limited fiability
company

ZRRLEE
BREEAA

Hong Kong, limited
ligbility company

Bt Bk

Sl

Rl

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE ARAMAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BREELA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

Bt ARAELA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

Bf BRELLA

Particulars of
issued share capital

ERIRAFE
Ordinary US§2

ERRBRA2ZET

Ordinary HK$2

ERRBA2ET

Ordinary HKS2
ERRRT2ET
Ordinary HK$2
ERREA2ET
Ordinary HK$10
LRREAI0ET
Ordinary HK$2

ERRRA2ET

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited

10 EEMELQ T @

Principal
activities and
place of operation

IERRRERMY
Investment in films
production and licensing
of film rights in
Hong Kong
RABYRERRILEY
Wi B

Investment holding in Hong
Kong and investment in
television series
production in the
Peaple’s Republic of
China (“PRC")

REBR B8 RiRE
HESesd
hE\RAAE(RE))

Advertising agent for the
Group in Hong Kong
REEZRERE B

Purchasing agent for the
Group in Hong Kong
REE RERE B

Management of contracted
artistes in Hong Kong

EEANEN BE

Films production in
Hong Kong
BV TR

Annual Report 2021

Proportion
of ordinary
shares
directly
held by
parent (%)

B
BATRE
ERR
B (%)

Proportion
of ordinary  Proportion
shares  of ordinary
heldby  shares held
other group by non-
entities  controlling

(%) interests (%)
HEE
O] mFEER
BE  EREEN
HEER EER
$4%) Ef1(%)
100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -
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REMB|RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 EZ2MELE @
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)

258
E5h  RkAR  mEER
§AARE  BE REEED

SHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
£R RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY 5% HBI%) SAI(%)
Universe Music Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS2 Licensing and sub-ficensing - 100% -

liability company of music programme and
investment in concert in
Hong Kong
STREERAA Eh BRELLT ERRRAZET &E&Mﬁa%ﬁ i
HRRERES &%
Universe Films Acquisition Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS2 Sub-icensing of film rights - 100% -
Limited* liability company in Hong Kong
Bk ARRALA ERRRAZET BREYME B
Wide Avenue Holdings Limited*  The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Investment holdings in the 100% - -
limited liability British Virgin Islands
company
EBRNES ERRRAIET RESR  RERAES
BREAAR
Universe Martix Films Investment  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS$1 Investment in films - 100% -
Limited liability company production
STAREYREARRLA B BRELAT ERRBERET REETHE
STABRLESTEAOR)  PRC, imited liabity RMB1,000,000 Distribution of films in - 100% -
BRAAe company the PRC

hE - BEREFAT AR1,000,0007 B Al
STEIZRE(RERAT®  PRC limited liabilty RIIB3,000,000 Advertising agent for = 100% =

company the Group in PRC

RE - AREHAT AERH3,000,0007 AEBZRERE #E

ERRET(EEAERAT —B-—FER 235
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e M BHRHE

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 TENBA R @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
HEE
Efh HftHE  mEER
BRRGE K8 BEBEW
SHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
£R RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY (%) HBI%) SAI(%)
Fragrant River Entertainment The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in the 100% - -
Culture (Holdings) Limited limited liability British Virgin Islands
company
BIRENL(BRIERAT  EBRRES ERRRAI00%T REBR  RBRAES
EREALR
Weluck Development Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Securities investments - 100% -
limited fiability
company
K ERERAT EBRUES ERRRAIET E5RE
EREALR
Urban King Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
SHERERLA EBRUES ERRRAI00%T REBR - T
EREALR
Precise Reach Group Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
FESEERAT EBRUES ERRBRAI00%T REBR - Tk
EREALT
Great Harbour Enterprises Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
A KARDA EBRUES ERRBRA100%T REBR - B
EREALR
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REMB|RME

Name

R

Gold Summit International Limited

BEERERAA

Rising Fame International Limited

FAERARAT

Galaxy View Group Limited

Universe International Holdings
Limited
STERERERAR

China Jianxin Credit Services
Limited
TEREEEERAA

Formex Financial Press Limited

HAHBERARAR

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind
of legal entity

ARRY/RhE
REARREN

The British Virgin Islands,
limited fiability
company

EBRNES
EREALR

The British Virgin Islands,
limited fiability
company

EBRNES
EREAAR

The British Virgin Islands,
limited fiability
company

EBRNES
EREALR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&% ARALAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&t ARRELA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

Bt ARAELA

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of
issued share capital

ERIRAFE
Ordinary US$100

LRRRA100ET

Ordinary US$100

LRRRE100ET

Ordinary US$1

ERRRAIET

Ordinary HK$100
ERRBRR00%T
Ordinary HK$100
ERRBI002T

Ordinary HK$21,000,000

10 FERE LT @

Principal
activities and
place of operation

IERRRERMY
Investment holding in
Hong Kong

REMER &R

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

REMER &R

Investment holding in
Hong Kong, British Virgin
Islands and the PRC

RERR Bk
EBRREERTE

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBR B

Money lending in
Hong Kong
HE - EE

Financial printing services
in Hong Kong

ERRHA21,000,000ET EAARIRE - B

Proportion
of ordinary
shares
directly
held by
parent (%)

B
BATRE
ERR
B (%)

Proportion
of ordinary
shares
held by
other group
entities
(%)

H&E
HttRa
b2
MERR
S (%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

85%

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests (%)

LR
REERYH
EER
(%)

15%

RTREXCEBAERRR —FT_—FFRH

237,



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 TENBA R @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  mEER
BRRGE B8 BEREN
SHREL/ R VEER  HEER EER
£R RERREEN BRARRRE IERRRERMY 5% HBI%) SAI(%)
Fragrant River Entertainment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Investment Limited liability company Hong Kong
BIRERAERDA Bk BREALT LRRRRI00AT RARER Bk
Rising Fame Investment Limited ~Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$3,000,000 Securities investments - 100% -
liability company
AERBERAE Bk BREALT LERRA EHRE
3,000,000% T
Fing Ocean Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$5,000,001 Optical shops - 90% 10%
liability company
BUARAA EE BRELLT ERREER REE
5,000,001% 7
Winston Asia Limited* The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US§3,319 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong and the PRC
company
£BRRES LERRA3I9ET RERR - FART
ERERAT
Universe Watch and Jewellery Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$73,944,225  Investment holding in - 100% -
Group Co Ltd liability company Hong Kong and the PRC
STERHEERARAT Bk BREALT LERRE REBR - BERTE
73,944 2055 0
MImTEERERAF® PRC, limited liabilty Ordinary RMB27,500,000  Wholesale and retal of = 100% =
company watches and optical
products in the PRC
hE  BREFAT LERRE HENTEERR
AR27,500,0007C BiRER ©
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REMB|RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

*

#

Name

Garona (HK) Limited*

Universe Optical Investment
Limited

STRERERRAA

Universe Optical Company Limited

SFREERAT

Universe Optical Group Limited

FTREEERRAR

fesll]

China Jianxin Financial Services
Limited

REREERRBARLT

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind
of legal entity

ARRY/RhE
REARREN

PRC, limited liability
company

RE - ARELAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE ARAMAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B ARAELA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
Eh BRELLT

Hong Kong, limited
liahility company

BE ARAEAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

it

B ARALAA

Particulars of
issued share capital

ERIRAFE
Ordinary HK$9,000,000

b
9,000,000/ 7

Ordinary HK$300,000
ERRHA300,00087
Ordinary HK$100
ERRBT00ET
Ordinary HK$100
ERRRAI00ET
Ordlinary HK$10
LERRAI0ET

Ordinary HK$34,900,000

LA
34900,000%TC

No registered Chinese name for the companies

No registered English name for the companies

Represent a wholly foreign owned enterprise

10 FERE LT @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary
of ordinary shares
shares held by
Principal directly  other group
activities and held by entities
place of operation parent (%) (%)
H&E
Effh HfpEE
BRRGE b2
VEER  WEER
IERRRERMY 5% H5(%)
Wholesale and retail of - 100%
watches in the PRC
HENTEEE
Wholesale and retail of - 100%
watches in Hong Kong
wENZEEE B4
Optical shops - 90%
REE
Optical shops - 90%
REE
Providing management - 90%
service
REERRE
Securities brokerage and - 100%
margin financing
(The business was
discontinued during
the year ended
30th June 2018)
ERBLRARRE
(BEBRER
ZZ-\ERA=1H
LEBRID)
* ZERRLFEE LR ETE
2 ZENRNEE LR AT
Q BRINERBLHE

RTREXCEBAERRR —FT_—FFRH

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held

by non-
controlling

interests (%)

LR
REERYH
EER
(%)

10%

10%

10%
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e M BHRHE

11 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES N REEQATR 2R
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cost of investments in associates, AL NA) KA
unlisted JEET = 42,314
Share of post-acquisition profits JE (5 U BB 14 342 ) = 1,197
Less: Disposal (Note (i)) A EBEPEEEN) = (35,530)
Less: Accumulated impairment loss & : 25 R{EEE = (38,758)
Less: Dividend received W BERARE = (4,753)
Derecognised accumulated EELESEKRIEERER
impairment loss due to disposal AR W)
(Note (i) - 35,530

Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of RBERRAEESHBERNRZFBT
the reporting period are as follows: N
Place of Principal place  Proportion of registered
Name of entity incorporation of business capital held by the Group  Principal activity Note
AEEREZ
ERER R L ITEENY HRERLA TEER i
2021 2020
ZB--F CB0%E
Hong Kong Optical Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong - 345%  Trading, wholesaling and (i)
("HK Optical") retailing of optical products
EAKEBRARLA(KERE) &3 A S HERTERRER

240 Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Glory International operates in Hong Kong and is engaged
in the provision of advertising, promotion, provision of
public relations services, holding and sponsoring stage
performance, concerts, film production and other cultural
events.

During the year ended 30th June 2019, in view of the
financial performance of Glory International, the Group
performed an impairment assessment on its investment
in Glory International whereby the recoverable amount
of HK$1,085,000 of Glory International was determined
based on fair value less cost to sale by reference to
sharing of net asset value of Glory International. Following
the impairment assessment, an amount of approximately
HK$1,065,000 was recognised as impairment loss in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the year ended 30th June 2019.

Glory International has been loss-making in recent years.
As at 31st December 2019, Glory International recorded
net liabilities of approximately HK$1,957,000. The Group
engaged an independent professional valuer to assess the
fair value of the Glory International by the Adjusted Net
Assets Value method. Based on the business valuation
report issued by an independent professional valuer which
was not connected with the Group, the fair value of the
49% equity interest in the Glory International as at 31st
December 2019 is nil.

On 4th March 2020, the shareholders of Glory International
offered a share repurchase proposal. Pursuant to the
proposal, four shareholders had agreed to purchase the
49% equity interests of Glory International held by the
Group in full at a consideration of HK$4.

On bth March 2020, the disposal of the 49% equity
interest of Glory International was approved through a
resolution in writing of all directors of the Group.

Upon the completion of the disposal on 9th March
2020, the corresponding interest in the associate of
HK$35,530,000 and the accumulated impairment of
HK$35,530,000 were derecognised.

As at 30th June 2020, the interest in associate represented
the 34.5% equity interest in Hong Kong Optical Company
Limited ("HKO") which was fully impaired in prior years.
On 19th August 2020, the Group’s representative in
the board of HKO resigned as a director of HKO and the
Group ceased to be in a position to exercise significant
influence over HKO. As a result, the investment in HKO
was reclassified to financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss during the year ended 30th June
2021. A winding-up order was made against HKO in the
court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong on
12th July 2021.

11

REMB|RME

REE N A2 S @

PsE -

(i)

(ii)

o

REALERBBR DR

PAREBNEBERRE - (L E RN
LRIECHE - ABRY - AKX
IMBARL  RBE  BEYRER
E b REN TS o
REBEE-_ZT—-NEFXNA=+BILE

B ERTRBEBRZUBRE A&
EHRERERZEEETHRET
& RER 2 AUk e $%81,085,000
%ﬁ%@ﬁ FEBEERALERE
M %.@ﬁ%@ﬁﬁf& Wﬂ
B H%E Faﬁff hENA=
+ELEFEZHEATHERFERANER
Mﬁgﬁmﬁtmam@%mc

HTREBREF —HESER e NZF
fn$+fﬂf+ B “RERE
BIFBAEH1,957,0008 T - AEED
REBY EEGEMREAREEF
ERTEERBEEREZ AFE - RikE
NEEWEEE B BEGEMAT
BHEBHERS  TEBRF49%
BER-_ZT—HhFE+—_A=+—82
NFEAZ -

R-T-Z5=ANA  LREER
BB WEAE - R -
M % B K B ) R B B A S S
2 HAREREA9% B - KB AT -

%$Lﬂ§ﬁ&§ ﬁ&ﬁ%%
BRA9% IR HE ©

RZZE_ZEF=-ZANBERZHE
EHE% DRIEERRBEAAZ
HEE#E2535,530,000/8 T M 25HRE
35,530,000/ 7T °

}5/3\—7—7£E/\ﬁ +E Ej\gﬁ'ﬁi’éﬁ
AZERENERKEREARA

3 EE?DZM5%k% EEF@
EFERBRE R_T_ZTF/\A
+hA - $EEMEEEEE$@Z

REBIXEREESE  MAKET
BHXERBEERTE N - Ft
REKERBEZRENBE_Z_—F
NAZTRIEFESHOERERRE
REAFEARZEREE - &S
SERRBDEER-_ZE=_—F+ A+
—Eﬁ&gﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%7°

T —FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

12 AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 12 B —EBERR2RIE
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, EM— M E QAR s RIEBEEKE - T
interest-free and repayable on demand. The balance is TERERERER - ZEBRTIET
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and approximates its STEREEQAFEES
fair value.

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 13 RERS S z2ERMIA

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RB|ERR SESHRTAENEBER
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period N

are as follows:

As at 30th June 2021 RN_ZE-_—FHA=1TH
Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets
measured at Financial
fair value assets
through profit  at amortised
or loss cost Total
BRER REBERR
BOAFENE ]
ZERMEE SREE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THET
Other financial assets HtemEE 16,771 - 16,771
Trading securities RGES 76,871 = 76,871
Accounts receivable FEUERR = 108,865 108,865
Financial assets included in HFAERET S - BN
“deposits paid, prepayments PO KA A e SRR
and other receivables” LERBE = 48,204 48,204
Loans receivable FEIER = 3,466 3,466
Bank balances and cash RITEHRESR S
- trust accounts - ERKRP = 785 785
Cash and cash equivalents Re kReEEN = 375,924 375,924
93,642 537,244 630,886
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REMB|RME

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2021 (Continued)

Financial Liabilities

13 BERE D zEMTEmw

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
DU 8% pR A
SIERZ
SHaE Pt
HK$'000 HK$°000
FExT FET
Accounts payable FETBR IR 50,197 50,197
Financial liabilities included in BPNE: Y ANE
“other payables and accrued charges” Btz I MIEUWET4 ]
and “deposits received” ZERAas 238,209 238,009
Lease liabilities HEBE 21,434 21,434
309,840 309,840

ETREUEEBER A A

T FFR

243



244

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 13 ZEHE D z2EMITAEw
(Continued)
As at 30th June 2020 RZZE_ZFFA=1H
Financial assets ERIEE
Financial
assets
measured at Financial
fair value assets
through profit at amortised
or loss cost Total
BEER bire: S D
BAFEAER il
JEMEE SREE ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL TR
Other financial assets Hit o mEE 10,008 - 10,008
Trading securities R5EH 3,300 - 3,300
Accounts receivable JEUTER R - 73,105 73,105
Financial assets included in FAIERE & BA
“deposits paid, prepayments O KA A YRR
and other receivables” JEREE - 19,549 19,549
Loans receivable EIER - 7,216 7,216
Amount due from an associate Bl —FRE & AR 2R - 53 53
Bank balances and cash RITHEBEAS
- trust accounts - F5EHRP - 780 780
Time deposits with maturity over REAEISERB=EA
three months at acquisition TEHER - 108,640 108,640
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEN - 106,949 106,949
13,308 316,292 329,600
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REMB|RME

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

13 ZERE D2/ Ewm

As at 30th June 2020 (Continued) RZE-_FTFA=+H®w
Financial Liabilities ERBE
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
- Contingent amortised
consideration cost Total
BBBERE
DEEAR PABESS PR AR
JERMEE i
-RARE SREE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TET
Accounts payable ERTER R - 19,301 19,301
Financial liabilities included in BYNES RS
"other payables and accrued charges” RIEF ]
and “deposits received” RIEYET 2]
ZeRaE - 160,950 160,950
Lease liabilities MEAE - 15,475 15,475
Contingent consideration payable BT SHAKE 20,400 - 20,400
20,400 195,726 216,126
BFREX{RBERAT —T-—F5H
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e M BHRHE

The amount of the Group’s deposits paid expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense after more
than one year is approximately HK$29,690,000 (2020:
HK$407,000). All of the other deposits paid, prepayments

14 DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND 14 EfE]®  ANREREA
OTHER RECEIVABLES FEWFR IR
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2021 2020
R=B=—F RKIZ_ZF
NAE=1H ~A=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Non-current portion JE BPHA &R
Rental deposits Heil® 1,577 407
Deposits for acquisition of property, BAYE « #BENEREZFT £
plant and equipment 28,113 -
At 30th June MAARB=1+H 29,690 407
Current portion BNERE o
Prepayments AN 1,944 1,878
Interest receivable JE WA 2, 861 1,004
Amounts due from joint operation JEW A EEBRIE N
partners 1,468 1,564
Rental deposits and other deposits &7 & M EMETE 4,416 4,507
Other receivables H A fE U R IE 10,318 12,162
Less: loss allowance D =t (4) (95)
Other receivables — deposit in broker Hth B UL FIE - &£ 4877 X 1,455 -
At 30th June RAA=t+H 20,458 21,020

NEEIBEAS R — F & U R R A
THEMNFT&MNE&5ELA29,690,000/8

TT(ZTZF4F : 407,000567T) - FiBEHE
BT - FE A K H 4 fE Uk 508

and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

BFERR —FRKE S ER B -
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REMB|RME

15 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(a)

The movements in deferred tax assets and

15 EERBREEREE

(a) MAFERA  EILETIE

liabilities during the year are as follows: BENBEZES
I N
Deferred tax assets FEIERIBEE
Tax losses Total
BiIEE R R
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
At Tst July 2019 RZE—NFEHA—H 341 341
Charge to profit or loss RIB IR (70) (70)
At 30th June 2020 and RZZZTFRA=TAK
1st July 2020 I 0 = 271 271
Credit to profit or loss RIEZEFETA 200 200
At 30th June 2021 RZEBE=——FA=+H 471 471
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Total
IEBIFTE ko]
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
At 1st July 2019 RZE—NFtHA—H (90) (90)
Credit to profit or loss RIEEFETA 6 6
At 30th June 2020 and RZE-EFA=+EK
1st July 2020 —E-FTF+AF—H (84) (84)
Charge to profit or loss RIS IR (18) (18)
At 30th June 2021 R-ZE-—F,xA=1+H (102) (102)

EFRECRBERAT —B-—FFH
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e M BHRHE

15 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 15 EEMREEEREE®
(Continued)
(a) The movements in deferred tax assets and (@) MAFEERN @ RILEFHIA
liabilities during the year are as follows: BENABEBEZE
(Continued) N
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax MERENME @ BTELEHREE
assets and liabilities have been offset in the ENBBRERGEEERBERAK
consolidated balance sheet. The following is an e TRAMMEHREENTS K
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group REERERIELR DT
for financial reporting purposes:
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHET
Net deferred tax assets RIFEEERERNA
recognised in the HWRAEETIBEE
consolidated balance sheet e 471 271
Net deferred tax liabilities RiZREEREBERNA
recognised in the EROEERIBEE
consolidated balance sheet FEE (102) (84)
369 187
(h) Deferred tax assets in respect of the unused tax (b) BEBsERBHERIERSEETH

losses carried forward are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax losses can
be utilised.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$325,320,000 (2020: HK$360,440,000) as at
30th June 2021 due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in the above tax
losses, approximately HK$19,826,000 (2020:
HK$32,902,000) can only be carried forward for a
maximum period of five years. Other losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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WA =T =_—FSA=1+HZ
%RIE)%%EZW% 320,000 T (=
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REMB|RME

16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 16 HittemERE
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2021 2020
R-ZB-—F RZITZF
NB=1H ~NA=1H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHEIT
Financial assets measured at fair ZEBIEFEAFLEARE
value through profit or loss ZEMEE
Non-current FERE
Unlisted investment funds JELEMIEEES 346 322
Unlisted limited partnership FLEMBEREBLE 1,108 1,350
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRTA (i) 14,499 8,336
Club debenture 2HEES 770 -
At 30th June WRNA=1+H 16,723 10,008
Current FRE
Other derivative financial EmirEermI A
instruments 48 -
At 30th June RANA=+H 48 -
Notes: MI5E -

(i)

As at 30th June 2021 and 30th June 2020, unlisted
investment funds included the equity securities issued
by a private equity fund (the “Fund”) with a carrying
amount of HK$346,000 and HK$322,000 respectively.
The Fund was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability in February 2014 and principally engaged
in investing in social media businesses since 2015. The
Group subscripted for the shares of the Fund (the “Fund
Shares”) since the year ended 30th June 2015 with an
aggregate consideration of HK$19,493,000. The manager
of the Fund (the “Fund Manager”) had been delegated
authority to manage the Fund.

Since the subscription of the Fund Shares by the Group,
the fair value of the Fund significantly decreased because
of the under performance of the Fund investment. As
informed by the Fund Manager in December 2018, in view
of the real litigation risks and regulatory risks surrounding
the Fund Manager's holding company and the fact that the
underlying investment was loss making, the Fund Manager
decided to divest the underlying investment held by the
Fund at a price significantly below the its investment cost.
In addition, a fellow subsidiary of the Fund Manager (the
“Purchaser”) also agreed to provide a conditional offer (the
"Offer”) to buy-back the Fund Shares held by the Group
at a consideration of approximately HK$17.8 million by
reference to the Group's share of net assets of the Fund
as at 31st December 2017.

RTREX

EEBBRAT

R-_E-_—FXA=Z=+ARK=-ZE-F
FRAZTH ELTRERES (B
—EAERAES (B BEITZRA
FH) 2 EREED R A346,00008 7T K&
322,000 7T c & IR T —MF =
BEMEHEFMR I ZARAR
BE-Z—AFRFERERENER
HEEEK AEEAHE_ZT—AF
NAZTRLEFEEREES ZBD
(TEeikHm])) - 2FEMREA19,493,000
B BEe 2R B(ESEBEER
EEBEHES -

BAEBEREESRHOUR  Eg 2
NTEBETR  RERESRER
BRE - BUESKER=_T—N\FE
+_AFME  EREAEESKER
AR 2 EEFFRRR & EE R
LMEEFHBRESBER  EK
BARTRABERREEXNAEBRDE
HESRFBZHEBRE - i EE K
BrRZMBARTERDIFRAERE
BEHENTEYDAREAE®EZE
ZEEBD  REHN178EEBTELE
AEESER_TE—tF+=_A=+
—AZEESEETFE -
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16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(ii)

(Continued)

On 1st March 2019, the Group accepted the Offer
to dispose of the Fund Shares at a consideration of
approximately HK$17.8 million (the “Disposal”). The
Purchaser was to settle the consideration of the Disposal
to the Group in cash by 34 monthly instalments, whereby (i)
approximately HK$1,483,000 was to be paid on or before
29th March 2019 and (ii) approximately HK$494,000
on or before the last business day of each consecutive
month from April 2019 to December 2021. Completion
of the Disposal is conditional upon the Purchaser having
paid the consideration of the Disposal to the Group in full
in accordance with the schedule described above, and
the Fund Shares will be transferred to the Purchaser on
receipt of the consideration of the Disposal in full by the
Group. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
arrangement constitute a derivatives contract to dispose of
the Fund Shares at a fixed consideration in the future and
should be recognised as a derivative financial instrument
("DFI"). Based on the business valuation report issued
by an independent professional valuer not connected
with the Group, the fair value of the derivative contract
was approximately HK$15.5 million at the date of initial
recognition and the carrying amount of DFI is net of the
deferred day one gain arising from the difference between
its fair value at initial recognition and its transaction price
of HK$NIl. The deferred day one gain is amortised over the
period from March 2019 to December 2021.

During the year ended 30th June 2021, the net gain in fair
value of the unlisted investment fund of approximately
HK$24,000 (2020: HK$5,000) and net gain in the fair
value of the unlisted limited partnership of approximately
HK$57,000 (2020: net loss of HK$4,319,000)
were recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

16 HEtEmEE@®

BEE ()

(i

(ii)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021

(8

R-ZT—NF=ZA—B AEEES
T4 URENI7SEEBTHERES
H(THESHED) - EFZAEDBIR34E
AUESINHEZTBZRETAE
B - EF()#91,483,0008 T BN —F
—NF=ZA=ZFThB=kZ a1 Klii)
49494,0008 TER T —NFNAZE
—TE-—F+ - ANEAZREE
A2 A - RE AR il i
RBEESINLESTHIZRETFTAEE
% HEBESEEK  MESKEH
BRAEERHRIEEEE 2 NRE
BEEFTEN  cARBEERE B
BTHBER—MDITEA4 > UWRB%
REFTRELHEESRD - WERER
ETEeBMIATITESBMIAD - R
EEASESERAENE L EEGBE
MERMEKHAERS  TETAEA
HRYIFHERAEH A FELHA1558
BAL MOTASRMTENEmET
EHBREEE B - TERERY
SHERENRAFEERER S EKRBN
ZHATATIMES - BEE B K=
RZE-—NEF=-RAE-F=-_—F+=
P EARI S -

BE_Z-_—FXA=1+HILtEE
FLETHREESHATFERZFEY
24,000 T (Z T -F4 : 5,000/ 7T)
FIELTTERAEBLENRATFEKSE
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17 TRADING SECURITIES

REMB|RME

—— Y Ny 3
AN :7&
X558

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET

Listed equity securities — ETRAFES -FHIEER
held for trading 76,871 3,300
Market value of listed securities EmEScHE 76,871 3,300

Trading Securities are presented within ‘operating
activities’ as part of changes in working capital in the
consolidated statement of cash flows (Note 45).

As at 30th June 2021, the trading securities of
HK$1,350,000 (2020: approximately HK$3,300,000)
represents listed equity securities suspended from
trading. The fair value of those securities is determined
based on valuation techniques and input as stated in note
3.3(i)(d).

EALBESEHN—Br  XHHFFH
WAGAERERERANZIELEEE (M
£¥45) o

R-_E-_—FA=+TH R5F
%1,350,000B L(ZF_FF :
3,300,000 ) EEEEEE 2 ER
KEH o ZEBH 2 AT ETIREWE
3.3()(d)Frill 2 fh B 7 E R A SR E
fg °

EFTRECEBERLDR —T-—FFH
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18 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS

The Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements to produce and distribute two television
series (2020: two), twenty-eight films (2020: sixteen)
and Nil webisodes (2020: five) respectively. The Group
has participating interests ranging from 5% to 90%
(2020: from 5% to 90%) in these joint operations. As
at 30th June 2021, the aggregate amounts of assets
and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements relating to the Group's interests in these joint

18 EEERER

AEEBFUETAEEBTH  UD
IR EREITMBERBER (=T =
ZF W) DT NA\BEER(ZEF
FrFRBIURTHREE (T =F
F:RE)  AEERZEAEERTE
ENF5%E0%(ZE_FE : 5%%F
90%) 2 2Bz - RZT_—F A=
T8 FEAEBRLEEEEEBLH
2R BEREETEHREPER

operation arrangements are as follows: BEENBERBIT :
2021 2020
—EB-—F —_ETFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets BE
Film rights and films in progress BRRENEER 2
B 144,434 15,605
Film related deposits B ABEE© 25,491 29,020
Accounts receivable and other JFEE U5 B K % EL A JE L
receivables B 7,842 58,787
177,767 103,412
Liabilities afE
Accounts payable and other JE A BR 3R B2 EL A E A
payables A 1,278 9,895
Deposits received BUET & 1,678 995
Contract liabilities aHEE 94,656 825
97,612 11,715
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue U= 15,828 143,566
Expenses EH (12,337) (79,404)
Profit after income tax bR TS B8 )% 3,491 64,162
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19 INVENTORIES 19 78
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Raw materials RE 171 160
Finished goods EpKmm 9,672 10,803
9,843 10,963
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as BRAEAY KT AGAEEAREERRNZ
an expense and included in consolidated statement of FEFBZMEAT
comprehensive income is as follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEZEEE 48,381 41,010
Write down of inventories FEMUR 1,693 421
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & s ¢ @ (M 551
(Note i) (2,067) (406)
48,007 41,025
Notei: The amount resulted from the utilisation of obsolete Mizti: BHLBREACNBEFEM
inventories that were written down in prior years. BERETE -

BErRA(EEERAT —E-—FER 253
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20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20 FEURBRFX
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2021 2020

R=B=-—F RKIZE_ZTF
NA=t+H ~A=+A

HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Accounts receivable arising RERERFFRAE
from securities brokerage EREEZERRER
and margin financing
business:
- Brokers and cash clients (Note a) — &42 RIRE&ZF (Fista) 17 16
e 17 16
Accounts receivable arising HEBEE 2 BYIR ¢
from other businesses:

Accounts receivable — others FEM AR SR — HAth 110,915 74,155
Less: Impairment loss (Note 3.1(b)) J& : JREEE (FIFE3.1(b) (2,067) (1,066)
CNet{Noteb) o FRMIED) 108848 .. .. 73083
Accounts receivable — net PR - F 8 108,865 73,105

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate FEWERF  BRmESEE AT EES -

their fair values.
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20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Accounts receivable arising from brokers and cash clients

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from
brokers and cash clients which are past due but not
impaired as of the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

20
B

(a)

Rt

REMB|RME

FE UK BR X ()

BB BPELE ZBYPFRR

HEMESHKR cafERREE
W se RIR & B P R Z BRe o A 40
T~

2021 2020

—B-—F R

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Neither past due nor impaired I #8460 B X R (B 7 -
More than 1 year past due 1 BRI 1 10 16
17 16

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
brokers and cash clients, which arise from the securities
brokerage and margin financing business, are within two
days after trade date.

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers. These receivables are secured by
their portfolio of securities. As at 30th June 2021, the
total market value of their portfolios of securities was
approximately HK$3,000 (2020: HK$3,000). Included in
the Group's accounts receivable are cash clients with a
total carrying amount of approximately HK$10,000 (2020:
HK$16,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period but for which the Group has not provided for
impairment as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality. The Group believes that the amounts are
still considered recoverable. No accounts receivable due
from past due cash clients which are not fully secured
by the listed securities of the respective cash clients, are
considered impaired as at 30th June 2021 and 30th June
2020. Accounts receivable due from cash clients bear
interest at commercial rates when they become past due.

RTREX(CEBEERAF

BFRERATRMEEBELZER
BERBRERPEREREERAR
ZHEMARNA e

RUBREEFPEFEZEZEFEH -
ZERBEFAREZFHESER -
MRZZB-—FRA=1H KEEFH
HEHTELHR3000ET(ZE-F
F :3,00087T) - BEEPFALE
e AR SR - ELBRE AR {E4Y/310,000
BI(ZZZZ4 16,0008 7T) - B
SHRE @ - MRt AN & H I A
HREREE RESEEERITER
REREY - AEEBREZFSHED
WA AT E - WEEW D BHRS
EPERFMYRBEHEESERL L™
EHERBERR-_Z-—FRA=+
AR-ZZBE-ZFXA=THHEERR
B-RUERSFFPEFRNBHRILE
EMEFE

T —FFH
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20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Accounts receivable arising from other businesses

The following is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable
arising from other businesses, presented based on the
invoice dates or date of revenue recognition:

20

R AL B R )

GEE

(b)

(&)
HAb ST E 4 2 FEUR R
NTRREZANINEERAYE

Sl B A E A 2 IR R Z BRIk
DT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

1 to 90 days 1£290H 32,725 17,576
91 days to 180 days 91THZ=180H 66,995 297
Over 180 days 180H LA E 9,128 55,216
108,848 73,089

Sales of videogram products are with credit terms of 7
days to 60 days. Sales from film exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights are on open account terms.
Sales from trading and wholesaling of optical products
and watches products, and provisions of financial printing
services are with credit terms of 0-180 days. Sales to
retail customers are made in cash or via major credit cards.
The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products on credit terms are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit
risk arising from accounts receivable arising from other
business are set out in note 3.1(b).
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21 LOANS RECEIVABLE

(a) Loans receivable from third parties

21

ERE R

ERE=EHK

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2021 2020
R-B-—F A e
~A=1+H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loans to third parties BFE=A7ER 3,682 7,475
Less: loss allowance o EIE R (216) (259)
3,466 7,216
The maturity profile of the loans RIZFIFH 25| 2 BIRE R
receivable, based on the BB R ¢
maturity date is as follows:
- Non-current - JERNEA 183 -
- Current — B HH 3,283 7,216
3,466 7,216

The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is

EREFNEEERSTOT

as follows:
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2021 2020
R-ZB-—F RZZTZTHF
ANA=1+H ~A=1+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unsecured loans IR E K
Not past due A 7 181 #f 3,682 5,832
Secured loans HEB|ER =
Less than 30 days past due BEIZ0H AT = 1,643
3,682 7,475
Less: loss allowance W R E R (216) (259)
3,466 7,216

=
=

FREX(CEBERLDR —T-—FF§
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21

LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(a)

(b)

Loans receivable from third parties (Continued)

Except for unsecured loans receivable from third
parties of (i) HK$1,749,000 which is denominated in
Renminbi, interest bearing and repayable with fixed
terms agreed and (ii) HK$733,000 (2020: HKS$Nil)
which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars, interest
bearing and repayable with fixed terms agreed, all
remaining loans receivable are due from third party
customers, which arose from the money lending
business in Hong Kong, and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, interest bearing and repayable
with fixed terms agreed with the customers.

As at 30th June 2021, the Group has no secured
loan receivables (As at 30th June 2020, the
secured loan receivable of HK$1,643,000 which
is denominated in Renminbi, interest bearing,
repayable with fixed terms and is secured by 20%
investment share of unrealised film).

Loan to an associate

BT —fEEE A
ZER - EmER
Less: Impairment Loss W OREEE

Loan to an associate,
unsecured

21

e & X @)

(a)

(b)

Note
B 5T

(i)

2

JEWE=HER@®

BEWRE=ZFEEKBER
(1,749,000 LA A REEETE -
R RIEHEMEEFIESE &
(i)733,0008B L (ZE_FF : T&
T AEBILEHE - R EREMEN
EEFHEEIN  TEHRTZER
FZHRFERHBEBNNEER

PREEHE - TyLABTEHE EJrg&}E
B P15 E BB E FHEE
RZZBE-Z—FXA=+H " K&

EEEEKEERER(R - =
TFNAZTH BEBEKER
1,643,000 LA ARBEEHE ~ 51
8 REEFHEELUAKRLRE
T2 20%REM B <)

EY—HEBERAZ
= E/N
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2021 2020
R-ZB-—F RZZTZZTF
~NA=1+H ~NA=1TH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
4,502 4,502
(4,502) (4,502)
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(b)

Loan to an associate (Continued)

The maturity profile of the loan to an associate,
based on maturity date is as follows:

- SERNER (BT AE)

— Non-current (Note (i)

(i) The unsecured loan to HK Optical is unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each
balance sheet date is the carrying amount of the
loans receivable.

All the loans receivable from third parties are
entered with contractual maturity within 1 to 2
years. The Group seeks to maintain tight control
over its loans receivable in order to minimise credit
risk by reviewing the borrowers’ or guarantors’
financial positions.

Loans receivable from third parties are bearing
interest at rates ranging from 8.5% to 11% per
annum (2020: 8.5% to 12% per annum).

Interest income of approximately HK$967,000
(2020: HK$7,889,000) has been recognised
in ‘revenue’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

21

REMB|RME

FERE R @

(b)

b ke 115 R L/N] g
@@

BA T B ARIS 515 B IS T — RIBE A A
T2 B EIER

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

() BYPEERFEZEETERLE
HIR - PR ENEEEERY -

REEERBRAMRANEER
2R EWE R RE(E

FTERWE = ERATA H5H
ANTF1E20R - ZEBRNE
B2 B XA SER A KBSk
T R RN E SRR SIS
BXREEERBRRERE -

KEEZFTRBETIZNF8.5%
EMNMNBZERNEFE(ZEF
F : GEBE%E12%) ©

MBWAL67,0008 T (ZF =
T4 - 7,889,000 7T) EREE R
M E R 2 [ | R o

RTREXCEBAERRR —FT_—FFRH
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22

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
RECEIVABLE

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable
represented the profit guarantee in relation to the
adjustments to the consideration from the acquisition
of AP Group during the year ended 30th June 2016
as detailed in note (i) below. Contingent consideration
receivable is measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The movement of the fair value of
contingent consideration receivable is as follows:

22

PR ANAE

EURHAREBZAFERERBE=-F
—ARNERNAZTHELEFEAEEHEHE
ZREZHABRBBOENERGENT
XCHFE() o U AR HER S HIRIR
NPERE - BRRKAREQXFEZE
BT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET

At fair value: BAYHE:
At beginning of the year REH]
Derecognition (Note (i) 2 ETERR (M RE ()
At end of the year RER

Notes:

(i

(i)

Adjustment to the consideration

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered into
in relation to the acquisition of AP Group, in the event that
the audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for
the period from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017
is less than HK$16,000,000, the vendors shall, and the
guarantors shall procure the vendors to, pay to the Group
the adjustment amount (the “Adjustment Amount”) in
accordance with the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000 = (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Where:

“A" means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HKS;
and

“NP"” means the net profit for the period from 1st January
2016 to 31st December 2017. Where the NP is a negative
figure, NP shall be deemed to be zero.

The contingent consideration receivable was derecognised
during the year ended 30th June 2021 through the
settlement agreement signed on 1st February 2021.
Further details of the settlement are disclosed in note
38(a).

i  HREZRAE

REREBEHEET I ZEED
O MEREEE T -RF-A—
ARE—_T—+F+-A=+—8
LHEZBEZESBRREEN IR
16,000,000/ 7T » BIE 75 & R ER AJE
REE FARE T A w4 & E
AEReR(HESED

A = 20,400,000/ 7T — (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Hr -

[AIFEARBTTRHEZ AR S B2 8UE
54

INPJHEE-ZE—RF-—A—HEE"
Z—t+F+-A=+—-HILHRZE
FFEE - B AFRAEE - ADER
TFEEPARET -

iy RBRIAREBEEREEZE_ZT=_—FX
A=THLIFEEBEBR T =-_—F=
BR— BRI ZHBHBHEILER - &
AMBERNE —PFBRME38(a)

5= o
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REMB|RME

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 22 BREHARE®
RECEIVABLE (continued)
The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable ERSKARER_ZE=_FFA=+H
as at 30th June 2020 is determined based on the ZAFEUARREZTETNGHES
valuation performed by the director of the Company. Ao N EFTEFIBEHNRWEIS -
Details of fair value measurement are set out in note 3.3.
BANK BALANCES AND CASH - 23 THEBRRSE -
TRUST ACCOUNTS 1% E:E,E)E
The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with REBRFBRRITHAZBE LGRS
licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising from LWFMERREKAEREENERR
its normal course of business. These clients’ monies IH o ZERP RIS —EZ A L
are maintained in one or more trust accounts. The EtlRP c ARAKEAYRFNIAE
Group has recognised the corresponding amount in xTE?E_JZ?EZT}JBﬁH MAEEEE @ WESAE
accounts payable to the respective customers under % B JE < BR SR M R mu@]ﬁt\lﬁ °
current liabilities section as the Group is liable for any AEBANSERARPHREBEEBSE
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group % o ErEERPHIRTTA ﬁ%x%/ﬁf E5 N
is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its HEGRAETESRAE(BEPHRIB)R
own obligations. The trust accounts bank balances are BIFFPR RS2 EARE ©
restricted and governed by the Securities and Futures
(Client Money) Rules under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 20 RERBASZEMURK
TIME DEPOSITS WITH MATURITY OVER BARIHAEB=EAZ
THREE MONTHS AT ACQUISITION EHFR
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Cash at bank RITER 375,822 106,817
Cash in hand FERS 102 132
Time deposits EHIFR = 108,640
Total cash and bank balances Re RIRITH R B EE 375,924 215,589
Less: Time deposits with maturity over & : B ABREIH B BB
three months at acquisition =B A ZE8BFR = (108,640)
Cash and cash equivalents and ReRReFEMUR
consolidated statement of REREMER
cash flows 375,924 106,949
BEFREEBERAR —T_—FFH
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 20 BERBEZFE/YWURR
TIME DEPOSITS WITH MATURITY OVER BARIHAEB=EAZ
THREE MONTHS AT ACQUISITION (Continued) EHEFR @

Included in the cash and bank balances at 30th June 2021 ZEZ—FRNA=TAHZBERRTE
was a total sum being the equivalent of approximately RIS AARE M E 0 49281,232,000% (=
HK$281,232,000 (2020: HK$55,725,000) which was T T 55,725,000/ ) IFIE - 1F
maintained in mainland China and is subject to foreign BERFRBIARE - ZINEE SHEBIFTR o
exchange control regulations.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on GFHRIRIT 2B SE T HRITFRAE
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for EZZEAEGE c REASEYIE
varying periods depending on the cash requirements E2HF  RBEBBRTNE 2 EEFR
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time I R AR TR E BT R AR E 27
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with B RITESRTFERN I mE R 25Kk
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. EERIFZIRIT °
25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 BRI
2021 2020
—E-—f T TF
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
A EE EE ROHEE mfE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR THEx Fh% TEL
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of 20018 T2
HK$0.01 each L@ 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHE
Ordinary shares of FhR0.018TZ
HK$0.01 each LA 906,632 9,066 906,632 9,066

There are no movements in the issued share capital of
the Company during the years ended 30th June 2021 and
2020.

RARRBE-_E-_—FR_FT_TF
NAZTRLEFEZERTRAHRER
@JO
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme adopted
on 2nd December 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the
share option schemes include the Company's directors,
including non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group or any invested entity, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group or any invested entity, customers
of the Group or any invested entity, shareholders of the
Group or any invested entity, holders of securities of
the Group or any invested entity and persons or entities
providing research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any invested entity. According to
the provision of the Share Option Scheme, share options
granted during the term of the Share Option Scheme
and remaining unexercised immediately prior to the end
thereof shall continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of grant notwithstanding the expiry of
the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company and is
settled in gross shares.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent
to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The maximum number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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26

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Under the Share Option Scheme, a share option granted
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 is
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determined by the directors,
save that such period shall not be more than 10 years
from the dates of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
subject to the provisions for early termination set out in
the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise determined
by the directors at their sole discretion, there is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme is determined by the directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There are no share options outstanding during the years
ended 30th June 2021 and 2020.
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27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND 21 RRE - HittfEER

ACCUMULATED LOSSES AITEE
(a) Group (a) ZANEE
Other reserves
Efbfife
Reserves
Share arisingon Reorganisation Capital ~ Translation ~ Contributed Accumulated
Premium consolidation reserve reserve reserve surplus  Sub-total losses Total
GAHER
REEE  FRER E4RRE  EARRE  EXBE  RAER Mt RitER 4%
(Note i) (Noteii)  (Notev) (Note ii) (Note iv)
(HH3i) (Kt (H&v) (Rl (Hrtiv)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK§'000  HK$'000
TR TiEL TEr  TER T TEr  TER TEn  TER

At st July 2019 RZE-NEtA-8 35,013 87 60,677 - (341) 485,360 546,467 (209.315) 372,165
Currency translation difference BRHERE - - - - 1528 - 1528 - 1528
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - (27,063 (27,063)
At 30th June 2020 and 15t July 2020 HZE=FERA=TER
“3-3%tA-A 35,013 8 60,577 - 1181 485,360 547,995 (236,378) 346,630
Currency translation difference ERAEEE - - - - (3,301) - (3,301) - 330)
Profit for the year Fhiaf - - - - - - - 154,345 154,345
Partia disposal of subsidiary BHHENBRA - - - 1570 - - 1570 - 1500
At 30th June 2021 RZE--ERAZTR 35,013 8 60,577 1570 (2114) 485,360 546,264 (82,033) 499,244
(b) Company (b) AR F]
Other reserves
Hftit
Share  Contributed Reorganisation Accumulated

Premium Surplus reserve Sub-total losses Total
BeEE B4ER EARE N BitER &5

(Note i) (Note iv) (Note ii)

(M) (H&Eiv) (i)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAx AL THL T Tbn T
At 30th June 2019 RZE-NExA=TA 35,013 537,212 60,577 597,789 (423,440) 209,362
Loss for the year ERER = = = = (42,097) 42,097)
At 30th June 2020 RZZZTEXA=1H 35,013 537,212 60,577 597,789 (465,537) 167,265
Profit for the year ERgT - - = = 156,377 156,377
At 30th June 2021 RZZZ-EXA=1H 35,013 537,212 60,577 597,789 (309,160) 323,642
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27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND
ACCUMULATED LOSSES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purposes of the reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981. The share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
owners of the Company in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

Reorganisation reserve

The reorganisation reserve of the Group
represents the reduction in share capital
of the Company pursuant to 2015
Capital Reorganisation and 2016 Capital
Reorganisation.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2.7.

Contributed surplus
The Group

The contributed surplus of the Group
represents (i) the amount transferred from
the share premium of HK$893,345,000 as
approved by the shareholders at the special
general meeting on 17th September 2018,
less (ii) the distribution of special dividends of
HK$407,985,000 during the year ended 30th
June 2019.

21 Bfpia
Z5tEiEwm

Bz LB kAR

(c)
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27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND
ACCUMULATED LOSSES (continued)

(c)
(iv)

(v)

Nature and purposes of the reserves (Continued)

Contributed surplus (Continued
The Company

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange for the issued shares of Universe
Films (Holdings) Limited and the value of net
assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired
on 28th June 1999. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
shall not be distributed to the shareholders
if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

()  the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company's
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

At Group level, the above contributed surplus
is reclassified into its components of reserves
of the underlying subsidiaries.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the fair value of consideration
received and the proportion of the carrying
amount of the subsidiaries’ net assets/
liabilities attributable to the partial disposals of
ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in a loss of control.

2]
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Ho e &
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(c)
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(v)
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KRB EHBBHBIDARD
Al A#E Universe Films
(Holdings) LimitedZ & 21T
BHMBEITRARBIRDZE
BEEA-NAMNANFANAZT
NBFWEEERB AR 2
BEFEZEZH BREER
E-NWN—FR8% BE

BEREEAMEEEHETS
B MESAEHITFESIK
TR :
(i)  ARAER i#ﬁﬁ%
BENEEIMZAE
57
(i) ARBZEEANZRE
EEFEmENa FE
H B BTN M i
BiRzmE-
RASEME  LAEHR

%E%ﬂkﬁ%%%ﬂ
fERED o

Az

=N
BEARRBECDRREZRYF
BEREEHIMEARER
fe g e (W B G B KT
BIEIEHBRRFEE,
BEZEEERD 2HNE
B

FREX(CEBERLDR —T-—FF§

267



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

28 LEASE LIABILITIES 28 MHEESE
The following table shows the remaining contractual TEREIRBERRTEEHEAE
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the FlerE L E BB -

reporting period:

30th June 2021 30th June 2020
—E-—-H£XH=+H —E-EFANA=1+H
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

REHRE REHE REHEE RIEHEE
NRZBRE ARBE RZRE St
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT T FHT FHT
Within Tyear A (22 N s . ..... 9863 ... 10,057 .
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ —F{& RFR 6,813 6,980 4,751 4,940
After 2 years but within 5 years ~ MF & R AFRN 2,338 2,395 861 891
IOV AL 3375 ... A 5831..
21,434 22,058 15,475 15,888
Less: total future interest B R BFE
expenses Fk (624) (413)
Present value of lease liabilities FE&EZHE 21,434 15,475
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29 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 29 FEATERRX
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Accounts payable arising from BERERTEMEEL
securities brokerage and EEZEAERR
margin financing business:
- cash clients -REeRP 29 31
— margin clients -HERER 506 506
e 0388 537..
Accounts payable arising from Hih¥KELE ZEMFERR
other businesses 49,662 18,764
50,197 19,301
The settlement terms of accounts payable to cash BHELLERITRBEXEBEE CENE
clients arising from the securities brokerage and margin CEFPERGEEPRARFHEMK - &
financing business are within two days after the trade NREEBFEFPEFRGEEREBIEE R E
date. Accounts payable to cash clients are repayable BoBENAREPENIZRERESE - B
on demand subsequent to settlement date. Accounts MRARREERR  ERFREB 2
payable to margin clients are repayable on demand. g HRERDWI EEREINEE -
No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the I3 AR B AR R AT ©
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does
not give additional value in view of the nature of this
business.
Accounts and other payables amounting to approximately HELTFETIREEFRIERATP
HK$785,000 as at 30th June 2021 (2020: HK$780,000) WER K #58 2 57t RIB ML RITE R T
were payable to clients in respect of the trust and 5 RIE—FAA=Z+THZEMNKE
segregated bank balances received and held for clients R Ath A FRIB 4)785,0008 L (=&
in the ordinary course of conducting the regulated ZZF : 780,000 L) BN TRE - A
activities. However, the Group does not have a currently M AREWENARFRZESEIHZ
enforceable right to offset these payables with the LN FIE 2 R A E BRI T -

deposits placed.
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29 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Continued) 29 FEA{FBRFR um)
As at 30th June 2021 and 2020, the ageing analysis of the RZBZ—FRZFZFF A=
accounts payable arising from other businesses based on H REZHHENEMEKELEZE
invoice date is as follows: RERZRROTET ¢
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
1 to 90 days 1290H 37,847 16,562
91 days to 180 days 91HE180H 2,653 211
Over 180 days 1808 KA 9,162 1,991
49,662 18,764
All of the accounts payable arising from other business FrEREMEREENEMNERETR
are expected to be settled or recognised as income —FRENIBERABBAKBRERKE
within one year or are repayable on demand. i o

30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 30 HfttfE{FIERESTXH

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Amounts due to joint operators A& RRIZHFIE 141,736 76,375

Accruals for employee benefits EENGHNETER 4,971 4,481
Other accruals and other payables HfhpEst & AR E RN

IA 89,654 78,014

236,361 158,870
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CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 31 EFRRANRE
The fair value of the contingent consideration payable ERNSAREZATFEEENEZE -Z
represented the profit guarantee in relation to the —tFRNA-THLEFELEEHEER
adjustments to the consideration from the disposal of AP ZREZ BB 25 MER TS
Group during the year ended 30th June 2017 as detailed FE()EF) o BT SRARBRImEHARL
in note (i) below. Contingent consideration payable NFEEFE c BERNIAREBERIFECE
is measured at fair value at the end of the reporting E) N
period. The movement of the fair value of contingent
consideration payable is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-— —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
At fair value BATE:
At beginning of the year REA] 20,400 20,400
Derecognition (Note (ii)) B ERERR (M EEG) (20,400) -
At end of the year RER = 20,400
Notes: 5T -

(i) Adjustment to the consideration

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered into
in relation to the disposal of AP Group, in the event that
the audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for
the period from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017
is less than HK$16,000,000, Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited (“FRECH"), a subsidiary of
the Group shall, and the Company as the guarantor shall
procure FRECH to, pay to the purchaser the adjustment
amount (the “Adjustment Amount”) in accordance with
the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000 — (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Where:

“A" means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HKS;
and

“NP"” means the net profit for the period from 1st January
2016 to 31st December 2017. Where the NP is a negative
figure, NP shall be deemed to be zero.

i HREZRAE

BESLEEHEETLZEEH
H o WMEREEE T F—A—
Az -_ZT—+F+=-_A=+—H
I EEEZBBRBEE RN DR
16,000,000/ 7  BIAEEME A AE
TTIREE L (R BRR A Bl ([ BT R4
AL RARNBHEBERABRESRT
REE{bME R T RE Tl A
BrABRSHE(ARSHE]) -

A =20,400,0007& 7T — (NP/2) x 5 x 51%

Hep

[AIFEABTTRHEZ AR S 2 8fE
K

INPIEEE-ZE—RF-—A—BRE_
T—t+F+-_A=+—HI#HEZE
FFEE o WEAFRASRE - ADEF
TREEPARET -

EFTRECEBERLDR —T-—FFH
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31

32

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

(Continued)

Notes:(Continued)

(ii) The contingent consideration payable was derecognised

during the

year ended 30th June 2021 through the

settlement agreement signed on 1st February 2021.
Further details of the settlement are disclosed in note

38(a).

The fair values of contingent consideration payable as at

30th June 2020

were based on the valuation performed

by the directors of the Company. Details of fair value
measurement are set out in note 3.3.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

(a) Contract assets

Contract assets EREE
Arising from performance B B 4 £l AR 75
under financial printing BHEE

service

(i) Typical payment terms which impact on the amount
of contract assets recognised are as follows:

a

Financial printing services

The Group's financial printing services
include payment schedules which require
stage payments over the services period once
milestones are reached.

BN EANRE@®

BsE - ()

(i) ENIAREERBE-_ZT-—FX
A=Z+tRLEREEBR T _—F—
A— AR ZNBHHELER - A
B AR 3 — RIS M 38 (a)

5= o
ENHARER=_ZF_FFA=1H
/NS SNV NN $L’$ B ES

EE ° Z\\E‘Z{E:ﬁ—%u$| %‘Zﬁ/\\ ﬁufs 3e

RN BHEERGHNERE

(a) AHIEE
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2021 2020
RZB=—F RZZT_THF
~NA=1+H NA=1+H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P THExT FET
i(a) 423 -

iy FEENEEERSEZ RN

a 81 4 EN R AR 75

AREEE B K ENRIARTS &
E-BEIELEERAF
E IR HAR 2 B BN R
B R R K o
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32 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (continued)
(b)

32 EHNEERSHNEG®

Contract liabilities b) &HEE
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2021 2020
R=B=-—F RZZT-TF
AA=+1+H ~NA=+A
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FExT FHET
Contract liabilities EHNEE
Deposits received for MARB B i(a)
licensing of film right BRMRAED N
from customers MR & 182,287 96,561
Receipts in advance of MBAETETE i(b)
artist management WERB &P
work from customers IR 333 297
Receipts in advance of IWE R B = P8R i(c)
wholesale customers 991 -
Deposits received for EUCRETBRORE i(d)
walk-in customers for EnEFPHE®
optical products 252 539
183,863 97,397

RTREXCEBAERRR —FT_—FFRH
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32 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

i

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of

contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

a

Licensing of film rights

The Group received a deposit from, customers
before the delivery of the pre-recorded audio visual
products and the materials for video features. It
was recognised as contract liabilities until the Group
performs under the contract.

Artist management services

The Group received a deposit from, customers
in respect of the artist entertainment job. It was
recognised as contract liabilities until the Group
completes its artist management service, which is
when the artist completed the entertainment job.

Wholesale of watches

The Group received deposits from its wholesale
customer for the sale of watches. It was recognised
a contract liability until it is utilised, The amount was
utilised when the sales is completed, which is when
watches are delivered.

Sale of optical products

The Group received deposits from walk-in customer
for purchase of optical products. There were
recognised as contract liabilities until it is utilised.
The amount is utilised when the customer picks up
the optical products and pays the remaining balance
for the sale transaction.

32

EHNEERESNEBR®

MaE -

(i) FELAHNEERRSTE Z BRI FTUE
AR
a R B2 hRE
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32 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 32 BHEEREHNEE®
LIABILITIES (Continued)
Movement in contract liabilities BB EE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
At the beginning of the year REY] 97,397 193,454
Reclassified to other payables upon REENER IR 1R EHT
contract modification and termination DEEEMERFRIE = (25,256)
Decrease in contract liabilities as FAERRBEEH 2
a result of being recognised as EHEERD
revenue during the year (92,332) (74,743)
Increase in contract liabilities as FERGIAEH 2 AHEaE
a result of billing in advance 0 178,798 3,942
At the end of the year RER 183,863 97,397

As at 30th June 2021, approximately HK$183,863,000
of deposits received are expected to be recognised as
income within one year (2020: HK$97,397,000).

97,397,000/ 7T) ©

RZBEZ—FA=+8 " B:AR—
FRAERAERAZEWITEEEYN
/183,863,000 (T -FF :
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33 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 33 BRBIADGEA, (B8

276

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BrFi AT SR (B 18) Thas Ik (G A)
(crediting) the following: TF&IgEELE
2021 2020
=== “Eo%E
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
BE BAL #E B
BELH TELH &t BE%H EE%H 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fign Fign TR FiEm FiEn TiEm
(a)  Staff costs: (a) BIMK:
Salaries, allowances, and other e 2 RER
benefits (including directors’ RH(pEER
emoluments (Note 36)) B (ff3£36) 46,877 = 46,871 61,275 - 61275
Contributions to defined ERETRKT IR
contribution retirement plans 1,732 = 1,732 1,664 - 1,664
48,609 - 48,609 62,929 - 62,929
(b)  Otheritems: (b) EfER:
Auditors' remuneration 2 Gk
- audit services - BER% 1566 2 1,593 1425 2% 1450
- other services - 2R 290 = 290 290 - 290
1,856 21 1,883 1,715 25 1,740
Amortisation B
~film rights (Note 9) -SYMEIEY) 197,986 S 197,986 4,149 - 44,149
- other intangible assets -EhErEE
(Note 8) (Fy3t8) 147 = 147 397 - 397
Impairment loss of fim EFMEREED
rights and films in progress BYLRERE
(Note 9) (GED) 3,000 - 3,000 4,653 - 4,653
Impairment loss of fim B2 HEvd
related deposits HERE = = = 11,356 - 11,356
Impairment loss of (Note 6) HEEB(ite)
- property, plant and equipment -0%  BERRE 120 = 120 1,000 - 1,09
- right-of-use assets -EREEE 5,954 = 5,954 2,069 - 2,069
Impairment loss of other EfEVEAEL
intangible assets (Note 8) BEEE ) - - - 1,165 - 1,165
Depreciation charge (Note 6) HER (Hit6)
- property, plant and equipment -0%  BERRE 1,855 = 1,855 3,027 = 3,027
- right-of-use assets -EREEE 9,990 = 9,990 11,539 - 11,539
Loss on cancellation of tenancy WEREHH 2 BB
agreement 10 - 10 - - -
Net foreign exchange losses MNEBBFE (9,039) (9) (9,048) 100 27 127
Variable lease payments not TEHAEEARHEY
included in the measurement of MEREMF ()
lease liabilities (Note 6) 299 - 299 633 - 633
Expense relating to short-term HEHREREL
leases (Note 6) R (3to) 1,666 = 1,666 2,887 = 2,887
Expense relating to leases of HEEEAEREREL
low value assets (Note 6) B (iske) 9 = 96 64 = 64
Cost of inventories (Note 19) FamAEE19) 48,007 = 48,007 41,005 = 41,025
Gross rental income from RENZREUA
investment properties less BERERRY
direct outgoings of HK$296,547 296,547% T
2020 HK$178,311) (5-%fF:
1783115 TT) 870 = 870 962 = 962
Written off of property, Ml - 3
plant and equipment (Note 6) JEAGED) 1338 = 1,338 = = =
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33 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (continved) 33 FBRFLEI&A)(E18) @
2021 2020
—B--f e St 3
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
b | BALE b BEIE
"X TEEE @t BE%H BE%H @t
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn T TAL T AL
()  Finance costs () HBREK
Interest on lease liabilties BERENS 528 = 528 542 - 542
Other interest expenses EfeFISR% 4 = 4 - - -
Total interest expense on VHERRRE
financial liabilities not ATENEZ
at fair value through SRAEEL
profit or loss MERZaR 532 - 532 542 - 542
CHANGE IN EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS/ 4 FEHEEEE BEEEZ
IMPAIRMENT LOSS 2E
During the year, the following gains/(losses) in relation FR - UTEBHERESRHEE 2K
to impaired financial assets were recognised in the m/ (BRREE2ERERER -
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
2021 2020
“3--f 2
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
i BAL b5 BAL
- E - E3 @ BexH L3 )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TiEn TiEn TR Thn Thn Thn
Net [change for)write-back of REfEEFRERL
expected credit losses allowances (23 /ER3E
- Accounts receivable - EYER (1,816) = (1,816) (1,066) 1,500 434
- Loans receivabl - EHER 4 = 4 (18,780) - (18,780)
- Loan to an associate -RT-ERELTY
EX - - - (3,586) - (3,586)
- Other receivables - EfEWGE 91 = 91 257 = 27
(1682) - e 317 180 167
BRRATEBERAT —T-—541%K 277
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35 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

35

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

EERKER

TE R FRIRETE
REEREE LR HERTE S S
PIRERERBEIRETZENE
BRy—ERHMEAEEHE(@RESD
itEl) - BESHI R - HAB X
ANEENERHFERAREE - RIFQE
T8 BREREEEZAAZEEN
AW ARBR A EIHFR - &&E AME
B A /330,000/8 7T © &t S FRBNE 57
B o

AEERTENHEBAREESZEA
B R T % RO B R B R R IR AR MR
g - REWBARARFENREAD
Eb 17 3% SR AR AR A 5T 81 R A ST A8 A
AEBEZRAEMNGFENE—BEIR
1R AR TE B R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

36 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

36 =SHEE

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

For the year ended 30th June 2021

RIBEE B (R FEDG]) 3831 E M (AT
(BBREENRERDRINE O RE

MEZEMmT

BE-E-—FXA=1THLEE

Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits scheme
Name of Directors Fees inkind contributions Total
E =1 RIK
EEpg e RENFG AT k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FH7 FHT FHT FH7
Chairman and IEE
executive director HITEE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil /N A = 5,850 18 5,868
Executive director HITEF
Mr. Lam Kit Sun e % & = 1,482 18 1,500
Independent non- BUIHHT
executive directors EZ
Mr. Lam Chi Keung WEREE 130 = = 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon FEokBEE 130 = = 130
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing Wkt 130 = = 130
390 7,332 36 1,758

EFTRECEBERLDR —T-—FFH
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36 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

36 ZEEEE@
BE-_Z-_TFXA=THILEE

Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits scheme
Name of Directors Fees inkind  contributions Total
He R RIK
EEng e REMM = HEIGS k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THET FHET
Chairman and TE#
executive director HITEE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil /N S A - 15,850 18 15,868
Executive director HITEE
Mr. Lam Kit Sun MR E - 1,460 18 1,478
Non-executive director HHITEE
Mr. Hung Cho Sing (Note (i) AR 2 5 A (FI5E) - 10 - 10
Independent non- H BT
executive directors EZ
Mr. Lam Chi Keung Wit 130 - - 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon EXB AL 130 - - 130
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing BRgks 130 - - 130
390 17,320 36 17,746
Note: ffzE -

(i) Mr. Hung Cho Sing was redesignated as an non-executive
director of the Company on 1st February 2019 and
resigned as a non-executive director of the Company on
31st July 2019.

During the year, no director of the Company has waived
any emoluments and no emoluments were paid or
payable by the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

(i) HEEAER T —NF-_A—AB#A
EEARBFERTESE  THR=F—
NFEtA=+—BBEEAREIEHRTT
=

ARABREEFAMERERTOME - ™
AR B IR E R I B F S SR
e FREFIMARKESIMARE
1]y ) HE R SR RE AR 18 o
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included two Directors (2020:
two) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 36 above. The emoluments payable to

37

A B RERME
BEHFATL

REAXEBRLEARSFATBREMS
—E-TF MRAEF HEZHE
HBEERN EXHE362T 2o TAR
B HB=R(CEZZEE ZH)AT

the remaining three (2020: three) individuals during the RERZENMESAT -
year are as follows:

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Salaries and other emoluments FekEMHE 6,013 15,603
Contributions to retirement scheme IRURET SR 54 54
6,067 15,657

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

The emoluments of the three (2021: three) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following
bands:

HEHME T HIEEA -

ZHR(CE—FZR)ReHALZ
FETIHER :

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
A AE
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001/87TE
1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8L 2
1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 TE
4,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001/ 82
13,500,000/ 7T - 1
3 3

EFTRECEBERLDR —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

38 OTHER INCOME 38 HAW A
2021 2020

“E--f Z2-%%

Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total

K BAL it BRI
Besy fezy @it Bezh Bezh )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx T Thr T Th Th
Advertising income BEMA 239 = 239 - - -
Supermarket coupon sales RMEHHE 251 = 251 - - -
Sponsorship income EBA 7 = 7 - - -
Rental income BElA 55 - 5 424 - 424
Gain on settlement of litigation (note al ~ 3FEA TR (Ff3ta) 18549 = 18,549 - - -
Rental concession HeEE 167 = 167 - - -
Screening income EL3=20N 4 = “ 59 - 59

Dividend income from financial FRBERLTENR
assets at fair value through profit LEBEEZRS

orloss oN 289 = 289 - - -
Government subsidy UL 2,6% = 2,69 1,509 - 1509
Others Eft 28 = 28 896 4 890
22,590 - 22,590 2878 4 2,882
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38 OTHER INCOME (continued)

Note:

(a)

On 22nd June 2018, the Group issued demand letters
to the vendors (“Vendors"”) and guarantors (the
“Guarantors”), parties to an acquisition agreement dated
12 October 2015 in relation to the acquisition of 51%
equity interest in AP Group Investment Holdings Limited
("AP Group”) (“Acquisition Agreement”) demanding
the payment of an amount of HK$20.4 million as the
adjustment amount under the Acquisition Agreement
("Fragrant River's claim”). As at 30th June 2020, the
carrying amount of contingent consideration receivable
in relation to the Acquisition Agreement was HK$Nil. On
16th July 2018, Lucky Famous Limited (“Lucky Famous”)
commenced a Court of First Instance Action and claimed
against Fragrant River Entertainment Culture (Holdings)
Limited (“Fragrant River"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and the Company (”Lucky Famous Action”)
for inter alia the sum of HK$20.4 million as the adjustment
to the consideration (the “Adjustment Amount”) alleged to
be payable under an agreement dated 13th June 2016 (the
"Disposal Agreement”) pursuant to which Lucky Famous
purchased from Fragrant River 51% of the issued share
capital of AP Group. Lucky Famous applied to amend the
writ and filed a statement of claim to join Guarantors as
defendants in the Lucky Famous Actions for certain claims
against them. The Court allowed the application of Lucky
Famous on 24th September 2019. As at 30th June 2020,
the Group recognised a contingent consideration payable
of HK$20.4 million in relation to the Disposal Agreement.

On 1st February 2021 Lucky Famous, Fragrant River,
Company, the Vendors and the Guarantors, without
admission of any liability in relation to the Lucky
Famous Action, entered into a settlement agreement
(the "“Settlement Agreement”) to settle all claims and
complaint against each other arising out of the Lucky
Famous Action, the Fragrant River's Claim and any amount
of any other nature arising out of or in connection with
the Acquisition Agreement and the Disposal Agreement
(collectively the “Dispute Matters”).

Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the Group and the
Guarantors shall pay a sum of HK$1,500,000 (“Settlement
Amount”) and HK$4,500,000, respectively, to Lucky
Famous for the settlement of the Dispute Matters.

As a result of entering into the Settlement Agreement,
a gain on settlement of litigation of HK$18,549,000
is recognised in profit or loss which represented the
difference between (i) the fair value of contingent
consideration receivable of HK$20,400,000 and the fair
value of contingent consideration receivable of HK$Nil and
(i) the Settlement Amount of HK$1,500,000 and other
cost incurred.

38
B

(a)

BEFRELEBBER Q]

w

REMB|RME

HAyg A @

RZZE—NFANA=-+=-H £A£H
mES(ERDRERATERADR
MAE_T—RAFt+A+t=-ABBEKE
EHEBRIZERERAAR(EHEE]
51 % R4 o s B o (TR AR )) 2 BT
)L ERE - BEREEZAAH
204EBEL  ERKEBERETY
ARSHE(HIRR]) -R_ZT_TF
ANA=Z+TH - BEKE RS E KK
RREEBEAZTATL - R2T—N
F+A+758 * Lucky Famous Limited
(TLucky Famous) RAIRFAEER BT
REL(ZER)BRAR(TEI] - &
NEZENBRR) RARQRREFD
(TLucky Famous#F#al) » B3R(E &
BXNEMBRBREASRA T —X
FRAT=BzHB(HEmBHE] - &
Itk + Lucky FamousA & THEEEHi&E
E51% B2 BITRA)ENREZAZS
#2048 8B ((HAEERE]D ° Lucky
FamousE, B 18 2 IF 2 22 & 1 B R PR
& - LATELucky Famousaf A InAYE
RARES  MEEFELHETFTRE -
EERZE-NAFALA - THEBH#E
Lucky FamousZ B - RZZE T F
NAZTH AEEEEREHELE
HEMENRAREB2048EET -

R-ZF=-—F—-H—H " Lucky
Famous * &I * "AH] « H7 RER
ANERFEFEER P K Lucky Famousih
AAEAL 2 B0 N R S AR sk ([N AR 17
%) 0 BARSRLucky FamoussRFAFf I
BAEHESHFZHRREREBF - BL
RENRBEREREEHREMEL
FEEBTMEMEE 2 RS
(mEIFZEEHAD -

RIBME RS AEERERAESD
A Lucky Famous2 £ 1,500,000 7t
([FfR £ %8]) & 4,500,0007%8 7T 2 FUE
LASRIRFHEIE o

A ]S AR 5 e 0 AR RA AR 2 WS
18,549,000 TLiEBm P IER » BI(i)fE
I s SRR (B A 1B 20,400,00058 7T & fE
W RAREBAFESATRINVNES
%81,500,00078 7T & BT E 4 2 E A A X
AR o

T —FFH
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e M BHRHE

39 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET 39 Hfttlss ~(&18) - HH
2021 2020
“E--f Z2-%%
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
K BAL it BRIE
Bexk BExk @it Bezh Bezh )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx T Thr T Th Th
Handing charge for terminationof It EFREHHTEE
film investment agreement - - - 1,148 - 1,148
Loss on disposal of property, NENE  BELRE
plant and equipment pa 7 (1,338) = (1,338) - - -
Loss on cancelation of tenancy DHRERE BB
agreement (10) - (10) - - -
Waiver of other payables HEEMERNFE = = = 3432 - 343
Written back on provision for advance ~ EEZEA S5 EE
to artiste 15 - 15 60 - 60
Provision for doubtful debt-non trade 32 HRERE (66) - (66) - - -
Net foreign exchange gain/lloss) Eils/ (BR)5E 9,039 9 9,048 (100) (27) (127)
Sales rebate #EmH 3,351 = 3,351 3977 - 3977
Amortisation of deferred day one STEERIEY
gainin respect of derivative ELERYEEE
financial instruments 5,531 - 5,531 5,545 - 5,545
Others £ 368 - 368 461 - 461
16,890 9 16,899 14,623 (27) 14,496

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

40 FINANCE INCOME 40 REUWA
2021 2020
“E--f Z2-%%
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
K BAL it BAIL
BExk BExk @it BExHh BExH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thx ThR T Th Th
Bank interest income FAMEMA 1612 - 1612 2133 - 2133
Other interest income EfMSRA 679 - 679 854 - 854
Finance income included HAGARENEER
in consolidated statement of BB
comprehensive income 2,291 - 2,291 2,987 - 2,987
Loan interest income fincluded ERFEMAGA
in total revenue in consolidated BARENERENL
staternent of comprehensive ks
income) 967 - 967 7,889 - 7,889
Total interest income LN 3,258 = 3,258 10876 - 10,876
BFREEBERAT TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

The provision of PRC Enterprise Income Tax is
calculated at 25% of the estimated taxable profits
for the year.

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be
levied on the gross income for film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights
derived from the PRC.

No provision for profits tax in Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands has been made as the Group
has no income or profit assessable for tax in these
jurisdictions for the years ended 30th June 2021
and 2020, respectively.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2021

TAXATION 4 FiE
Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) #rEe2@EWEKRAZ
comprehensive income PS5
2021 2020
“E--F -%°%
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
K& BAL BE BRIE
BEER mEER @it Bexh Ey Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL Thx Tén T Thr Thn
Current tax SEEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH
Charge for the year ERTH 5,575 = 5575 - - -
{Over)iunder provision for R (RERE)/
the year BETR (30) = (30) (205) - (208)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~~~ RELEMEHR
Charge for the year ERi 2578 = 2578 - - -
PRC withholding tax HEER
Charge for the year ERYH 2373 - 2313 - - -
Over provision in prior year BREERBAE (1,569) - (1,569) - - -
Deferred tax ELHE
Origination and reversal of rfzEn
temporary differences ELREE (182) = (182) 64 - 64
Income tax expensesficredit)  FIARER/(£4) 28,745 = 28,745 (141) - (141)

EBNNESHEBENRFEANGAE
BPEFINIE6 5% (Z BT :
16.5%)5F & -

REIMEMS R BRI IRE A
JERBUR MBI 25 %515 ©

BEPRzEEEITRRM - BE
NS TL A N ONE R
10% 2 R TEFIFL -

VEFARERABELEENE
BIELEE  REAREEREZE
—E—FRIZEZTFNA=T
BIEFETERZERAERES
FERRFRUR A S0 F)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

41 TAXATION (Continued) 41 FIE@
(b)  Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting (b) ®imEEeEBRBERARETE @5
profit/(loss) at the applicable tax rates: wmH (18 2 HER -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BETSR AR A, (E518)
- from continuing operations - RABEBELEER 181,509 (28,5086)
- from discontinued operation - REERIEGEER
(Note 42) (ff7F42) (294) 795
181,215 (27,711)
Tax calculated at domestic tax £E&B BBERAEF
rates applicable to profits SESEIEEAN
or losses in the respective BB ETED
countries ] 29,638 (4,535)
(Over)/under-provision in respect of B FE (FBREE M),/
prior years BETE (30) (205)
Income not subject to tax MAARN 2B (6,144) (3,736)
Expenses not deductible for TR 2B
tax purpose 895 2,510
Tax effect of deductible temporary 7K FER A 0% & B4
difference not recognised ERHMETE 3,372 843
Utilisation of previously BRI AR ER 2 FIE
unrecognised tax losses BB (4,129) (4,101)
Tax losses not recognised REER 2 TIAEE 3,378 11,220
Tax effect of previously MRS AR MR IR ET 18
unrecognised tax losses BTG RE
now recognised (308) -
Tax reduction FRIEFR (165) (11)
Tax reduction from double taxation B B 2 B
relief - (2,126)
Others HAh 2,238 =
Income tax expenses/(credit) sy (Hx) 28,745 (141)

EFTRECEBERLDR —T-—FFH
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e M BHRHE

42 DISCONTINUED OPERATION 42 COERIEKEFEFK
During the year ended 30th June 2021, the Group ceased HEZZ-—FXA=ZTAHLEFE &
its business in securities brokerage and margin financing. SERIEHBSFCERTRBEFER
The analysis of the results of discontinued operation is as ERIEREEB 2 EESTWT ¢
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—4F -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue g 2 33
Other income H A - 4
Other net income/(losses) Hib e,/ (E18)F58 9 (27)
Administrative expenses THAX (305) (715)
Change in expected credit loss TEHEEEIEEE - 1,500
(Loss)/profit before taxation from REERIHEEEBL 2
discontinued operation BB AT (&) R (294) 795
Income tax credit FriSBi e - -
(Loss)/profit for the year from REBKRIHGEEER Y
discontinued operation FE (BB, HEH (294) 795
Attributable to: AT AT RS -
Owners of the Company KRREE A (294) 795
(294) 795
Net cash flows from discontinued operations are as BRIEEEEFR 2 RSFREAT ¢
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—& —EEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from WEERK(RE)RA
operating activities 2B e FE (150) 11,153
Total net cash (outflows)/inflows FHe(RE)RABE (150) 11,153
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43 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic

43

Basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary share is calculated
by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of

the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated

REMB|RME

BREF,(BE)

(a) EA&
SREBRELXRT, (BR) DK
ARRFEE NRAEEF (B518) B
DR E TR BT B

ATEIHEE

as follows:
2021 2020
—E-— T
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of ZNA B A AR E R,
the Company (HK$'000) (E518) (F%m)
- from continuing operations - REBERLEER 154,639 (27,858)
- from discontinued - REBR I
operation E (294) 795
- from continuing and - REFENMERI
discontinued operations E TS 154,345 (27,063)
Weighted average number of B BT E B 2 Nk
ordinary shares in issue T8 906,632,276 906,632,276
Basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary BT REEARRF
share (HK$) (E518) (B 7T)
- from continuing and - RERBEREKRILE
discontinued operations EETE 0.1702 (0.0299)
- from continuing operations - REFERKEER 0.1706 (0.0307)
- from discontinued - REBRIEEE
operation ES 3 (0.0004) 0.0008

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

BB I B(ER)

(Basic)
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —E-TF
Issued ordinary shares at RtA—BESNA=+H
1st July and 30th June 2RTEBR 906,632,276 906,632,276
EFRETERBERAT —P-—FFH
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e M BHRHE

43 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same
as the basic loss per share for the year ended 30th
June 2021 (2020: same) as there is no potential
dilutive share issued during the year.

44 DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2021 (2020: Nil).

43

a4

SRER,(EB) @

(b) BEE
He—Z-—9F"A=1THLF
EEBRESERN(FEEF
BEXEERR(ZZE_ZF :
/) - JPEERILEDHITEE S

B -

RE

EFETRMEERE_T- 45
STRALEEZABRE(CE-BF
") -
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REMB|RME

45 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 45
(a) Reconciliation of loss before tax to cash generated (a)
from operations:
Profit/(loss) before tax for the year FRAZBRIHANEF, (&)

From continuing operations
From discontinued operation
(Note 42)
Adjustments for:

— Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (Note 6)

— Amortisation of film rights
(Note 9)

— Amortisation of other intangible
assets (Note 8)

— Amortisation of deferred day
one gain in respect of derivative
financial instruments

— Gain on settlement of litigation

= Fair value change of other
financial assets

= Impairment losses of property,
plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets)
(Note 6)

= Loss on cancellation of tenancy
agreement

= Impairment losses of film rights
and films in progress (Note 9)

= Impairment losses of film
related deposits

= Change in expected credit loss
(Note 34)

= Write-down of inventories
(Note 19)

= Impairment loss of other
intangible assets (Note 8)

= Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 39)

— Reversal of write-down of
inventories (Note 19)

- Wirite off of current account
with associate

KA BEREER
AT ISR
(Ff5E42)

LTI B RELRE

MR - WERR
Z Y& (i 7E6)
- BRI 2 HiH
(KY&E9)
- At B EE 2 B
(Kf7E8)
“RITESRIAZ
AT E A e 5

- FRAAANAR 2 Wan

-HiveREERFE
HE)

- ¥ EENREE
REREEE) 2R
1B /& 18 (K1 :E6)

- BUBME W= 2 B1ER

- EEMEREEREY
2 EE A (K59)
-EF BT 2RE
gl
-JEHEEEERE
(B3¥34)
- 178 ZMos (3£E19)

- HitEBE ZRE
B 1R (F1EEs)

- HEME  EERERE
Z 1R (E39)

- FEMURE D (F5E19)

- W sHE A R RAR

B 5% A 5 16 £

\ E;N\Q

IMEE
HEEEZRe Y
2021 12020
=—fF —T_EHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
181,509 (28,506)
(294) 795
11,845 14,566
197,986 44,149
147 397
(5,531) (5,545)
(18,549) -
(761) 3,581
6,074 3,159
10 -
3,000 4,653
= 11,356
1,682 21,675
1,693 421
= 1,165
1,338 =
(2,067) (408)
29 =

EFRETEBERAR —T-—FFK
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e M BHRHE

45 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 45 EHtIE S REER @

(a) Reconciliation of loss before tax to cash generated (a) mBAEBERALEELECReY
from operations: (Continued) Ik (8
2021 2020
—EBE-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
- Finance income (Note 40) — B (H4340) (2,291) (2,987)
- Finance costs (Note 33(c)) - B R AR (B 7E33(c)) 532 542
- Waiver of other payables - e E M B RIE
(Note 39) (K33E39) - (3,432)
— Share of losses of associates - B E R R E R — 1,085
- Net foreign exchange loss - INEBIEFE (3,348) 1,844
~ Written back on provision for - BRI A BB
advance to artists (Note 39) (F5E39) (15) (60)
Changes in working capital: LEESEY
- Inventories -FE 1,494 (1,761)
- Accounts receivable - FERUER K (37,576) (61,510)
- Amount due to/from an associate ~ — JEAT /Uy — [ HE
UNCIE O 24 (2,778)
- Loans receivable - EIER (484) 39,749
- Loan to an associate - By —HBEARZ
B® = 702
- Deposits paid, prepayments -BNF®  BNRE
and other receivables & H A fE YR8 537 67,865
- Accounts payable - FETBRIR 30,896 8,480
- Other payables and accrued - Efth S RIE AT
charges X 84,728 87,533
- Deposits received -BlET & (1,157) (29,446)
- Contract assets -EHEE (423) -
- Contract liabilities -AHBE 86,466 (95,259)
- Financial assets at fair value - BBEREATE
through profit or loss AR eREE (73,575) 5,391
- Bank balances and cash - RITEBRERE
~ trust accounts - 55K F (5) 89
Cash generated from operations EEBELXCES 463,914 87,507
Tax refund REHIA = 2,242
Tax paid BHRIA (3,945) (346)
Refund/(purchase) of tax certificate  iE[El /(B A) 55 - 45
Net cash generated from operating ~ ZEEBELZFHE
activities 459,969 89,448
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45 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 45

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

HMREREELR @)

Reconciliation of loss before tax to cash generated (a) mBAEBERALEELECReY
from operations: (Continued) B (&)
2021 2020
—E--F —TFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT FAET
Disposal of property, plant and a. HEME BERFZE
equipment
Carrying amount (Note 6) RHEME(fi6) 1,338 -
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - a3 REkE
plant and equipment (Note 39) ZEBEFE (39 (1,338) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - IR NR
property, plant and equipment ZFEE - -
Lease liabilities b. HEEE
At the end of the year RER 21,434 15,475
Add: Exchange difference m:ERES (246) 179
Modification of lease contract HEAHNER (334) 334
Increase in prepayment of BENAERSEN
lease rentals paid IR 353 -
Cancellation of tenancy BB EH =
agreement 1,678 -
Less: Increase in lease liabilities from B FRRIHEE
entering into new leases HEBELM
during the year (18,829) (8,231)
Less: At the beginning of the year B REA]) (15,475) (19,399)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BERHEE 2 ERTS (11,419) (11,642)

EFTRECEBERLDR —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

(b)

45 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 45 HAtIE EREER @
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) mEEBELEAMBEE:
activities:

Lease
liabilities Total
HEAE Mt

At 1st July 2019 RZE—NFLtA—H 19,399 19,399
Capital element of lease rentals BENHEERE 2 EAREH D

paid (11,642) (11,642)
Interest element of lease rentals BENHEERE 2B D

paid (542) (542)
Total changes from financing BMERSNE EHREE

cash flows (12,184) (12,184)
Other changes: Hih )
Increase in lease liabilities from FRIFHEEZ

entering into new leases HEBRFE N

during the year 8,231 8,231
Decrease in lease modification HEEBRD (334) (334)
Interest expenses B 542 542
Exchange difference EHZR (179) (179)
Total other changes HabEehaasa 8,260 8,260
At 30th June 2020 and RZZE_ZTFA=1H

1st July 2021 MZZZ—F+H—H 15,475 15,475
Capital element of lease rentals BENHEERE 2 EARE D

paid (11,419) (11,419)
Interest element of lease rentals BENHEERE 2B D

paid (528) (528)
Total changes from financing BMERSMNEEHRE

cash flows (11,947) (11,947)
Other changes: Hih )
Increase in lease liabilities from FRETLFHECHE

entering into new leases BEEM

during the year 18,829 18,829
Increase in lease modification HEEEM 334 334
Increase in prepayment of lease BENHEERSENE

rentals paid N (353) (353)
Cancellation of tenancy agreement BUHE % (1,678) (1,678)
Interest expenses FERAX 528 528
Exchange difference e ZR 246 246
Total other changes H b E)EEE 17,906 17,906
At 30th June 2021 WZE-_—FA=1H 21,434 21,434
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

45 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 45 HMIE S REEL @

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERE ML
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for FARERERZHESEBIEN
leases comprise the following: TRIE

2021 2020
:g:—fﬁ — ? [ E'E
(Note)
(B aE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&x FHET
Within operating cash flows REBERSMREN 2,061 3,684
Within financing cash flows REEREREA 11,947 12,184
14,008 15,768
These amounts relate to the following: ZECRHANTEEAR -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Lease rentals paid BENEE 14,008 15,768
BFREYLEBBER AR —T=—FFHK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

46 PENDING LITIGATIONS

(a)

A court action was commenced in the Court of First
Instance of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region on 17th April 2002 by The Star Overseas
Limited (“Star"”), an independent third party, against
Universe Entertainment Limited (“UEL"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Under the above action, Star alleged that a sum
of US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) was
payable by UEL to Star as its share of the revenue
of the movie entitled “Shaolin Soccer” (the
“Movie").

Pursuant to an Order (the “Order”) made by the
High Court on 21st February 2003, UEL was ordered
and had paid to Star a sum of HK$5,495,700, being
part of the license fee of the Movie received by
UEL from Miramax Films (being the licensee of the
Movie) and which was also part of the sum claimed
by Star. Pursuant to the Order, UEL is also liable
to pay Star interest in the sum of HK$350,905 and
some of the costs of the application leading to the
making of the Order, all of which have been settled.
As the Order has not disposed of all the claims of
US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) by Star,
UEL is entitled to continue to defend the claim by
Star for recovering the remaining balance in the
sum of approximately HK$1,804,099 (HK$7,299,799
less HK$5,495,700).

On 30th April 2002, UEL claimed against Star for
the latter’'s wrongful exploitation of certain rights in
the Movie co-owned by both parties. UEL claimed
to recover all losses and damages suffered by UEL
as a result of the wrongful exploitation.

46 RIREFEA

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

46 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 9th September 2002, Universe Laser & Video
Co. Limited ("ULV"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, claimed against Star for
the latter’'s infringement of the licensed rights in
the Movie held by ULV. ULV claimed to recover all
losses and damages suffered by ULV as a result of
the said infringement.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the claim against UEL. The
Board is of the opinion that the outcome of the
said claim made against UEL will have no material
financial impact to the Group for the year ended
30th June 2021.

On 1st September 2008, Koninklijke Philips
Electronics N.V. ("KPE") claimed against among
other persons, the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors), being three
of the defendants named therein, in respect of
damages arising from alleged infringement of the
patents regarding Video Compact Disc owned by
KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made against
the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.
The Board is of the opinion that the outflow of
economic benefits cannot be reliably estimated and
accordingly no provision for any liability that may
result has been made in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2021.

REMB|RME

46 FRIRFFEA @)

(a)

(&)

RZZFZ_FNAANE > ARFIZ
—HRZR2EMNB AR R THES
FARQR((ETES DEELE
RILETEG AL EX AR
RRmAERELRE - EFESE
AR RETAMSERE 2 —
MBREREBE -

RIZEERZER - BREERER
HEFTREN TRREEREBR
FiBF  EEZERRUBETREN
PRREZERTERBEE_FT
—ERAZTHLEEEHAEER
REARMHEE -

RZZEZN\FNLA—AH * Koninklijke
Philips Electronics N.V.([KPEJ) A
(BB ARE - EFEH LMK
NREAEEFR—RES) (Fm ok
FHEP =S RN EAEER
RIKPEATIF BB B TN F R
BEEMELZIBRZRIE -

RiIpZEERZER - BREERER
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e M BHRHE

46 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(c)

On 8th January 2010, KPE claimed against among
other persons, the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil (one of the directors of the Company),
being three of the defendants named therein,
in respect of damages arising from the alleged
infringement of the patents regarding Digital Video
Disc owned by KPE.

On 6th June 2012, the action was discontinued
against the Company and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil. The claim made against ULV has been
agreed with KPE and settled by ULV and appropriate
legal costs provision was recognised accordingly in
the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2012.

No additional provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2021. Based on the consultation
with legal counsel, no further material outflow of
economic benefits will be incurred for ULV.

Universe Artiste Management Limited ("UAM"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, commenced Court of First Instance
Action against Kwong Ling and Oriental Prosperous
Int'l Entertainments Limited (collectively the
“Defendants”) on 30th June 2014 claiming,
inter alia, a declaration that UAM was entitled to
extend/renew the term of the Artist Management
Contract of the Defendants with UAM (the “Artist
Management Contract”) for 5 years as from 3rd
May 2014 to 2nd May 2019.

46 FRIRFFEA@E)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

46 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(d)

(Continued)

The Defendants filed their defence and
counterclaimed on 29th September 2014. Under
such counterclaim, the Defendants claimed against
UAM inter alia for a declaration that the Artist
Management Contract was void and unenforceable,
the Artist Management Contract to be rescinded,
damages for breach of the Artist Management
Contract and for breach of fiduciary duties, a
declaration that UAM was liable to account to the
Defendants and an order for payment of all sums
found to be due by UAM to the Defendants. The
parties have finalized their pleadings. The trial has
been originally scheduled on 27th September 2021
and was further rescheduled by the court to 4th
October 2021.

Given the complexities of the factual and legal
issues to be resolved, in the opinion of legal
counsel, it is premature to assess the likely
outcome of this Action.

The Board considers that the amounts of
counterclaim by the Defendants against UAM is
insignificant to the Group as a whole.

REMB|RME
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(d)

(&)
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46 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(e)

On 11th March 2020, China Jianxin Credit Services
Limited (“China Jianxin”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company commenced the Court
of First Instance Action of the High Court of Hong
Kong against China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited
("China Wah Yan") for, among other things, (a) the
outstanding balance of HK$16,175,304.11, being
the outstanding principal and the interest accrued
up to 11th March 2020 thereon under a loan
agreement entered into between China Jianxin and
China Wah Yan on 30th April 2019; (b) interest on
the said outstanding principal of HK$15,800,000.00
at the rate of 8.5% per annum from 12th March
2020 until full payment; (c) costs of the Action; and
(d) further and other reliefs (the “Original Action”).

China Wah Yan filed their defence and counterclaim
on 15th September 2020. According to such
defence and counterclaim, China Wah Yan and
Sky Clear Bright Group Limited (“Sky Bright”),
the wholly-owned subsidiary of China Wah Yan,
counterclaimed against China Jianxin, Precise
Reach Group Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, one
of the directors of the Company for damages to be
assessed, interest, costs and further or other reliefs
in relation to the alleged misrepresentation and the
alleged set-off by China Wah Yan and Sky Bright
in extinction or in diminution of the claim of the
Original Action.

Up to the date of this report, as the exchange of
evidence has not been completed, in the opinion of
legal advisor, it is not practicable to assess the likely
outcome of this Action.

46 FRIRFFEA@E)

(e)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

46 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(f)

On 21st July 2021 a civil claim (the “Claim”) lodged
by Chengdu Global Bona Culture Media Co., Ltd.*
(AKX EBER K18 M S L E AR A 7)) (the "Chengdu
Global Bona") against Universe Entertainment
Limited (EFIREBRAF]), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and other six defendants
(collectively “Defendants”), has been accepted by
the Beijing Intellectual Property Court* (1t 52 &0 &
#E5%EBR) (the “Court”).

Under the Claim, Chengdu Global Bona alleged that
a film called “White Strom 2 — Drug Lords” (iR 52X
Hu¥97R) released by the Group in 2019 infringed the
script copyright of a film called “Perfect Lover”*
(72E1EA) ("Alleged Copyright Infringement”) and
claimed against the Defendants jointly and severally
for a damage of approximately RMB99,990,000
(approximately HK$120 million) arising from the
Alleged Copyright Infringement. Chengdu Global
Bona also requested all the Defendants to (i) stop
the Alleged Copyright Infringement; (ii) make
apology for the Alleged Copyright Infringement; and
(iii) bear the cost of RMB600,000 (approximately
HK$720,000) and all other legal cost in relation
to the Claim to Chengdu Global Bona. The other
six defendants of the Claims are third parties
independent of the Company and its connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules).

The Group did not receive any litigation documents
of the Claim from the Court or Chengdu Global
Bona up to the date of this report. Nevertheless, the
Group is seeking legal advice in respect of the Claim
and will deny the allegations of the Claim. Based on
the information currently available, in the opinion of
legal counsel, it is not probable that the Group will
be liable to the Claim and the Board believes that
the above litigation has no material impact on the
business and operation of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2021, no other
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending against either the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

REMB|RME
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(f)
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e M BHRHE

47 COMMITMENTS 47 RIE
(a) Other commitments (a) EAhFdE
As at 30th June 2021, the Group had commitments RZZE-—FA=+H &~&EE
contracted but not provided for in these BETAERNERE TR REE 2
consolidated financial statements as follows: EPEWNT
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Purchase of film rights and BEETREREY
production of films (Note i) 2U4E (B EED 117,815 74,112
Note i: Included in the commitment for the purchase of WeEi: RZZEZZEFNA=ZTHFA
film rights and production of films, an amount i BB B R R R
of approximately HK$7,971,000 is related to the & 5497,971,0008 T (=%
joint operation arrangements of film production —Z4F 1 £96,001,000/%8 ) &2
as at 30th June 2020 (2020: approximately BB 2R HEE -
HK$6,001,000).
48 FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 18 ARREEHERH
ARRANGEMENTS
As at 30th June 2021, the Group had future aggregate MW-ZZE-—FXA=1+H AEERE
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable TR 2 2R E M A R R EL 2
operating leases as follows: RIEMEEFRERLENT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Not later than one year A —F 971 675
Later than one year and not later than iR —F R AEARF
five years 908 -
1,879 675
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REMB|RME

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 49 BEEALTZRS
(a) Tenancy Agreements (a) THEW=
The following transactions related to the tenancy WTRGEARRB —REELEHR
agreement with Universe Property Investment EZEFYERBEBERARZEE
Limited which is wholly-owned by a director of the %A (Mi5ta)
Company (Note a)
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
i) Repayment of lease liabilites i) (HEHSEE 2,335 2,836
i) Interest on lease liabilities i HEBEAES 82 92

Note a:

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited ("UDE"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a tenancy agreement
with Universe Property Investment Limited
("UPI"), a company owned by Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil, the executive director of the
Company, for renting (1) an industrial unit and
(2) 5 carparking spaces in an industrial building
for warehouse, ancillary office and carparking
uses in Kwai Chung from 25 February 2021
to 24 February 2024, at a monthly rental of
HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy Agreement”) which
was arrived at following arm’s length negotiation
between the Group and UPI with reference to
the rental valuation performed by Ravia Global
Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent
property valuer, as at 22nd January 2018 which
reflected the then market rent. Under HKFRS16,
the Group recognized depreciation of right-of-use
assets and interest expenses of HK$2,335,000
(2020: HK$2,847,000) and HK$82,000 (2020:
HK$92,000) respectively instead of rental
expenses during the year.

Mizta: AAGMEZEMBLARE
FHBRELBFRAA(ETF
HAEIRGE ) AN B HITE
EWNBREMEZRARE
FYEREBRAB(EF
MERENDHEBE T =_—F
—AZt+REE-ZZT_ME
“A-t+WMBLUAES
244,000 c A1) — BT
EEMNQ)SLEREE—
RAERE BENHAE
FESHNTEAEZEE
BRI AERZE ((HER
& ZhERAEERESE
FYERERLDEBIYE
HEME LR EERE
BARIR-ZE—NF—A=
+ZBEEENESEE (R
EEMERES)EAFTER
BT RESEVHHREE
AlE16%:  AEERFRRE
RIEAEEETE LT ERH
¥ 952,335,000 (==
— T4 12,847,000 7T) &
82,0008 T(ZE_FF :
92,000/ T) © MIEHEH
§ °
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49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 49 BEALTZRZ @

(b) Details of key management compensation (b)

Key management personnel are those management
members with responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group.

TEEEEHRIZFIS
TBERARBAENE  ETR
THAEETH L ERE -

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZT-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FiET
Salaries and other short-term FelhHEmEHES
employee benefits = 7,722 17,710
Post-employment benefits BB RIKEF 36 36
7,758 17,746
(c) Transactions with an associate (c) H—fAERAIZRS

During the year ended 30th June 2021, the Group
purchased optical products from HK Optical for
approximately HK$1,490,000 (2020: HK$9,086,000),
sold optical products to HK Optical for approximately
HK$658,000 (2020: HK$5,578,000), and paid
licence and management fee to HK Optical for
approximately HK$41,000 (2020: HK$698,000). The
Group also received rental income from HK Optical
of approximately HK$Nil (2020: HK$371,000) and
income for recharge expenses of motor vehicle
from HK Optical of approximately HK$17,000 (2020:
HK$52,000).

(d) Transactions with related companies (d)

During the year ended 30th June 2021, the Group
purchased optical products from Hops Optical
Holding Limited for approximately HK$819,000,
and sold optical products to Hops Optical Holding
Limited for approximately HK$819,000.

HE_ZT-_—F~A=+A8L
FE  AEBNRXEREHE
431,490,000 T(ZZE —_ZF :
9,086,000/ T) IREEEM « L&
#7658,000 B L (Z T T F -
5,578,000/ 0) RIFE M TIX SR
B RAEXEREINHFALE
BEEL41,0008 (=T 2 F ¢
698,000/ 7T) » NEE KSR
BB BRALNOBT(ZE=F
F 371,000 D) M AEFTEE A
WAHI17,0008 (= 4F ¢
52,000/ 7T) °

BB RNRI IR S
Bz -_—4F~A=+HI
FE - A&EBMHops Optical
Holding Limitedf& & £7819,000/%
T2 BREEE M + WAHops Optical
Holding Limited$H% #7819,000/%5
L2 REFEM °

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these & F X R RERE B ISk M3 BT
consolidated financial statements, no other material BEI  REBWES VT EME KFEE
related party transactions have been entered into by AERS - ZER TR BB EIF AR
the Group. The transactions were carried out after REAREE R EEANLTEREET -

negotiations between the Group and the related parties in
the ordinary course of business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

50 COMPANY — LEVEL BALANCE SHEET N AFREHEEEFER
2021 2020
—EBE-—F —E-FF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P 7 FE T FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB REE 72,096 72,096
Property, plant and equipment W - HEE N ERE - -
Other financial asset Hin e mEE 770 -
et ean ettt ttnaeeaneeeateanneenereaerenreenenn ... 7286 72,096
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B B~ B 0E 283,418 113,088
Deposits paid BEfETS 248 243
. Gash and cash equivalents RERRGIEY 783 . 15,061
.................. 284449 < 128392
Total assets HEE 357,315 200,488
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to the KAREE ANELER
owners of the Company
Share capital PR 25 9,066 9,066
Share premium BhmE 27(b) 35,013 35,013
Other reserves Hih s 27(b) 597,789 597,789
Accumulated losses ZETEE 27(b) (309,160) (465,537)
 Totalequity . MR 332708 . 176331
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities nREEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A B F0E 21,713 21,891
Accrued charges MR 2,894 2,266
................. 24,607 24,157
Total liabiities . BRE .. 24807 . 24187..
Total equity and liabilities HERRAR 357,315 200,488
Net current assets RBEETFE 259,842 104,235
Total assets less current HEERARBARS
liabilities 332,708 176,331

EFTRECEBERLDR —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRHE

50 COMPANY — LEVEL BALANCE SHEET 5 AREEEEEER@®@
(Continued)
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of ERZZEZ—FNAZTNAEESS
directors on 29th September 2021. HofE R IR T B -
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun /MR MREERR
Director Director - BFE

51 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 51 EEKHZAERAF
PARTY

At 30th June 2021, the directors consider the immediate RZEZ—FXA=Z+H EFBFERAEAX
holding company and ultimate controlling party of the EENEEERA R MRRIZERE SR
Group to be Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited A Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited
and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil respectively. Pioneer K AR/NBRSE A& o Pioneer Entertainment
Entertainment Group Limited, which is incorporated in Group Limitedr? 2 8 55 20 B & sE i Ak
BVI, does not produce financial statements available for o WERRAHARATEANY B
public use. Wk o
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Principal Properties Held for Investment Purposes

KFEREMBRZEEYE

HONG KONG =B
Location Lot number Type Lease term
i B i E] EE HEFH
Woodland House 1-5, Lot numbers 1510 remaining Residential 2047
Woodlands Villa, part, 1511, 1516, 1518, 1519,
121 Tong Fuk Village, 1522 and 1523 in Demarcation
Tong Fuk, Lantau Island, District 328
New Territories, Hong Kong
B R AL L E 4953281 = ZEF
VEIRERN1215% 151058 #05 » 16115% -
R B B AR = 1 = 655 15165% * 1518%% + 15199 -
152257 f2 15235%
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Five Year Financial Summary

LFEUBERE

RESULTS ¥EE
Year ended 30th June
BEARAZTHLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--f T “T-hnF —“F-\& _—TLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz TET TET TEx FET
Revenue from continuing REHELCEER Y
operations gy 602,600 226,767 61,669 86,673 195,717
Profit/(Loss) before income tax ~ KBHELLER 2
from continuing operations BRETGRATES
(B5#8) 181,509 (28,506) (118,600) (79,700) (121,332)
Income tax credit/(expense) REFBELEER L
from continuing operations FERKE,/
(A=) (28,745) 141 123 3,586 (6,154)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to AREEERFEA
the equity holders of ELRT/ (B18)
the Company (including (BEBRIEEER)
discontinued operations) 154,345 (27,063) (121,200) (135,284) (114,328)
Special dividend BRI E = - 407,985 - -
Proposed final dividend BRAREARE - - - - -
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at 30th June
RAA=tH
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
SBC-& C"ZCTE O T-NE B\ ZE—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz TET TET TET THT
Total assets BEE 1,051,772 683,788 724,694 1,081,443 1,456,934
Total liabilities Bafk (546,305) (328,896) (343,760) (164,470) (443,407)
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